
Agenda 
Utility Management Review Board 

October 28, 2021 
10:00 AM 

I. Call to Order
II. Conflict of Interest Statement
III. Approval of Minutes
IV. Update Cycle

a. Bon de Croft Utility District
b. Copper Basin Utility District
c. Jackson County Utility District
d. Milcrofton Utility District
e. Minor Hill Utility District
f. Spring Creek Utility District
g. Walden’s Ridge Utility District
h. Woodlawn Utility District

V. Financial Distress
a. Cold Springs Utility District
b. Crockett Mills Utility District
c. Intermont Utility District
d. Iron City Utility District
e. Mooresburg Utility District
f. Roan Mountain Utility District

VI. Board Election Change
a. First Utility District of Carter 

County
VII. 2022 Meeting Dates
VIII. Board Discussion



 

 

 

 

 

 
MINUTES 

of the 
UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 

March 11, 2021 
10:00 am 

 
Greeting: 
Chairman Knotts detected a quorum and called to order the meeting of the Utility Management 
Review Board (“UMRB”) in the IT Training Room on the 3rd Floor of the Cordell Hull Building 
in Nashville, TN at 10:00 a.m. (CDT). 
 
Board Members Present and Constituting a Quorum: 
Betsy Knotts, Chair, Comptroller Designee 
Tom Moss, Vice-Chair, Department of Environment and Conservation (“TDEC”) Commissioner 
Designee 
Pat Riley, former Gibson County Utility District Manager 
Phillip Combs, Alpha-Talbott Utility District Manager 
Rebecca Hunter, Hixson Utility District Commissioner 
Bruce Giles, First Utility District of Knox County Manager 
 
Board Members Absent: 
Jason West, Utility District Commissioner 
Dan Coley, Mallory Valley Utility District Commissioner 
Kevin Botts, Consumer Interests 
 
Staff Present: 
John Greer, Comptroller’s Office 
Ross Colona, Comptroller’s Office  
 
Counsel Present: 
Rachel Buckley, Comptroller’s Office 
 
Others Present and Addressing the Board: 
Benjamin Gastel, Attorney for Walden’s Ridge Utility District 
Craig Brent, Attorney for Ladd Park 
Michael Wall, Attorney for Milcrofton Utility District 
 
 
Electronic Meeting Resolution 



 

Chairman Knotts advised that Executive Order #60 signed by Governor Lee provides that a 
governing body may conduct essential business by electronic means without a quorum of members 
present in the same location, if the governing body determines that meeting electronically is 
necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of Tennesseans in light of the COVID-19 
outbreak. Mr. Moss made a motion that the Board approve proceeding electronically without a 
quorum present at the same location. Ms. Hunter seconded the motion which passed with the 
following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Conflict of Interest Statement: 
Counsel Rachel Buckley read the following statement: “The Board was created to act for the public 
welfare and in furtherance of the legislature’s intent that utility systems be operated as self-
sufficient enterprises. Board members are not authorized to participate in the discussion of or to 
vote on matters involving entities in which the Board member has a financial interest, with which 
the Board member has a conflict of interest, with which the Board member has a contract of 
employment, or if there is any appearance of impropriety.” 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
Chairman Knotts presented the approval of the October 22, 2020 minutes. Mr. Riley moved to 
approve the minutes as written.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion, which passed unanimously with 
the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Financial: 
 
At this point, Mr. Giles joined the meeting. 
 
Cold Springs Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Mr. Combs made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another 
qualified expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the 
following: 

a. a review of the debt management policy; 
b. a review of the capitalization policy; 



 

c. a review of customer water rights to the spring and any related impact to water 
loss improvement; 

d. a review of the leak adjustment policy; and 
e. a review of connection, reconnection, and tap fees. 

2. By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  

3. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation.  

4. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 
 

Mr. Giles seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Crockett Mills Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Ms. Hunter made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1 of the 
August 2020 order. 

2. By April 15, 2021, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82-
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law.  

3. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan 
of implementation. 

4. If the District fails to comply with the directives of the Board’s August  6, 2020 order by 
June 30, 2021, Staff shall refer this matter to the Attorney General for enforcement 
through chancery court. 
 

Mr. Riley seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 



 

Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Jackson County Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Ms. Hunter made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another 
qualified expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the 
following: 

a. a review of the debt management policy; 
b. a review of all tap connection and reconnection fees, and unlock fees; 
c. a review of the capitalization policy; and 
d. a review of the capital asset list. 

2. By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  

3. By April 15, 2021, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82-
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners 
in accordance with the law. 

4. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation.  

5. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 
 

Mr. Moss seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Mooresburg Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Mr. Moss made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another 
qualified expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the 
following: 

a. a review of the debt management policy; 
b. a review of the capitalization policy; and 
c. a review of connection, reconnection, and tap fees. 

2. By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  



 

3. By April 15, 2021, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82-
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners 
in accordance with the law. 

4. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation.  

5. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 

 
Mr. Giles seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Roan Mountain Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Mr. Riley made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, and 
either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan of 
implementation.  

2. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the foregoing 
deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 

 
Ms. Hunter seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Spring Creek Utility District 
 
Mr. Greer explained the staff recommendations. Ms. Hunter made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another 
qualified expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the 
following: 

a. a review of the debt management policy; 



 

b. a review of the capitalization policy; and 
c. a review of connection, reconnection, and tap fees. 

2. By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  

3. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation.  

4. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 
 

Mr. Combs seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Walden’s Ridge Utility District Financial Distress 
 
Ms. Hunter recused herself from any Board action involving Walden’s Ridge due to a conflict of 
interest. 
 
Mr. Greer explained that the Board need to discuss the District’s financial distress and also the 
potential delinquency regarding training of the District’s board members.  
 
Regarding the District’s financial distress, Mr. Giles made a motion to order the following: 
 

1. By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with either proof of implementation 
of the cost of service study’s recommendations or a proposed plan of implementation. 
 

Mr. Riley seconded the motion which passed with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
 
 
Walden’s Ridge Utility District Commissioner Training 
 
Mr. Gastel, attorney for Walden’s Ridge Utility District, addressed the Board regarding the 
training for the District’s board members. Mr. Gastel made the argument that assuming that an 



 

initial training period of a Commissioner holding office at the time the training laws went into 
effect concludes at the end of the first year following a commissioner’s reappointment, all of 
Walden Ridge’s Commissioners have satisfied the training requirements imposed by that statute. 
In fact, most of these commissioners completed more hours than they were required to complete. 
Interpreting the statute in this manner is also consistent with its plain language and the over-arching 
purpose of the legislation. Accordingly, Walden’s Ridge hereby requests that the UMRB find that 
Walden’s Ridge’s Commissioners be declared compliant with their training requirements imposed 
by Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-82-308. 
 
While this interpretation of the law is not consistent with how Board staff has typically interpreted 
it, Mr. Moss stated that he believes a contested case hearing is not necessary due to the ambiguity 
of the statute. Mr. Riley stated he appreciates the compliance that the Board members now show 
regarding the training requirements. 
 
Mr. Giles moved to take no action on the matter. Mr. Moss seconded the motion which passed 
with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
Complaints 
 
Ladd Park vs. Milcrofton Utility District 
 

Next, the Board conducted an informal hearing on the complaint filed by Ladd Park 
Homeowners Association (“Ladd Park”) against Milcrofton Utility District (“the District”) 
pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-82-702(a)(9), wherein Ladd Park disputed the District’s policy 
that customers place backflow preventers no more than five feet from their water meter. Michael 
Wall, attorney for the District, argued that Ladd Park lacked standing to pursue such a complaint 
because backflow preventers are not “utility systems” as listed in the statue, and because Ladd 
Park itself was not directly impacted by the policy. Craig Brent, attorney for Ladd Park, argued 
that Ladd Park was acting within the scope of its authority to represent its individual homeowners 
in filing the complaint.  

After reviewing the relevant documents, hearing the testimony, and considering the 
arguments of the parties, Chairman Knotts made a motion for the Board to make the following 
factual findings and conclusions of law related to Ladd Park’s complaint: 

1. Ladd Park’s complaint was filed pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-82-702(a)(9), which 
allows the Board to review complaints related to a “utility district's requirement that the 
customer or the developer build utility systems to be dedicated to the utility district.”  

2. Backflow prevention devices are not transferred to the utility districts after their 
installation. Such devices are located on the customer’s side of the meter, and a customer 
is not required to maintain one if the customer chooses not to have an irrigation system. 



 

3. Therefore, a backflow prevention device is not a “utility system to be dedicated to the 
utility district” under the statute. Ladd Park has thus filed its complaint under an 
inappropriate statute. 

4. The Board notes that it supports transparency between utility districts and its customers. 
Customers should be heard and utility districts should respond appropriately. 

5. The complaint is therefore DISMISSED without prejudice. 
 
Mr. Giles seconded the motion, with the following roll call vote: 
 
Mr. Combs- Yes 
Mr. Giles- Yes 
Ms. Hunter- Yes 
Mr. Riley- Yes 
Vice-Chair Moss- Yes 
Chairman Knotts- Yes 
 
 
Board Discussion: 
 
Chairman Knotts adjourned the meeting at 11: 15 am.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Betsy Knotts        
Chair  

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: BonDeCroft Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District engaged the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts (“TAUD”) to perform a rate 
study in accordance with the Board’s previous order. TAUD has completed the study and 
submitted its resulting report and recommendations to the District and to Board staff. The District 
has implemented TAUD’s recommendations. The District has complied with all directives of the 
Board, but the Board should continue to monitor its financial progress. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 













































































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Copper Basin Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District contracted with the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts (“TAUD”) to perform 
a rate study in accordance with the Board’s previous order. TAUD completed the study and 
submitted its resulting report and recommendations to the District and to Board staff. The District 
implemented TAUD’s recommendations. The District has complied with all directives of the 
Board, but the Board should continue to monitor its financial progress. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts 

Vltal for Tennessee's future 

REPORT FOR COPPER BASIN UTILITY 
DISTRICT 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
BOARD 

ORDER DA TED AUGUST 6, 2020 

October 11, 2021 



INTRODUCTION 

Description of the Copper Basin Utilitv District Water and Sewer Svstem 

Copper Basin Utility District (the District) provides water and sewer services in Polk 
County. The District's board of commissioners has five members who are appointed by the Polk 
County, Mayor. The District's raw water supply comes from Campbell Cove Lake. On average 
the District's water treatment plant produces about 500,000 gallons per day. The District operates 
a small wastewater treatment plant in Ducktown with a design capacity of 0.14 MGD which 
discharges into the Ocoee River. 

As of June 30, 2021, the District had the following rate classes for water service and the 
following numbers of customers in each water rate class: 

Turtletown/Postelle 

Residential 709 
Commercial 12 

Isabella/Ducktown 

Residential 304 
Commercial 67 

The District only provides sewer service within the Ducktown portion of its service area. 
As ofJune 30, 2021, the District had the following rate classes for sewer service and the following 
numbers of customers in each sewer rate class: 

Residential 166 
Commercial 46 

The District sells water to the City of Copperhill under a wholesale water purchase and sale 
agreement. 

The District was referred to the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) upon the 
submission of its audit for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, because it met the statutory 
definition for a financially distressed utility district. The District had a negative change in net 
position for two consecutive years without regard to any grants or capital contributions for its fiscal 
years ending June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018. 

Historv of Rates and Existing Rate Structure 

After the District was referred to the UMRB, the District has implemented two increases 
in water rates which became effective on July 1, 2019, and on July 1, 2021, and three increases in 
sewer rates which became effective on July 1, 2019, July 1, 2020, and July 1, 2021. The District's 
current schedule of monthly water and sewer rates is set forth in Exhibit 1 attached to this Report. 

2 



As a result of these rate increases, the District has experienced a positive change in net 
position for its fiscal years ending June 30 of 2019 and 2020 as follows: 

June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2020 

$ 9,534 
$107,703 

Utility Management Review Board Order 

On August 6, 2020, the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) issued an order 
directing the District to have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another qualified 
expert as approved by the Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the following: 

a) The creation of a rate and fee policy; 
b) A justification for the multiple residential rate classes, or if no justification is 
possible, recommendation for a one rate class for all residential customers; 
c) A justification for the multiple commercial rate classes, or if no justification is 
possible, recommendation for a one rate class for all commercial customers; 
d) A review of the new customer contracts for homeowners and renters, including any 
recommended modifications, and 
e) A review of the current capital asset plan, including any recommended 
modifications. 

3 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation #1 

The District's board of commissioners should approve the Five-Year Capital Asset Plan attached 
as Exhibit 2. 

Recommendation #2 

TAUD recommends the District adopt the water and sewer rates set forth in attached Exhibit 5 to 
become effective on July 1 of2022 and 2023 . 

Recommendation # 3 

The District should work with TAUD to make revisions to its customer contracts which the 
District has agreed to do. 

4 



FIVE YEAR CAPITAL ASSET PLAN 

TAUD met with the District to review its District's five-year capital assets plan. They 
discussed capital improvements which the District planned to make or should consider making to 
its water and sewer system through June 30, 2025, as well the purchase of capital assets during 
this same time period. Options for funding these capital expenditures were reviewed. TADD 
assisted the District in preparing a Five-Year Capital Asset Plan based upon these discussions 
which is attached as Exhibit 2 and which was used in T AUD financial projections. 

RATE STUDY AND PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 

To determine whether existing rates will produce sufficient revenues to make the District's 
water and sewer system self-supporting, TADD first projected a Statement of Revenues and 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the District for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, to 
use as its test year. TAUD projected the revenues for the system using existing rates. TAUD 
projected operation and maintenance expenses and debt service payments by reviewing: (1) the 
District's budget for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021; (2) historical information from the 
District's previous five fiscal years; and (3) the District's unaudited revenues and expenses for its 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

Then, TADD projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
for the District for its fiscal years ending June 30 of 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. See Exhibit 3 
attached to this Report. 

Revenue Projections: 

• Water sales and sewer sales for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, are projected by taking 
the District's actual water usage reports for all rate classes for the year ending June 30, 
2020, and applying the District's current water and sewer rates to this actual usage. 

• The District estimates that it will add approximately 15 new water connections and 2 new 
sewer connections annually. Therefore, water sales are increased by $10,800 and sewer 
sales are increased by $1,200 each year during the remaining years in the five-year 
projection period. 

• The District's wholesale water sale agreement with the City of Copperhill provides for an 
annual adjustment to the wholesale water rate charged to Copperhill based upon the an 
annual cost of living adjustment. TAUD increased water sales by $2,505 each year 
during the remaining years in the five-year projection period to account for an annual cost 
ofliving adjustment at an estimated rate of 1.5% per year. 

• Tap fees for the test year and for the remaining years in the projection period are based 
upon the District's estimate of adding 15 new water connections and 2 new sewer 
connections annually which appear to be reasonable. 

5 



• Installations for the test year and for the remaining years in the projection period are based 
upon the District's estimate of adding 15 new water customers annually which appears to 
be reasonable. 

Expense Projections: 

Except for the operating expenses in the following paragraph, operating expenses for the 
test year ending June 30, 2021 are projected based upon the average of each expense for the 
District's last two fiscal years ending June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021. 

The following operating expenses for the test year are projected as follow: 

• Utilities expense is based upon the District's actual utilities expense for its fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021. 

• Depreciation is projected based upon the District's existing fixed asset schedule and the 
useful service lives used on this schedule for depreciation as of June 30, 2020, plus the 
depreciation attributable to the new capital assets placed into service during the District's 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

• Computer expense is based upon the District's estimate for the test year and for future years 
during the projection period which seem to be reasonable. 

• Travel expense is based upon the District's estimate for the test year and for future years 
during the projection period which seem to be reasonable. 

• Inspection fees and permits expense is based upon a two-year average of this expense after 
an excavator included in this account for 2021 was reclassified as a capital expense. 

• Waste removal expense is based upon the District's estimate for the test year and for future 
years during the projection period which seem to be reasonable. 

For the remaining fiscal years in the five-year projection period, all operating expenses 
except depreciation are increased by 2% annually over the projected amount for the test year. 
Annual depreciation expenses after the test year are projected based upon the District's existing 
fixed asset schedule and on new capital assets included in the capital asset plan after the test year. 

TAUD's projected revenues and expenses for its test year ending June 30, 2021, are set 
forth in the attached as Exhibit 4. 

Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Modifications Required 

Based upon the projected Statements, the District will have a positive change in net position 
for the test year ending June 30, 2021 of approximately $55,899. Due to the depreciation and new 

6 



debt related to planned capital projects in 2022 and 2023, the District will need additional revenue 
for its fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022. TAUD recommends that the District go ahead and adopt 
the rates set for the in Exhibit 5 to become effective July 1, 2022, and July 1, 2023. 

The rate recommendations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, are based upon 
revenue and expense projections which are subject to change. Therefore, the rate recommendations 
to become effective July 1, 2024, should be reviewed as a part of the budgetary process for that 
fiscal year to ensure that rates recommended will continue to produce sufficient revenues to give 
the District a positive change in net position for its fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024. 

Proiected Cash and Investments Schedule 

A Projected Cash and Investments Schedule for the District is attached as Exhibit 6. If the 
District adopts the rate increases recommended by TAUD and funds its capital improvements as 
set forth in the Five-Year Capital Asset Plan, the District should have a cash balance of$1,914,266 
as of June 30, 2025. 

JUSTIFICATION OF MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL RATE 
CLASSES 

The District has two water rate zones, Turtletown/Postelle and Isabella/Ducktown. The 
District established these two rate zones when it installed a significant water line extension to 
upgrade and expand its service to the Isabella/Ducktown portion of its service area. The extension 
costs $577,064, and the District decided to make the monthly water rates of the Isabella/Ducktown 
service area slightly higher to cover the additional annual depreciation expenses related to this line 
extension. Because this rate differential is cost based, TAUD sees no problem with the District 
having separate water rates for the Isabella/Ducktown portion of the District. 

The District only has two rate classes, residential and commercial, in each of its two rate 
zones. The District does have a higher minimum bill for residential and commercial customers 
with larger meters. The usage rates for all residential customers are the same in each rate zone, 
and the usage rates for all commercial customers are the same in each rate zone. A primary purpose 
of the minimum bill is to cover the utility's fixed costs which it incurs simply to have water service 
available to its customers. Customers with larger meters place a greater demand on the District's 
water system than customers who have % inch meters. Therefore, the District's water system 
infrastructure required to make service available to customers with larger meters is greater than 
the infrastructure required for customers served by a % inch meter. 

The maximum flow rate of a % inch meter is 20 gallons per minute (gpm). A one inch 
meter has a maximum flow rate of 50 gpm. A 2 inch meter has a maximum flow rate of 160 gpm. 
As the size of the water meter increases, so does the maximum flow rate. Therefore, the Town's 
investment to be able to provide water service to a customer with a 2 inch meter is significantly 
greater than the investment required to serve a customer with a % inch meter. Therefore, higher 
minimum bills for customers with larger meters are justified. 

7 



TAUD sees no reason for the District to change its current rate structure. 

RATEAND:FEE POLICY 

The District's billing procedures for its customers are set forth in its customer contracts. 
The District provides water leak protection insurance coverage to its customers through ServLine 
so it has no leak adjustment policy. The District keeps and maintains a current schedule of rates 
which is updated when new rates are adopted. The Schedule of Rates is published in the 
District's audit each year and is made available to any customer upon request. The District's 
current schedule ofrates is attached as Exhibit 1. TAUD sees no reason to create a new rate and 
fee policy. 

CUSTOMER CONTRACTS FOR SERVICE 

While the District's existing customer contracts for service are adequate, the District has 
agreed to work with TAUD to make some revisions to these customer contracts. When the 
revisions are completed, the revised customer contracts will be provided to the UMRB. 

8 



COPPER BASIN UTILITY DISTRICT 
WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES 

EFFECTIVE~ 

Residential - Turtletown & PosteDe 
%" Basic 2000 gallons - $26.01 Over 2000 - $11.00 per 1000 
1" Basic 2000 gallons - $39.53 · 

Over 5000 - $15. 72 per 1000 

2" Basic 2000 gaJlons - $74.00 
4" Basic 2000 gallons - $107.14 
6" Basic 2000 gallons - $140.95 

Residential - Isabella & Ducktown 
%'~ Basic 2000 gallons - $26.45 Over 2000 - $11.24 per 1000 Over 5000 - $16 . .04 per 1000 
1" Basic 2000 gaJlons - $40.24 ' 
2" Basic 2000 gallons - $74.00 
4" Basic 2000 gallons - $109.18 
6" Basic 2000 gallons - $143.65 

Commercial - Turtletown & Postelle 
%" Basic 2000 gallons - $33.44 Over 2000 - $14.15 per 1000 Over 5000-$20.20 per 1000 
I" Basic 2000 gallons - $46. 79 
2" Basic 2000 gallons - $89.21 
4" Basic 2000 gallons - $130.75 
6" Basic 2000 gallons - $172.27 

Commercial - Isabella & Ducktown 
W' Basic 2000 gallons - $34.04 Over 2000 - $14.42 per 1000 Over 5000 - $20.59 per 1000 
1" Basic 2000 galJons - $47.67 
2" Basic 2000 gallons - $90.90 
4" Basic 2000 gallons - $133.25 
6" Basic 2000 gallons - $178.92 

City of Copperhill - Flat Rate 
$4.06 per 1,000 

Residential Wastewater (56% of water rate) 
Basic 2000 - $14.81 Over 2000 - $6.30 per 1000 Over 5000 - $8.98 per 1000 

Commercial Wastewater 
Basic 2000 - $34.04 Over 2000 - $14.42 per 1000 Over 5000 - $25.00 per l 000 

Exhibit 1 

Per Unit Charge · $5.00 per extra unit with a restroom facility (nursing home, hospital, home converted into apartments, bed and breakfast, etc) 

ServLine Residential Water Loss Protection 
ServLine Residential Water Line Protection 
ServLine Commercial Water Loss Protection 
ServLine Commercial Water Line Protection 
ServLine Commercial Sewer Line Protection 

$1.55/month 
$4.65/month 
$3.85/month 
$13. 75/month 
$13.75/month 



Zone Meters 
Ducktown Water Line Replacements 
Sewer Improvements - Mapping 
2021 Chevy Truck 
Excavator 
Tanks & Line Extensions 
Infrastructure Planning - Water 
Backhoe 
Ducktown Water Line Replacements 

Meter Changeout 
Sewer Rehab 

Additional Depreciation 

Total Capital Outlay & Depreciation 

Source of Funds 

Loans 
Grants 
Cash 

Total Funding Sources 

Copper Basin Utility District 

Five Year Capital Asset Plan 

6L30L2021 6L30L2022 6L30L2023 
15,000 

635,000 
47,369 
50,151 
69,030 

2,000,000 
52,500 

75,000 

801,550 2,067,500 75,000 

26,987 71,112 78,612 

828,537 2,138,612 153,612 

2,000,000 75,000 
547,000 50,000 
254,550 17,500 

801,550 2,067,500 75,000 

Exhibit 2 

6L30L2024 6L30L202s 

700,000 

270,000 
2,000,000 

700,000 2,270,000 

92,612 159,612 

792,612 2,429,612 

1,362,000 
630,000 908,000 

70,000 

700,000 2,270,000 



Exhibit 3 

COQQer Basin Utilit'k' District - Projected Statements of Revenues and ExQenses and Changes in Net 
Position 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

6L30L2021 6L30L2022 6L30L2023 6L30l 2024 6[30L202s 

Operating Revenues: 

Water Sales 897,356 931,566 942,366 953,166 963,966 

Sewer Sales 229,036 230,936 232,136 233,336 234,536 

Tap Fees 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Installations 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 

Total Operating Revenues 1,147,892 1,184,002 1,196,002 1,208,002 1,220,002 

Operating Expenses: 

Wages 360,000 367,200 374,544 382,035 389,676 

Payroll Taxes 27,500 28,050 28,611 29,183 29,767 

Retirement 12,400 12,648 12,901 13,159 13,422 

Directors Fees 6,400 6,528 6,659 6,792 6,928 

Utilities 86,500 88,230 89,995 91,794 93,630 

Chemicals 40,000 40,800 41,616 42,448 43,297 

Insurance 126,000 128,520 131,090 133,712 136,386 

Insurance - Water Leak Protection 27,000 27,540 28,091 28,653 29,226 

Material & Supplies 37,000 37,740 38,495 39,265 40,050 

Lab Analysis 6,000 6,120 6,242 6,367 6,495 

Depreciation 254,193 298,318 305,818 319,818 386,818 

Repairs & Maintenance 45,000 45,900 46,818 47,754 48,709 

Office Expense 5,300 5,406 5,514 5,624 5,737 

Computer Expense 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

Postage 8,500 8,670 8,843 9,020 9,201 

Travel 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

Inspection & Permit Fees 6,700 6,834 6,971 7,110 7,252 

Auto & Truck Expense 3,700 3,774 3,849 3,926 4,005 

Contract Labor 12,000 12,240 12,485 12,734 12,989 

Professional Fees 12,000 12,240 12,485 12,734 12,989 

Miscellaneous 2,000 2,040 2,081 2,122 2,165 

Waste Removal 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

Total Operating Expenses 1,093,193 1,154,098 1,178,713 1,210,171 1,294,978 

Operating Income (Loss) 54,699 29,904 17,289 (2,169) (74,976) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 

Interest Expense {24,818) (48,828) (47,999) (80,952) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,200 (23,618) (47,628) (46,799) (79,752) 

Change in Net Position before Contributed 

Capital and Grants 55,899 6,286 (30,339) (48,968) (154,728) 

Estimated Revenue from Suggested Rate 

155,876 1 increase 34,868 52,118 

Change in Net Position 55,899 6,286 4,529 3,150 1,148 

IN ADDITION - ADD $10,800 EACH YEAR TO WATER (15 NEW CUSTOMERS X $50 PER MONTH X 12 MONTHS) 

ADD $1,200 EACH YEAR TO SEWER (2 NEW CUSTOMERS X $50 PER MONTH X 12 MONTHS) 

ALSO INCLUDED IS $2,505 INCREASE FOR 1.5% COLA FOR CITY OF COPPERHILL WATER REVENUE. 



Exhibit 4 

Copper Basin Utility District - Test Year 
2021 Last 2 Year Client F/S 2021 

District Budget Average for 2021 Estimated 

Operating Revenues: 

Water Sales 878,855 897,356 From usage calculations 
Sewer Sales 233,621 229,036 From usage calculations 

Tap Fees 15,450 24,900 20,000 District expects average of 15 new water and 2 new sewer each year. 
Installations 9,570 1,500 Average of $100 per year for 15 new customers 

Total Operating Revenues 1,127,926 34,470 1,147,892 

Operating Expenses: 

Wages 370,912 358,499 359,199 360,000 From 2 year average 
Payroll Taxes 28,371 27,392 27,839 27,500 From 2 year average 

Retirement 11,404 12,368 10,148 12,400 From 2 year average 

Directors Fees 6,350 6,375 6,100 6,400 From 2 year average 

Utilities 77,306 80,397 86,495 86,500 From actual 
Chemicals 44,186 41,280 37,571 40,000 From 2 year average 

Insurance 144,761 122,730 126,775 126,000 From 2 year average 

Insurance - Water Leak Protection 27,054 27,000 27,000 From 2 year average 

Material & Supplies 46,752 37,029 94,367 37,000 From 2 year average 

Lab Analysis 5,747 5,815 5,306 6,000 From 2 year average 

Depreciation 210,000 229,637 254,193 2020 depreciation plus new additions 

Repairs & Maintenance 54,242 44,419 82,317 45,000 From 2 year average, there was a excavator to be reclassified for this year 

Office Expense 4,527 5,373 11,835 5,300 From 2 year average 

Computer Expense 10,853 9,953 5,000 From discussions with District 

Postage 8,197 8,505 8,844 8,500 From 2 year average 

Travel 9,222 11,574 2,580 5,000 From discussions with District 

Inspection Fees & Permits 9,332 6,714 6,700 From actual, this will be every year, was in miscellaneous 

Auto & Truck Expense 3,811 3,748 7,629 3,700 From 2 year average 

Contract Labor 31,921 11,711 81,836 12,000 From 2 year average, there is items to be reclassified this year 

Professional Fees 11,975 11,825 87,535 12,000 Used 2 year average, awaiting grant to reimburse for Engineering costs 

Miscellaneous 610 11,024 1,700 2,000 From 2 year average 

Waste Removal 1,018 2,198 8,863 5,000 From discussions with District 

Total Operating Expenses 1,091,497 1,068,900 1,080,653 1,093,193 ---
Operating Income (Loss) (1,091,497) 59,027 (1,046,183) 54,699 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 1,191 1,367 1,200 Used 2 year average 

Interest Expense (1,599) N/A 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (408) 1,367 1,200 

Change in Net Position before Contributed 

Capital and Grants (1,091,497) 58,619 (1,044,816) 55,899 

Contributed Capital and Grants 17,767 

Change in Net Position (1,091,497) 76,385 {1,044,816) 55,899 



Copper Basin Utility District - Rates 

Water Rates 
Residential -
First 2,000 gallons 

3/4" meter 

1" meter 

2" meter 

4" meter 

6" meter 

Over 2,000 to 5,000 gallons 

Over 5,000 gallons 

Commercial 
First 2,000 gallons 

3/4" meter 

1" meter 

2" meter 

4" meter 

6" meter 

Over 2,000 to 5,000 gallons 

Over 5,000 gallons 

DISTRICT RATES 

FY 20-21 
Turtletown Isabella 

& Postelle & Ducktown 

$26.01 $26.45 

$39.53 $40.24 
$74.00 $74.00 

$107.14 $109.18 
$140.95 $143.65 

$10.68 / 1,000 $10.91 / 1,000 
$14.97 / 1,000 $15.28 / 1,000 

$33.44 $34.04 
$46.79 $47.67 
$89.21 $90.90 

$130.75 $133.25 
$172.27 $178.92 

$13.74 I 1,000 $14.00 I 1,000 
$19.24 / 1,000 $19.61 / 1,000 

DISTRICT RATES SUGGESTED FOR 
FY 21-22 FY 22-23 

Turtletown Isabella Turtletown Isabella 

& Postelle & Ducktown & Postelle & Ducktown 

$26.01 $26.45 $26.50 $27.00 
$39.53 $40.24 $40.12 $40.75 
$74.00 $74.00 $74.50 $75.11 

$107.14 $109.18 $108.75 $110.82 
$140.95 $143.65 $143.06 $145.80 

$11.00 / 1,000 $11.24 / 1,000 $11.65 / 1,000 $11.90 / 1,000 
$15. 72 / 1,000 $16.04 / 1,000 $16.65 / 1,000 $16.90 I 1,000 

$33.44 $34.04 $34.00 $35.00 
$46.79 $47.67 $47.49 $48.50 
$89.21 $90.90 $90.55 $91.75 

$130.75 $133.25 $132.71 $135.25 
$172.27 $178.92 $174.85 $181.60 

$14.15 / 1,000 $14.42 / 1,000 $14.65 / 1,000 $14.90 / 1,000 
$20.20 / 1,000 $20.59 / 1,000 $20.90 / 1,000 $21.15 / 1,000 

NOTE: For water rates in red There are no customers in these rate tiers. Rates in these tiers are adjusted 1.5% for each year. 

Sewer Rates DISTRICT RATES DISTRICT RATES SUGGESTED SUGGESTED SUGGESTED 

Residential - FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25 
First 2,000 gallons $14.81 $14.81 $15.50 $16.00 $17.50 
Over 2,000 thru 5,000 gallons $6.11 / 1,000 $6.30 I 1,000 $6.90 I 1,000 $7.15/ 1,000 $9.so / 1,000 
Over 5,000 gallons $8.56 / 1,000 $8.98 / 1,000 $9.90 I 1,000 $10.15 / 1,000 $12.50 / 1,000 

Commercial 
First 2,000 gallons $34.04 $34.04 $34.75 $35.25 $36.75 
Over 2,000 thru 5,000 gallons $14.oo I 1,000 $14.42 I 1,000 $15.00 / 1,000 $15.25 / 1,000 $17.50 / 1,000 
Over 5,000 gallons $25.00 / 1,000 $25.00 / 1,000 $25.65 / 1,000 $26.oo I 1,000 $28.25 / 1,000 

Exhibit 5 

SUGGESTED FOR SUGGESTED FOR 

FY 23-24 FY 24-25 
Turtletown Isabella Turtletown Isabella 

& Postelle & Ducktown & Postelle & Ducktown 

$26.75 $27.25 $28.50 $29.00 
$40.72 $41.00 $41.34 $42.75 
$74.75 $76.24 $76.50 $77.38 
$110.38 $112.48 $112.03 $114.17 
$145.21 $147.99 $147.39 $150.21 

$12.00 / 1,000 $12.25 / 1,000 $14.oo I 1,000 $14.50 / 1,000 
$17.oo I 1,000 $17 .25 / 1,000 $19.oo I 1,000 $19.50 / 1,000 

$34.25 $35.25 $39.00 $37.00 
$48.20 $48.75 $48.93 $50.50 
$91.91 $92.00 $93.28 $93.75 
$134.70 $137.28 $136.72 $139.34 
$177.48 $184.33 $180.14 $187.09 

$15.00 / 1,000 $15.10 / 1,000 $17 .00 / 1,000 $17.50/ 1,000 
$21.25 / 1,000 $21.35 / 1,000 $29.oo I 1,000 $23 .so / 1,000 



Copper Basin Utility District - Projected Cash & Investments 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

6/ 30/ 2021 6/ 30/ 2022 6/ 30/ 2023 6/ 30/ 2024 6/ 30/ 2025 

Beginning Balance 796,743 852,285 1,123,415 1,386,006 1,590,391 

Sources of Funds 

Water & Sewer Fees*** 1,126,392 1,162,502 1,209,370 1,238,620 1,354,378 

Tap Fees & Installation 21,500 21,500 21,500 21,500 21,500 

Interest Revenue 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 

Loans 2,000,000 75,000 1,362,000 

Grants 547,000 50,000 630,000 908,000 

Total Sources of Funds 1,696,092 3,235,202 1,307,070 1,891,320 3,647,078 

Uses of Funds 

Operating Expenses 1,093,193 1,154,098 1,178,713 1,210,171 1,294,978 

Depreciation (254,193) (298,318) (305,818) (319,818) (386,818) 

Capital Outlay 801,550 2,067,500 75,000 700,000 2,270,000 

Interest Expense 24,818 48,828 47,999 80,952 

Principal Paid on Debt 15,974 47,755 48,583 71,188 

Total Uses of Funds 1,640,550 2,964,072 1,044,479 1,686,936 3,330,301 

Ending Balance 852,285 1,123,415 1,386,006 1,590,391 1,907,168 

NOTE: This synopsis from beginning funds to ending funds does not include accounts receivable, accounts 

payable, fixed asset or any other adjustments made to the balance sheet. This is a "cash basis" summary. 

Exhibit 6 













 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Jackson County Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In its March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study, to send the completed rate study to Board staff by June 30, 2021, including 
proof of implementation or a plan for implementation. The Board also ordered the District to 
ensure that its commissioners have met all training requirements and are thus eligible to serve. 
 
The District contacted Board staff informing them that TAUD had helped the District complete a 
rate study in late 2020. They implemented rate increases according to this study. The District also 
provided the training certificates for the Board members showing they have met the training 
requirements. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following: 
 

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 1st of 
each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from its 
oversight.  

 

























 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Milcrofton Utility District 
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District contracted with Jackson Thornton to perform a rate study in accordance with the 
Board’s previous order. Jackson Thornton completed the study and submitted its resulting report 
to the District and to Board staff. The Jackson Thornton report did not recommend a rate increase 
at this time. Board staff does not believe any further current action is necessary regarding the 
District’s rates. Although the District has complied with all Board directives, the Board should 
continue to monitor its financial progress.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 





TENNESSEE ASSOCIATION OF U TIJLITY IDISTlEUCTS Post Office Box 2529 
Murfreesboro, TN 37133-2529 

Phone: (615) 896-9022 ~ 
Fax: (615) 898-8283 840 Commercial Court 
Web: www.taud.org Murfreesboro, TN 37129 ---- ----

March 31, 2021 

Mike Jones, General Manager 
Milcrofton Utility District 
6333 Arno Road 
Franklin, TN 37064 

Re: UMRB Order Dated November 5, 2020 

Dear Mike: 

The Tennessee Association of Utility Districts (TAUD) agreed to review the debt 
management policy and leak adjustment policy of Milcrofton Utility District (the District) which 
were two of the items the UMRB directed the District to review in its November 5, 2020 Order. 
You sent me a copy of the District's debt management policy adopted in 2011 and the District's 
current leak adjustment policy both of which are enclosed. 

The District's debt management policy is consistent with the model debt management 
policy prepared by the Comptroller's Office for local governments and has all of the 
requirements for a debt management policy set forth by the Tennessee State Funding Board. 
TADD.does not recommend any changes to the District's debt management policy. 

TAUD has reviewed the District's leak adjustment policy. The policy is similar to the 
leak adjustment polices of other water utility districts in Tennessee. The policy requires that a 
customer pay 50% of the amount of over the customer's average monthly water bill when a bill 
has high usage due to a customer leak past the District's water meter. TA UD does not 
recommend any changes to the District's leak adjustment policy. 

If I can assist further, let me know. 

Enclosures 

Sincerely yours, 

{ );1vr1,, ,1 J V ~ I t1, · 
:r1,1; 11 YU,W_ C\ · _j).-c;f~ 
Donald L. Scholes, General Counsel 



Debt Management Policy 

Milcrofton Utility District 
6333 Arno Road 

Franklin, Tennessee 37064 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners on October 19, 2011 

Effective December 31, 2011 

{000332/95287/00236011.DOC I Ver. I} 



DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Introduction 

Debt management policies provide written guidance about the amount and type of debt issued by 
local governments, the issuance process, and the management of the debt portfolio. A debt 
management policy tailored to the needs of the Board of Commissioners (the "Governing Body") 
of the Milcrofton Utility District of Williamson County, Tennessee (the "District") can improve 
the quality of decisions, identify and disclose parameters relating to the structure and issuance of 
debt, identify policy goals, and provide a foundation for long-term financial planning, all of 
which are in the public interest of the District. If applicable, adherence to a debt management 
policy may signal to rating agencies and the capital markets that a governmental entity is well
managed and should meet its obligations in a timely manner. 

Debt levels and their related annual costs are important long-term obligations that must be 
managed within available resources. An effective debt management policy provides guidelines 
for a government to manage its debt program in line with those resources. 

This Debt Management Policy is intended to comply with the debt management policy 
requirements promulgated by the Tennessee State Funding Board in December 2010. 

Objectives 

The Governing Body is establishing a debt policy as a tool to ensure that financings undertaken 
by the Governing Body satisfy certain clear objective standards designed to protect the District's 
financial resources and to meet its long-term capital needs. 

A. The objectives of this policy are: 

1. To document responsibility for the oversight and management of debt 
related transactions; 

2. To establish criteria and promote prudent financial management for the 
issuance of debt obligations and the evaluation of debt issuance options; 

3. To identify legal and administrative limitations on the issuance of debt and 
ensure the legal use of the Governing Body's debt issuance authority; 

4. To define the types and appropriate use of debt approved for use within 
the constraints established by Tennessee law; 

5. To provide guidance for evaluating refunding candidates or alternative 
debt structures; 

6. Where applicable, to provide support for the maintenance of credit ratings; 
7. To enhance risk management practices; and 
8. To increase transparency, reduce conflicts, and promote cooperation in the 

debt management process. 

{000332/95287 /00236011.DOC /Ver.I} 



Debt Management Strategies 

To achieve the objectives above, the Governing Body adopts the following debt management 
strategies and procedures. 

A. Funding Strategies 

1. Debt is to be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance 
with provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Tennessee (the "State") (including Title 7, Chapter 82, Tennessee Code 
Annotated (the "Utility District Act") and various bond authorizations enacted by 
the General Assembly of the State), and pursuant to resolutions adopted by the 
Governing Body. 

2. Debt may only be used to finance or refinance the capital costs of 
improving the District's utility system (the "System") and such other costs related 
thereto as may be permitted by the Utility District Act (including without 
limitation issuance costs, capitalized interest and the funding of debt service 
reserves), all of which must be authorized by the Governing Body. Debt may not 
be issued to finance the District's operating costs. 

3. Debt shall be secured by and payable from the revenues of the System, as 
prescribed by resolution of the Governing Body, and a corresponding statutory 
lien on the assets of the System. 

B. Federal Tax Status 

1. Tax-Exempt Debt - Based on the assumptions that tax-exempt interest 
rates are lower than taxable rates and that the interest savings outweigh the 
administrative costs, restrictions on use of financed projects, and 
investment constraints, the District will use its best efforts to maximize the 
amount debt sold under this policy as tax-exempt. 

2. Taxable Debt - The District will sell taxable debt when necessary to 
finance projects with a private use or uncontrolled purpose. The 
Governing Body encourages the financing team to blend the financing of 
taxable projects with the financing of tax-exempt projects whenever 
possible. 

{000332/95287/0023601 l.OOC /Ver.I} 2 



C. Legal Limitations on the Use of Debt 

Types of Debt 

1. No debt obligation shall be issued to fund the current operation of the 
District. 

2. The proceeds of any debt obligation shall be expended only for the 
purpose for which it was authorized by the Governing Body. 

3. All debt shall be approved by resolution of the Governing Body. 

4. Prior to the consideration of a resolution authorizing the issuance of debt, 
the General Manager and/or the President of the Governing Body shall 
prepare and submit a request for financing report from the State 
Comptroller's office, as required by the Utility District Act. If timely 
received, the General Manager and/or the President of the Governing 
Body shall cause the report to be published as required by the Utility 
District Act. No financing report is required by the Utility District Act in 
connection with a loan from a state or federal agency. 

Pursuant to the Utility District Act, the District is authorized from time to time to issue or incur 
the following types of debt, all of which is subject to the terms of the debt management policy. 

A. Bonds 

The District may issue bonds under the Utility District Act to finance capital projects or 
refinance outstanding debt. 

B. Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) 

BANs are short term obligations authorized to be issued under the Utility District Act that 
will be repaid by proceeds of a subsequent bond issue. 

C. Capital Leases 

Capital leases are leases of equipment or other System property, where the leased 
property becomes the property of the District at the end of the lease term and the lease payments 
include a financing component. 

D. Loans from State or Federal Agencies 

The District may incur debt in the form of loans from State or federal agencies. Loans 
are evidenced by a loan agreement between the District and the lending agency. 

{000332/95287/00236011 .00C /Ver.I} 3 



E. Loans from Public Building Authorities 

The District may enter into loan agreements with one or more public building 
authorities, pursuant to Sections 12-10-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated, in 
lieu of issuing bonds or notes under the Utility District Act. The policies set forth 
herein for bonds issued under the Utility District Act shall be equally applicable 
to loan agreements entered into with a public building authority. 

Debt Management Practices 

A. Structure 

The Governing Body shall establish by resolution all terms and conditions 
relating to the issuance of debt. 

1. Term 

Any debt (including refunding debt) shall have a weighted average 
maturity not greater than the weighted average expected lives of the assets 
financed by such debt. In addition, the final maturity of any debt should 
not be longer than the expected life of the longest lived asset financed 
thereby. 

2. Capitalized Interest 

From time to time certain financings may require the use of capitalized 
interest. Interest may be financed ( capitalized) through a period permitted 
by federal law and the authorizing resolution of the Governing Body if it 
is determined that doing so is in the District's best interest. 

3. Debt Service Structure 

The District will seek to structure its aggregate debt with level or declining 
debt service payments over the life of its aggregate debt. In structuring 
principal repayment for any debt issue, the Utility will seek to balance the 
goals of (a) amortizing principal as quickly as possible to minimize 
interest costs, and (b) maintaining consistent and manageable rates for its 
customers. 

4. Call Provisions 

The District will strive to issue all of its debt with a call feature no later 
than ten years from the date of delivery. In any event, call features should 
be structured to provide the maximum flexibility relative to cost. The 
District will avoid the sale of long-term non-callable bonds absent careful 

{000332/95287/00236011.DOC /Ver.I} 4 



evaluation by the Governing Body with respect to the value of the call 
option. 

5. Original Issuance Discount/Premium 

Bonds sold with original issuance discount/premium are permitted with 
the approval of the Governing Body. 

6. Debt Service Reserve Funds 

If the Governing Body determines that it is necessary to fund a debt 
service reserve fund in connection with debt, it may agree to fund such a 
reserve. The size of any debt service reserve fund established in 
connection with the tax-exempt debt will be in compliance with applicable 
federal tax rules. The District will strive to fund debt service reserves with 
District funds, rather than with debt. However, the District may use the 
proceeds of debt to fund debt service reserves if the Governing Body 
concludes that the restriction of District funds would reduce unrestricted 
funds below manageable levels. 

7. Fixed vs. Variable Interest Rates 

Fixed rate debt bears interest at a rate or rates that remain constant 
throughout the life of the debt. Variable rate debt bears interest at a 
variable rate through the term thereof. 

The District will issue all of its debt with fixed rates, except as follows: 

• Bond anticipation notes may be issued with variable rates, given 
their short term nature. 

• The District may issue or incur variable rate debt if provision as to 
the calculation or change of variable interest rates is included in 
the authorizing resolution and the Governing Body carefully 
evaluates the risks related thereto. The District will annually 
include in its budget an interest rate assumption for any 
outstanding variable rate debt that takes market fluctuations 
affecting the rate of interest into consideration. The General 
Manager shall monitor the ongoing costs and risks of outstanding 
variable rate and make reports to the Governing Body no less than 
annually with respect thereto. 

B. Refinancing Outstanding Debt 

{000332/95287/0023601 l .DOC I Ver. I} 5 



The Governing Body will consider the following issues when analyzing possible 
refunding opportunities: 

1. Reasons for Refunding 

Debt will be considered for refunding when: 

• The refunding results in net present value savings to the District; 

• The refunding of the debt is necessary due to a change in 
private/public use of a project that would cause a need ·to change 
the tax status of the debt; or 

• The Governing Body expressly determines by resolution that the 
refunding of the bonds accomplishes debt service restructuring that 
is in the District's best interest. 

2. Term of Refunding Issues 

The Governing Body will refund bonds within the term of the originally 
issued debt, unless otherwise expressly approved by resolution of the 
Governing Body. 

3. Escrow Structuring 

The District shall take steps to utilize the least costly securities available in 
structuring refunding escrows; provided that the District may purchase 
U.S. Treasuries - State and Local Government Series if it is determined 
that the costs and risks attendant to the solicitation of open market 
securities outweigh any attendant benefits. 

C. Methods of Sale 

Pursuant to the Utility District Act, debt may be issued at competitive or 
negotiated sale. 

1. Competitive - In a competitive sale, the District's bonds shall be 
awarded to the bidder providing the lowest true interest cost as long as the 
bid adheres to the requirements set forth in the official notice of sale. 

2. Negotiated - In a negotiated sale, the underwriter/lender/lessor will be 
chosen prior to the sale and the interest rate and the fees of the 
underwriter/lender/lessor are negotiated prior to the sale. 

{000332/95287/0023601 l.IX)C /Ver.!} 6 



In the case of loans from State or Federal agencies, the District will negotiate 
directly with the agency making the loan. In all other cases, the Governing Body 
will determine the manner of sale, and will set forth the manner of sale in the 
resolution authorizing the debt. 

D. Underwriter Selection (Negotiated Transaction) 

The District, with assistance from its financial advisor (if the District has engaged 
a financial advisor), shall select the underwriter/lender/lessor for a proposed 
negotiated sale. The selection criteria will include the following factors and such 
other factors as the Governing Body may identify: 

• Ability and experience in managing similar debt transactions; 
• Prior knowledge and experience with the District; 
• Capital adequacy; 
• Quality and experience of personnel assigned to the District's 

engagement; 
• Financing ideas presented; and 
• Underwriter/lender/lessor fees. 

E. Credit Quality 

If the District maintains a credit rating, the District's debt management activities will be 
conducted to maintain the highest credit ratings possible, consistent with District's 
financing and rate maintenance objectives. The General Manager will be responsible for 
maintaining relationships and communicating with the rating agencies that assign ratings 
to the District's debt. Full disclosure of operations and open lines of communication shall 
be maintained with the rating agencies. The General Manager shall work with its 
financial advisor and/or underwriter (as applicable) to prepare and make presentations to 
the rating agencies to assist credit analysts in making an informed decision. 

F. Credit Enhancements 

The District will consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-by-case basis, 
evaluating the economic benefit versus the cost. Only when clearly demonstrable savings 
can be shown shall an enhancement be utilized. The District may consider each of the 
following enhancements as alternatives by evaluating the cost and benefit of such 
enhancements: bond insurance, reserve fund surety bonds, letters of credit and liquidity 
facilities. 

G. Use of Structured Products 

{000332/95287/0023601 l .DOC I Ver. I} 7 



No interest rate agreements or forward purchase agreements will be considered unless a 
policy defining the use of such products is approved before the transaction is considered. 

H. Risk Assessment 

The District will evaluate each transaction to assess the types and amounts of risk 
associated with that transaction, considering all available means to mitigate those risks. 
The District will evaluate all proposed transactions for consistency with the objectives 
and constraints defined in this Policy. The following risks should be assessed before 
issuing debt: 

1. Change in Public/Private Use - The change in the public/private use of 
a project that is funded by tax-exempt funds could potentially cause a 
bond issue to become taxable. 

2. Default Risk - The risk that debt service payments cannot be made by 
the due date. 

3. Liquidity Risk - The risk of having to pay a higher rate to the liquidity 
provider in the event of a failed remarketing. 

4. Interest Rate Risk - The risk that interest rates will rise, on a sustained 
basis, above levels that would have been set if the issued had been fixed. 

5. Rollover Risk - The risk of the inability to obtain a suitable liquidity 
facility at an acceptable price to replace a facility upon termination or 
expiration of a contract period. 

6. Credit Risk - The risk that an issuer of debt securities or a borrower 
may default on its obligations by failing to repay principal and interest in a 
timely manner. 

J. Continuing Disclosure 

To the extent that any of the District's debt issues are subject to U.S. Securities 
and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 ("Rule 15c2-12"), the Governing Body 
will provide certain financial information and operating data by specified dates, 
and will provide notice of certain enumerated events with respect to the bonds, all 
as described in Rule 15c2-12. 

K. Transparency 

{000332/95287/00236011.DOC /Ver.I} 8 



The District shall comply with the Tennessee Open Meetings Act, providing 
adequate public notice of meetings and specifying on the agenda of a meeting 
when matters related to debt issuance will be considered. Additionally, in the 
interest of transparency, all costs (including interest, issuance, continuing, and 
one-time) shall be disclosed to the citizens in a timely manner. To comply with 
the requirements of the preceding sentence, an estimate of the costs described 
above will be presented to the Governing Body along with any resolution 
authorizing debt. 

Within four weeks of closing on a debt transaction, the debt service schedule and 
the State Form CT-0253 shall be available at the office of the General Manager 
for inspection and review by members of the Governing Body and the District's 
customers. 

L. Professional Services 

The District requires all professionals engaged to assist in the process of issuing 
debt to clearly disclose all compensation and consideration received related to 
services provided in the debt issuance process by the District. This includes "soft" 
costs or compensations in lieu of direct payments. 

1. Counsel - The District will enter into an engagement letter agreement 
with each lawyer or law firm representing the District in a debt 
transaction. No engagement letter is required for any lawyer who serves 
as counsel to the District regarding District matters generally. 

2. Bond Counsel - Bond counsel for each debt transaction is contracted by 
the Governing Body and serves to assist the District in such debt issue. 

3. Financial Advisor- If the District chooses to engage a financial advisor, 
the financial advisor for each debt transaction will be contracted by the 
Governing Body and will serve and assist the District on financial matters 
related to such debt transaction. The Governing Body shall approve the 
written agreement between the District and the financial advisor with 
respect to a debt transaction. The financial advisor shall not be permitted 
to bid on or underwrite an issue for which it is or has been providing 
advisory services. 

4. Underwriter - If there is an underwriter for a debt issue, the underwriter 
must clearly identify itself to the District in writing ( e.g., in a response to a 
request for proposals or in promotional materials provided to the District) 
as an underwriter and not as a financial advisor from the earliest stages of 
its relationship with the District with respect to that issue. The 
underwriter must clarify its primary role as a purchaser of securities in an 
arm's-length commercial transaction and must disclose that it has financial 

{000332/95287/0023601 l.DOC I Ver.I} 9 



and other interests that differ from those of the District. The underwriter 
in a publicly offered, negotiated sale shall be required to provide pricing 
information both as to interest rates and to takedown per maturity to the 
General Manager in advance of the pricing of the debt. 

M. Potential Conflicts of Interest 

Professionals involved in a debt transaction hired or compensated by the District shall be 
required to disclose existing client and business relationships between and among the 
professionals to a transaction (including but not limited to fmancial advisor, swap advisor, bond 
counsel, swap counsel, trustee, paying agent, underwriter, counterparty, and remarketing agent), 
as well as conduit issuers, sponsoring organizations and program administrators. This disclosure 
shall include that information reasonably sufficient to allow the District to appreciate the 
significance of the relationships. 

Professionals who become involved in the debt transaction as a result of a bid submitted 
in a widely and publicly advertised competitive sale conducted using an industry standard, 
electronic bidding platform are not subject to this disclosure. No disclosure is required that 
would violate any rule or regulation of professional conduct. 

Debt Administration 

A. Planning for Sale 

1. In considering the adoption of any debt resolution, the Governing Body 
shall consider the purpose of the financing, the proposed structure of the 
financing, the proposed method of sale for the financing, members of the 
proposed financing team and an estimate of all the costs associated with 
the financing. 

2. In the case of a proposed refunding, proposed use of credit enhancement, 
or proposed use of variable rate debt, the General Manager will present to 
the Governing Board the rationale for using the proposed debt structure, 
an estimate of the expected savings associated with the transaction (if 
applicable) and a discussion of the potential risks associated with the 
proposed structure. 

3. If required by Rule 15c2-12, the General Manager, the bond counsel, 
financial advisor (if applicable), along with other members of the 
financing team will prepare a Preliminary Official Statement describing 
the transaction and the security for the debt that is fully compliant with all 
legal requirements. 

B. Post Sale 

{000332/95287/0023601 l .DOC/ Ver. I} 10 



1. The General Manager will maintain for review by members of the 
Governing Body and the public a debt service schedule and the CT-0253 
Form related to the debt issue. 

2. The General Manager will establish guidelines and procedures for tracking 
the flow of all bond proceeds, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, 
over the life of bonds reporting to the IRS all arbitrage earnings associated 
with the financing and any tax liability that may be owed. 

3. If required by Rule 15c2-12, the General Manager, the bond counsel, 
financial advisor (if applicable), along with other members of the 
financing team will prepare an Official Statement describing the 
transaction and the security for the debt that is fully compliant with all 
legal requirements. 

C. Arbitrage 

Compliance with arbitrage requirements on invested tax-exempt bond funds will 
be maintained. Proceeds that are to be used to finance construction expenditures 
are exempted from the filing requirements, provided that the proceeds are spent in 
accordance with requirements established by the IRS. The District will comply 
with all of its tax certificates for tax-exempt financings by monitoring the 
arbitrage earning on bond proceeds on an interim basis and by rebating all 
positive arbitrage when due, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 148. The 
District will also retain all records relating to debt transactions for as long as the 
debt is outstanding, plus three years after the final redemption date of the 
transaction. 

D. Private Activity 

Compliance with private activity requirements with respect to tax exempt debt
financed facilities will be maintained. The General Manager shall maintain a 
record of the allocation of debt proceeds to expenditures, and monitor the use of 
tax exempt debt-financed facilities to ensure that no impermissible private use 
occurs. 

E. Investment of Proceeds 

Any proceeds or other funds available for investment by the District must be 
invested pursuant to applicable State law. 

Review of the Policy 

The debt policy guidelines outlined herein are only intended to provide general direction 
regarding the future use and execution of debt. The Governing Body maintains the right to 

{ 000332/95287 /002360 I I.DOC /Ver.I } 11 



modify these guidelines ( except to the extent these guidelines are mandated by applicable state 
law or regulation) and may make exceptions to any of them at any time to the extent that the 
execution of such debt achieves the Governing Body's goals. Any exceptions to these policies 
shall be expressly acknowledged in the resolution authorizing the pertinent debt issue. In the 
event of a conflict between the terms of a debt resolution and this policy, the terms of the debt 
resolution shall control. 

This policy will be periodically reviewed by the Governing Body, at which time, the General 
Manager will present any recommendations for any amendments, deletions, additions, 
improvement or clarification. 

Adoption of the Policy 

The Governing Body adopted this Policy on October 19, 2011, effective December 31, 2011. 

{000332/95287/0023601 l .DOC I Ver. I} 12 



10. LEAK ADJUSTMENT 

10.1 All water which passes through a water meter shall be purchased by the 
customer. Customers are responsible for keeping their plumbing repaired 
and in good working order. Failure to make timely repairs as determined 
by the DISTRICT will disqualify a customer for a leak adjustment. 

10.2 No leak adjustment shall be made until the customer submits proof to the 
DISTRICT of the location of the leak and proof that the leak has been 
located and repaired. The customer must present the DISTRICT with an 
affidavit or written statement from a plumber that the leak has been 
located and repaired unless the DISTRICT's General Manager determines 
that the customer was capable of repairing the leak, and the customer 
presents proof that such repair was made. The customer must submit an 
official leak adjustment request form to the DISTRICT'S office which 
form can be obtained by calling the DISTRICT'S office. 

10.3 No leak adjustment shall be made for leaks in a customer's irrigation 
system or in a customer's pool, pool supply lines or equipment. 

10.4 Each customer shall be allowed no more than one billing adjustment 
during any 365 day period for leaks on the customer's premises. This 
adjustment shall be calculated as follows: 

STEP 1: 

STEP 2: 

STEP 3: 

STEP4: 

Find the average bill for the customer over the preceding 
three month period. Provided the customer timely reported 
and repaired the leak, the preceding three month period 
shall not include a month in which the leak occurred. 
When the customer has used water for irrigation or a pool 
in any month within this past three month period, the 
average bill for the customer shall be computed using the 
most previous three months when water usage did not 
include water used for irrigation or a pool as determined by 
the District. When a customer does not have three months 
of prior water usage or three months prior water usage 
without water used for irrigation or a pool, the average bill 
shall be based upon the average monthly water usage of the 
DISTRICT'S customers. 

Deduct the average from STEP 1 from the total of the 
billing being adjusted. 

Divide the remainder from STEP 2 by two (2). 

The product from STEP 3 shall be the amount to be 
deducted from the billing being adjusted. 

19 



The remaining balance shall be paid by the customer. In hardship cases 
monthly payments may be arranged, but shall not to exceed twelve (12) 
consecutive monthly installments without interest accruing. 

20 



	

	 
 
March 29, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Mike Jones, General Manager 
Milcrofton Utility District 
6333 Arno Road 
Franklin, Tennessee 37064 
 
Re:  Order from the Tennessee Utility Management Review Board 
 
Dear Mr. Jones: 
 
In November of 2020, Milcrofton Utility District (“the District”) engaged Jackson Thornton & Co. (“JT”) to 
conduct a Cost of Service Study on its operations for FY 2020.  This is the eighth study that JT has 
performed for the District since FY 2007. 
 
Based on the results of our analysis, there is no immediate need to raise user rates.  We also believe the 
connection fees and tap fees to be sufficient. 
 
Should you have any question, please do not hesitate to give me a call.  My cell is (334)451-2196. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
JACKSON THORNTON & CO., P.C. 

 
 
 
 
 

James B. Marshall, III 
Principal 
	



2020 Water Cost of Service Study 
12 Months Ended September 30, 2020 
Milcrofton Utility District



Summary

2



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Summary of Cost of Service Allocation

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

TOTAL REV. REQ.

Operations & Maintenance 5,715,865$    4,694,201$    223,056$    387,049$     411,559$     5,715,865$    

Plus: Debt Service 220,729$       185,779$       8,506$        12,901$      13,543$      220,729$       

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 2,923,389$    2,460,500$    112,656$    170,863$     179,370$     2,923,389$    

Total Revenue Requirement 8,859,983$    7,340,480$    344,218$    570,813$     604,472$     8,859,983$    

Less: Other Revenue 604,162$       546,146$       14,091$      26,957.0$    16,968.1$    604,162$       

Rate Requirement 8,255,821$    6,794,334$    330,128$    543,856$     587,504$     8,255,821$    

Annual Sales (Kgal) 979,945         783,340         46,829        65,749        84,027        979,945         

Rate Rev. Req./Kgal 8.42$             8.67$             7.05$          8.27$          6.99$          8.42$             

Rate Rev. Req./Customer 71.35$           63.48$           147.64$      120.56$      304.88$      71.35$           

CUSTOMER Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Operations & Maintenance 1,519,324$    1,405,422$    29,362$      59,236$      25,304$      1,519,324$    

Plus: Debt Service 220,729$       185,779$       8,506$        12,901$      13,543$      220,729$       

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 748,167$       692,078$       14,459$      29,170$      12,461$      748,167$       

Total Revenue Requirement 2,488,220$    2,283,278$    52,327$      101,307$     51,308$      2,488,220$    

Less: Other Revenue 604,162$       546,146$       14,091$      26,957$      16,968$      604,162$       

Rate Requirement 1,884,059$    1,737,132$    38,236$      74,350$      34,340$      1,884,059$    

Annual Billings 115,701         107,027         2,236          4,511          1,927          115,701         

Calculated Customer Charge 16.23$           17.10$        16.48$        17.82$        

CONSUMPTION Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Operations & Maintenance 4,196,541$    3,288,779$    193,694$    327,813$     386,254$     4,196,541$    

Plus: Debt Service -$               -$               -$           -$            -$            -$               

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 2,175,222$    1,768,423$    98,197$      141,693$     166,909$     2,175,222$    

Total Revenue Requirement 6,371,763$    5,057,202$    291,892$    469,506$     553,163$     6,371,763$    

Less: Other Revenue -$               -$               -$           -$            -$            -$               

Rate Requirement 6,371,763$    5,057,202$    291,892$    469,506$     553,163$     6,371,763$    

Calculated Water Rate (Kgal) 6.46$             6.23$          7.14$          6.58$          

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Current Rate Revenue 8,345,544$    6,595,074$    494,494$    515,793$     740,183$     8,345,544$    

Over/(Under) Recovery 89,723$         (199,260)$      164,366$    (28,063)$     152,679$     89,723$         

Total Revenue 8,949,706$    7,141,219$    508,585$    542,750$     757,151$     8,949,706$    

Over/(Under) Recovery 89,723$         (199,260)$      164,366$    (28,063)$     152,679$     89,723$         

3

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Summary of Results

Main Menu

101% 97%

148%

95%

125%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Recovery by Rate Class

Operations & 
Maintenance

29%

Purchased Water
36%

Debt Service
2%

Rate Funded Capital
33%

Revenue Requirement

4

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


 $-

 $1.00

 $2.00

 $3.00

 $4.00

 $5.00

 $6.00

 $7.00

 $8.00

 $9.00

 $10.00

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Rev. Req./Kgal

Operations & Maintenance Purchased Water Debt Service Rate Funded Capital

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Rev. Req. by Rate Class

Operations & Maintenance Purchased Water Debt Service Rate Funded Capital

5



Res
83%

Comm
4%

Res Irr
6%

Comm Irr
7%

Revenue Requirement by Class

Res
80%

Comm
6%

Res Irr
6%

Comm Irr
8%

Current Revenue

6



0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

180%

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Recovery Comparison

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2012 FY 2014 FY 2016 FY 2018 FY 2020

$8.42 $8.67 

$7.05 

$8.27 

$6.99 

$8.52 $8.42 

$10.56 

$7.84 
$8.81 

 $-

 $2.00

 $4.00

 $6.00

 $8.00

 $10.00

 $12.00

Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Required vs. Rate

Rate Requirement Current Rate/kGal

7



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

2 Year Comparison

Main Menu

Revenue Requirement 2009 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 Difference ($)

Difference 

(%)

Operations & Maintenance 2,443,642$    2,864,901$    3,659,141$    4,310,910$    5,552,443$    5,715,865$    163,422$    2.9%

Plus: Debt Service 544,595$    544,595$    765,010$    620,697$    220,728$    220,729$    1$    0.0%

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 800,000$    920,945$    1,226,460$    1,523,202$    1,826,916$    2,923,389$    1,096,473$    60.0%

Total Revenue Requirement 3,788,237$    4,330,441$    5,650,611$    6,454,809$    7,600,087$    8,859,983$    1,259,896$    16.6%

Less: Other Revenue 542,824$    514,869$    588,015$    559,707$    552,050$    604,162$    52,112$    9.4%

Rate Requirement 3,245,413$    3,815,572$    5,062,596$    5,895,102$    7,048,037$    8,255,821$    1,207,784$    17.1%

Annual Sales (Kgal) 404,936         461,263         499,634         638,044         820,196         979,945         159,749         19.5%

Rate Requirement per Kgal 8.01$    8.27$    10.13$    9.24$    8.59$    8.42$    (0.17)$    

Revenue Requirement per kGal 2009 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 Difference

Operations & Maintenance 6.03$    6.21$    7.32$    6.76$    6.77$    5.83$    (0.94)$    

Plus: Debt Service 1.34$    1.18$    1.53$    0.97$    0.27$    0.23$    (0.04)$    

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 1.98$    2.00$    2.45$    2.39$    2.23$    2.98$    0.76$    

Total Revenue Requirement 9.36$    9.39$    11.31$    10.12$    9.27$    9.04$    (0.22)$    

Less: Other Revenue 1.34$    1.12$    1.18$    0.88$    0.67$    0.62$    (0.06)$    

Rate Requirement 8.01$    8.27$    10.13$    9.24$    8.59$    8.42$    (0.17)$    

8

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Res

Main Menu

Cost of Service Current Proposed Difference

Customer Charge 16.23$              16.00$                   16.00$                 -$                   

0-10,000 gallons 6.46$                6.24$                      6.24$                   -$                   

10,000-20,000 gallons 6.74$                      6.74$                   -$                   

20,000-30,000 gallons 7.24$                      7.24$                   -$                   

30,000-40,000 gallons 7.74$                      7.74$                   -$                   

All Usage over 40,000 Gallons 8.24$                      8.24$                   -$                   

Usage (Kgal) COS Rates Current Rates Proposed Rates Monthly Change

Daily 

Change COS Rate/kGal

Current 

Rate/kGal

Proposed 

Rate/kGal

Change/

Kgal

1                                              22.69$              22.24$                   22.24$                 -$                   -$       22.69$             22.24$       22.24$        -$       

2                                              29.14$              28.48$                   28.48$                 -$                   -$       14.57$             14.24$       14.24$        -$       

4                                              42.05$              40.96$                   40.96$                 -$                   -$       10.51$             10.24$       10.24$        -$       

6                                              54.97$              53.44$                   53.44$                 -$                   -$       9.16$               8.91$         8.91$          -$       

7                                              61.42$              59.68$                   59.68$                 -$                   -$       8.77$               8.53$         8.53$          -$       

8                                              67.88$              65.92$                   65.92$                 -$                   -$       8.48$               8.24$         8.24$          -$       

10                                            80.79$              78.40$                   78.40$                 -$                   -$       8.08$               7.84$         7.84$          -$       

15                                            113.07$            112.10$                 112.10$               -$                   -$       7.54$               7.47$         7.47$          -$       

20                                            145.35$            145.80$                 145.80$               -$                   -$       7.27$               7.29$         7.29$          -$       

40                                            274.47$            295.60$                 295.60$               -$                   -$       6.86$               7.39$         7.39$          -$       

Average Usage 7,319                      

Proposed Increase in Customer Revenue -$                   

Proposed Increase in Usage Revenue

Proposed Increase in Revenue -$                   

Current Recovery (199,260)$         

 $-

 $5.00

 $10.00

 $15.00

 $20.00

 $25.00

 1  2  4  6  7  8  1
0

 1
5

 2
0

 4
0

$
/K

ga
l

Residental Cost Curve/Kgal

COS/Kgal Current/Kgal Proposed/Kgal

9

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Comm

Main Menu

Cost of Service Current Proposed Difference

Customer Charge 17.10$              25.00$                   25.00$                 -$                   

0-10,000 gallons 6.23$                6.24$                      6.24$                   -$                   

10,000-20,000 gallons 6.74$                      6.74$                   -$                   

20,000-30,000 gallons 7.24$                      7.24$                   -$                   

30,000-40,000 gallons 7.74$                      7.74$                   -$                   

All Usage over 40,000 Gallons 8.24$                      8.24$                   -$                   

Usage (Kgal) COS Rates Current Rates Proposed Rates Monthly Change

Daily 

Change COS Rate/kGal

Current 

Rate/kGal

Proposed 

Rate/kGal

Change/

Kgal

1                                              23.33$              31.24$                   31.24$                 -$                   -$       23.33$             31.24$     31.24$      -$       

5                                              48.27$              56.20$                   56.20$                 -$                   -$       9.65$               11.24$     11.24$      -$       

10                                            79.43$              87.40$                   87.40$                 -$                   -$       7.94$               8.74$       8.74$        -$       

15                                            110.60$            121.10$                 121.10$               -$                   -$       7.37$               8.07$       8.07$        -$       

20                                            141.76$            154.80$                 154.80$               -$                   -$       7.09$               7.74$       7.74$        -$       

25                                            172.93$            191.00$                 191.00$               -$                   -$       6.92$               7.64$       7.64$        -$       

30                                            204.10$            227.20$                 227.20$               -$                   -$       6.80$               7.57$       7.57$        -$       

35                                            235.26$            265.90$                 265.90$               -$                   -$       6.72$               7.60$       7.60$        -$       

40                                            266.43$            304.60$                 304.60$               -$                   -$       6.66$               7.62$       7.62$        -$       

45                                            297.59$            345.80$                 345.80$               -$                   -$       6.61$               7.68$       7.68$        -$       

Average Usage 20,943                   

Proposed Increase in Customer Revenue -$                   

Proposed Increase in Usage Revenue

Proposed Increase in Revenue -$                   

Current Recovery 164,366$          

 $-

 $5.00

 $10.00

 $15.00

 $20.00

 $25.00

 $30.00

 $35.00

 1  5  1
0

 1
5

 2
0

 2
5

 3
0

 3
5

 4
0

 4
5

$
/K

ga
l

Com Cost Curve/Kgal

COS/Kgal Current/Kgal Proposed/Kgal

10

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Billing Data

11



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Customer Billing Data

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Customer Billings Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Jan-20 8,814         189            366            157           9,526       

Feb-20 8,853         193            368            158           9,572       

Mar-20 8,886         186            368            156           9,596       

Apr-20 8,917         185            376            156           9,634       

May-20 8,965         194            380            159           9,698       

Jun-20 9,024         185            388            164           9,761       

Jul-20 9,066         186            390            166           9,808       

Aug-20 9,081         184            392            166           9,823       

Sep-20 9,131         178            393            167           9,869       

Oct-19 8,699         184            361            158           9,402       

Nov-19 8,782         190            366            164           9,502       

Dec-19 8,809         182            363            156           9,510       

Total Customers 107,027     2,236         4,511         1,927        115,701   

Weighting Factor 2.00           1.00           2.00           1.00          

Weighted Customers 214,054     2,236         9,022         1,927        227,239   

AF

21  Total Customers 93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

25  Weighted Customers 94% 1% 4% 1% 100%

12

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Water Billing Data

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Water Billings Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Jan-20 39,413,689         2,776,614     219,431        62,517          42,472,252         

Feb-20 38,799,374         3,647,183     317,253        366,496        43,130,306         

Mar-20 36,407,881         3,302,685     112,806        53,171          39,876,543         

Apr-20 42,204,568         2,683,928     222,069        366,985        45,477,549         

May-20 52,221,206         2,909,110     2,178,977     1,853,697     59,162,989         

Jun-20 64,024,301         3,944,590     5,357,311     8,580,116     81,906,319         

Jul-20 94,755,475         4,537,861     11,068,959   12,088,828   122,451,123       

Aug-20 98,362,001         4,303,946     12,445,767   15,452,285   130,563,999       

Sep-20 94,089,608         4,418,219     11,881,937   15,265,412   125,655,177       

Oct-19 106,743,945       6,377,987     13,450,585   14,935,555   141,508,072       

Nov-19 75,094,296         4,805,220     7,766,157     13,981,697   101,647,370       

Dec-19 41,223,810         3,121,341     727,313        1,020,715     46,093,178         

Total Water Sales 783,340,153       46,828,683   65,748,566   84,027,475   979,944,877       

1-CP 106,743,945       6,377,987     13,450,585   14,935,555   141,508,072       

12-NCP 106,743,945       6,377,987     13,450,585   15,452,285   142,024,802       

AF

30   Total Water Sales 79.94% 4.78% 6.71% 8.57% 100.00%

33   1-CP 75.43% 4.51% 9.51% 10.55% 100.00%

34   12-NCP 75.16% 4.49% 9.47% 10.88% 100.00%

13

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Average Usage per Customer

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Jan-20 4,472     14,691   600        398          

Feb-20 4,383     18,897   862        2,320       

Mar-20 4,097     17,756   307        341          

Apr-20 4,733     14,508   591        2,352       

May-20 5,825     14,995   5,734     11,658     

Jun-20 7,095     21,322   13,808   52,318     

Jul-20 10,452   24,397   28,382   72,824     

Aug-20 10,832   23,391   31,749   93,086     

Sep-20 10,304   24,821   30,234   91,410     

Oct-19 12,271   34,663   37,259   94,529     

Nov-19 8,551     25,291   21,219   85,254     

Dec-19 4,680     17,150   2,004     6,543       

Average 7,308     20,990   14,396   42,753     

Summer Average (Jun-Oct) 10,191   25,719   28,286   80,833     

Winter Average 5,249     17,613   4,474     15,552     

14

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Revenue Billing Data

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Revenue Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Jan-20 390,666$      33,039$     7,420$          8,918$       440,042$                 

Feb-20 387,468$      40,702$     8,250$          11,621$     448,041$                 

Mar-20 372,992$      38,351$     6,634$          9,257$       427,235$                 

Apr-20 410,046$      33,403$     7,432$          11,236$     462,117$                 

May-20 475,966$      35,135$     20,454$        22,633$     554,188$                 

Jun-20 556,295$      43,437$     42,758$        76,358$     718,848$                 

Jul-20 769,045$      48,074$     83,905$        103,664$   1,004,687$              

Aug-20 796,555$      45,836$     94,188$        131,054$   1,067,634$              

Sep-20 768,159$      46,679$     89,887$        129,682$   1,034,406$              

Oct-19 857,668$      61,864$     102,521$      126,258$   1,148,311$              

Nov-19 632,005$      49,052$     59,209$        118,826$   859,091$                 

Dec-19 402,104$      35,710$     10,647$        15,804$     464,264$                 

Total Revenue 6,818,968$   511,282$   533,304$      765,311$   8,628,865$              

Booked Revenue

8,345,544$              

AF

50   Total Revenue 79.03% 5.93% 6.18% 8.87% 100%

15

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Revenue per Kgal

Main Menu

1 2 3 4

Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr

Jan-20 9.91$     11.90$   33.81$   142.64$   

Feb-20 9.99$     11.16$   26.00$   31.71$     

Mar-20 10.24$   11.61$   58.80$   174.11$   

Apr-20 9.72$     12.45$   33.47$   30.62$     

May-20 9.11$     12.08$   9.39$     12.21$     

Jun-20 8.69$     11.01$   7.98$     8.90$       

Jul-20 8.12$     10.59$   7.58$     8.58$       

Aug-20 8.10$     10.65$   7.57$     8.48$       

Sep-20 8.16$     10.57$   7.56$     8.50$       

Oct-19 8.03$     9.70$     7.62$     8.45$       

Nov-19 8.42$     10.21$   7.62$     8.50$       

Dec-19 9.75$     11.44$   14.64$   15.48$     

Average 8.70$     10.92$   8.11$     9.11$       

16

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Other Revenues 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Actual Adj. Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Operating Income Cust

Labor Charges 2,394$        2,394$        21 2,215$        46$          93$          40$          2,394$        * 100% 2,215$        46$          93$          40$          2,394$        

Trip Charges 18,200$      18,200$      21 16,836$      352$        710$        303$        18,200$      * 100% 16,836$      352$        710$        303$        18,200$      

Application Fees 141,500$    141,500$    21 130,892$    2,735$     5,517$     2,357$     141,500$    * 100% 130,892$    2,735$     5,517$     2,357$     141,500$    

Meter Sales (net) 9,310$        9,310$        21 8,612$        180$        363$        155$        9,310$        * 100% 8,612$        180$        363$        155$        9,310$        

Temporary Meter Fee 2,700$        2,700$        21 2,498$        52$          105$        45$          2,700$        * 100% 2,498$        52$          105$        45$          2,700$        

Install & Connection Fees 47,000$      47,000$      21 43,476$      908$        1,832$     783$        47,000$      * 100% 43,476$      908$        1,832$     783$        47,000$      

Penalties 68,159$      68,159$      25 64,204$      671$        2,706$     578$        68,159$      * 100% 64,204$      671$        2,706$     578$        68,159$      

Service & Late Charges 23,050$      23,050$      25 21,713$      227$        915$        195$        23,050$      * 100% 21,713$      227$        915$        195$        23,050$      

Return Check Charges 1,380$        1,380$        25 1,300$        14$          55$          12$          1,380$        * 100% 1,300$        14$          55$          12$          1,380$        

Inspection Fees 1,600$        1,600$        21 1,480$        31$          62$          27$          1,600$        * 100% 1,480$        31$          62$          27$          1,600$        

Flow Test Fees 98,550$      98,550$      21 91,162$      1,905$     3,842$     1,641$     98,550$      * 100% 91,162$      1,905$     3,842$     1,641$     98,550$      

Misc. Income 18,613$      18,613$      21 17,218$      360$        726$        310$        18,613$      * 100% 17,218$      360$        726$        310$        18,613$      

Bad Debts (2,912)$      (2,912)$      21 (2,694)$      (56)$         (114)$       (49)$         (2,912)$      * 100% (2,694)$      (56)$         (114)$       (49)$         (2,912)$      
Subtotal Operating 429,543$    -$         429,543$    398,910$    7,423$     16,813$   6,397$     429,543$    * 398,910$    7,423$     16,813$   6,397$     429,543$    

Non-Operating Income

Interest & Dividend Income 171,418$    171,418$    64 144,276$    6,606$     10,019$   10,518$   171,418$    * 100% 144,276$    6,606$     10,019$   10,518$   171,418$    

Gain (loss) on Sale of Assets 3,200$        3,200$        21 2,960$        62$          125$        53$          3,200$        * 100% 2,960$        62$          125$        53$          3,200$        
Subtotal Non-Operating 174,618$    -$         174,618$    147,236$    6,668$     10,144$   10,571$   174,618$    * 147,236$    6,668$     10,144$   10,571$   174,618$    

Total Other Revenue 604,162$    -$         604,162$    546,146$    14,091$   26,957$   16,968$   604,162$    * 546,146$    14,091$   26,957$   16,968$   604,162$    

90.40% 2.33% 4.46% 2.81% 100%

17

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Allocation Factors

18



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation Factors

Main Menu

1 2 3 4 478,518,520    501,426,357     979,944,877    

Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total

Load Curve 49% 51% 100%

CUSTOMER MSC 36% 38% 25% 100%

Res 1 100% 0% 0% 0% 100% * FP 42% 43% 15% 100%

Comm 2 0% 100% 0% 0% 100% * All 29% 30% 25% 15% 100%

Res Irr 3 0% 0% 100% 0% 100% *

Comm Irr 4 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% *

Total Customers 21 93% 2% 4% 2% 100% * Avg Day Capacity

Weighted Customers 25 94% 1% 4% 1% 100% * Production Curve 0% 100% 100%

BASE/EXTRA CAPACITY

Total Water Sales 30 80% 5% 7% 9% 100% *

1-CP 33 75% 5% 10% 11% 100% *

12-NCP 34 75% 4% 9% 11% 100% *

Max Day Demand 35 80% 5% 7% 9% 100% *

FIRE PROTECTION

Fire Protection 40 96% 4% 0% 0% 100% *

REVENUE

Total Revenue 50 79% 6% 6% 9% 100% *

PLANT

Treat & Dist Plant 60 84% 4% 6% 6% 100% *

General Plant 61 90% 2% 4% 3% 100% *

Total Utility Plant 62 84% 4% 6% 6% 100% *

Net Utility Plant 63 84% 4% 6% 6% 100% *

Debt Service 64 84% 4% 6% 6% 100% *

19

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Development of Minimum System

Main Menu

Size Feet $/Foot Extended Cost

.75" 244,808      17.00$     4,161,735$        

1" 443             18.00$     7,970$               

2" 2,952          25.00$     73,795$             

4" 67,030        48.00$     3,217,460$        

6" 400,572      52.00$     20,829,760$      

8" 515,156      65.00$     33,485,144$      

10" 140,000      85.00$     11,899,978$      

12" 110,279      100.00$   11,027,871$      

16" 89,467        130.00$   11,630,711$      

18" 28,975        145.00$   4,201,342$        

20" 131             165.00$   21,696$             

24" 6,140          200.00$   1,228,079$        

30" 30384.984 250.00$   7,596,246$        

1,636,338   109,381,787$    

Miles 310             

Minimum Plant 1,636,338   17.00$     27,817,752$      

Minimum System Percentage 25%

20

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Development of Fire Protection Allocation

Main Menu

Res Comm Res Irr

Comm 

Irr Total

Customers 107,027   2,236   4,511   1,927   115,701   

Flow Requirements (GPM) 500          1,000   -      -      

Duration 60            60        60        60        

FP Requirements (MG) 3,211       134      -      -      3,345       

AF

40 Fire Protection 95.99% 4.01% 0.00% 0.00% 100%

Percent Asset Sized for FP Consideration 15%

21

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Plant

22



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Classification of Plant

Main Menu

Actual Adj. Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Description Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 4,432,244$      4,432,244$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 1,289,244$      1,350,964$      1,127,199$      664,837$         4,432,244$      

Tanks 2,794,976$      2,794,976$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 812,999$         851,919$         710,813$         419,246$         2,794,976$      

Pump Station 1,950,589$      1,950,589$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 567,384$         594,546$         496,070$         292,588$         1,950,589$      

Mains & Meters 5,020,459$      5,020,459$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 1,460,344$      1,530,254$      1,276,793$      753,069$         5,020,459$      

Meters 342,999$         342,999$         10% 0% 90% 0% 100% * 34,300$           -$                308,699$         -$                342,999$         

Mains & Pump Station 380,247$         380,247$         49% 51% 0% 0% 100% As LC * 185,679$         194,568$         -$                -$                380,247$         

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 1,502,948$      1,502,948$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 437,175$         458,104$         382,227$         225,442$         1,502,948$      

Connection to Franklin 18,729$           18,729$           100% 0% 0% 0% 100% * 18,729$           -$                -$                -$                18,729$           

"Location" Lines 9,976,227$      9,976,227$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 2,901,870$      3,040,789$      2,537,134$      1,496,434$      9,976,227$      

Capitalized Interest 1,018,108$      1,018,108$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 296,146$         310,323$         258,923$         152,716$         1,018,108$      

Mallory Valley Improvement 1,765,840$      1,765,840$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 513,645$         538,234$         449,085$         264,876$         1,765,840$      

Arno Rd 1,250,466$      1,250,466$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 363,734$         381,146$         318,016$         187,570$         1,250,466$      

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 4,472,842$      4,472,842$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 1,301,054$      1,363,338$      1,137,524$      670,926$         4,472,842$      

Donated Distribution System 32,217,122$    32,217,122$    29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 9,371,268$      9,819,893$      8,193,392$      4,832,568$      32,217,122$    

Misc Equip 728,162$         728,162$         29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 211,807$         221,946$         185,185$         109,224$         728,162$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 1,442,852$      1,442,852$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 419,695$         439,786$         366,943$         216,428$         1,442,852$      

Liberty Pike 5,376,095$      5,376,095$      29% 30% 25% 15% 100% As LC/MSC/FP * 1,563,790$      1,638,653$      1,367,238$      806,414$         5,376,095$      
Subtotal Distribution Plant 74,690,904$    -$              74,690,904$    21,748,861$    22,734,464$    19,115,239$    11,092,339$    74,690,904$    

29% 30% 26% 15% 100%

General Plant

Land 167,369$         167,369$         0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                167,369$         -$                167,369$         

Building & Improvements 907,290$         907,290$         0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                907,290$         -$                907,290$         

Office Equipment 95,291$           95,291$           0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                95,291$           -$                95,291$           

Furniture & Fixtures 50,359$           50,359$           0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                50,359$           -$                50,359$           

Site Improvements 162,277$         162,277$         0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                162,277$         -$                162,277$         

Auto/Transport Equip 547,291$         547,291$         29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 159,363$         166,585$         140,065$         81,278$           547,291$         

Computer Software 156,996$         156,996$         0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$                -$                156,996$         -$                156,996$         
Subtotal General Plant 2,086,873$      -$              2,086,873$      159,363$         166,585$         1,679,647$      81,278$           2,086,873$      

8% 8% 80% 4% 100%
Total Utility Plant in Service 76,777,777$    -$              76,777,777$    21,908,224$    22,901,049$    20,794,887$    11,173,618$    76,777,777$    

29% 30% 27% 15% 100%

Constr. Work in Progress 3,324,844$      3,324,844$      29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 968,144$         1,012,018$      850,909$         493,772$         3,324,844$      

Total Utility Plant 80,102,621$    -$              80,102,621$    22,876,368$    23,913,067$    21,645,796$    11,667,390$    80,102,621$    

29% 30% 27% 15% 100%

Accum. Depr. 19,500,806$    19,500,806$    29% 30% 27% 15% 100% As TUPIS * 5,564,475$      5,816,643$      5,281,698$      2,837,990$      19,500,806$    
Accumulated Depreciation 19,500,806$    -$              19,500,806$    5,564,475$      5,816,643$      5,281,698$      2,837,990$      19,500,806$    

29% 30% 27% 15% 100%
Net Utility Plant 60,601,815$    -$              60,601,815$    17,311,893$    18,096,424$    16,364,098$    8,829,400$      60,601,815$    

29% 30% 27% 15% 100%

23

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Base Plant 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 1,289,244$      30 1,030,585$      61,609$        86,501$        110,549$      1,289,244$      

Tanks 812,999$         30 649,888$         38,851$        54,547$        69,712$        812,999$         

Pump Station 567,384$         30 453,551$         27,114$        38,068$        48,652$        567,384$         

Mains & Meters 1,460,344$      30 1,167,357$      69,786$        97,981$        125,220$      1,460,344$      

Meters 34,300$           30 27,418$           1,639$          2,301$          2,941$          34,300$           

Mains & Pump Station 185,679$         30 148,427$         8,873$          12,458$        15,921$        185,679$         

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 437,175$         30 349,466$         20,891$        29,332$        37,487$        437,175$         

Connection to Franklin 18,729$           30 14,971$           895$             1,257$          1,606$          18,729$           

"Location" Lines 2,901,870$      30 2,319,672$      138,672$      194,698$      248,827$      2,901,870$      

Capitalized Interest 296,146$         30 236,730$         14,152$        19,870$        25,394$        296,146$         

Mallory Valley Improvement 513,645$         30 410,593$         24,546$        34,463$        44,044$        513,645$         

Arno Rd 363,734$         30 290,758$         17,382$        24,404$        31,189$        363,734$         

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 1,301,054$      30 1,040,025$      62,174$        87,293$        111,562$      1,301,054$      

Donated Distribution System 9,371,268$      30 7,491,126$      447,825$      628,757$      803,559$      9,371,268$      

Misc Equip 211,807$         30 169,312$         10,122$        14,211$        18,162$        211,807$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 419,695$         30 335,492$         20,056$        28,159$        35,988$        419,695$         

Liberty Pike 1,563,790$      30 1,250,050$      74,729$        104,921$      134,091$      1,563,790$      

Subtotal Distribution Plant 21,748,861$    17,385,423$    1,039,314$   1,459,221$   1,864,903$   21,748,861$    

General Plant

Land -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Building & Improvements -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Office Equipment -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Furniture & Fixtures -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Site Improvements -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Auto/Transport Equip 159,363$         30 127,390$         7,615$          10,692$        13,665$        159,363$         

Computer Software -$                 30 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Subtotal General Plant 159,363$         127,390$         7,615$          10,692$        13,665$        159,363$         

Total Utility Plant in Service 21,908,224$    17,512,813$    1,046,930$   1,469,914$   1,878,568$   21,908,224$    

Constr. Work in Progress 968,144$         30 773,907$         46,265$        64,957$        83,016$        968,144$         

Total Utility Plant 22,876,368$    18,286,720$    1,093,194$   1,534,870$   1,961,583$   22,876,368$    

Accum. Depr. 5,564,475$      30 4,448,084$      265,910$      373,344$      477,138$      5,564,475$      
Accumulated Depreciation 5,564,475$      4,448,084$      265,910$      373,344$      477,138$      5,564,475$      

Net Utility Plant 17,311,893$    13,838,637$    827,284$      1,161,527$   1,484,445$   17,311,893$    

80% 5% 7% 9% 100%

24

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Extra Capacity Plant 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 1,350,964$      33 1,019,074$      60,890$        128,411$      142,588$      1,350,964$      

Tanks 851,919$         33 642,629$         38,397$        80,976$        89,916$        851,919$         

Pump Station 594,546$         33 448,485$         26,797$        56,513$        62,752$        594,546$         

Mains & Meters 1,530,254$      33 1,154,318$      68,971$        145,453$      161,512$      1,530,254$      

Meters -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Mains & Pump Station 194,568$         33 146,769$         8,769$          18,494$        20,536$        194,568$         

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 458,104$         33 345,562$         20,647$        43,544$        48,351$        458,104$         

Connection to Franklin -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

"Location" Lines 3,040,789$      33 2,293,762$      137,053$      289,032$      320,942$      3,040,789$      

Capitalized Interest 310,323$         33 234,086$         13,987$        29,497$        32,753$        310,323$         

Mallory Valley Improvement 538,234$         33 406,007$         24,259$        51,160$        56,808$        538,234$         

Arno Rd 381,146$         33 287,511$         17,179$        36,229$        40,228$        381,146$         

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 1,363,338$      33 1,028,408$      61,448$        129,588$      143,894$      1,363,338$      

Donated Distribution System 9,819,893$      33 7,407,451$      442,598$      933,398$      1,036,447$   9,819,893$      

Misc Equip 221,946$         33 167,421$         10,003$        21,096$        23,425$        221,946$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 439,786$         33 331,745$         19,822$        41,802$        46,418$        439,786$         

Liberty Pike 1,638,653$      33 1,236,087$      73,857$        155,757$      172,953$      1,638,653$      

Subtotal Distribution Plant 22,734,464$    17,149,314$    1,024,677$   2,160,950$   2,399,523$   22,734,464$    

General Plant

Land -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Building & Improvements -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Office Equipment -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Furniture & Fixtures -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Site Improvements -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Auto/Transport Equip 166,585$         33 125,660$         7,508$          15,834$        17,582$        166,585$         

Computer Software -$                 33 -$                 -$              -$              -$              -$                 

Subtotal General Plant 166,585$         125,660$         7,508$          15,834$        17,582$        166,585$         

Total Utility Plant in Service 22,901,049$    17,274,974$    1,032,186$   2,176,784$   2,417,105$   22,901,049$    

Constr. Work in Progress 1,012,018$      33 763,397$         45,613$        96,194$        106,814$      1,012,018$      

Total Utility Plant 23,913,067$    18,038,371$    1,077,799$   2,272,978$   2,523,919$   23,913,067$    

Accum. Depr. 5,816,643$      33 4,387,675$      262,165$      552,882$      613,921$      5,816,643$      
Accumulated Depreciation 5,816,643$      4,387,675$      262,165$      552,882$      613,921$      5,816,643$      

Net Utility Plant 18,096,424$    13,650,696$    815,634$      1,720,096$   1,909,998$   18,096,424$    

75% 5% 10% 11% 100%

25

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Customer Plant 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 1,127,199$      21 1,042,694$      21,784$     43,948$     18,774$     1,127,199$      

Tanks 710,813$         21 657,524$         13,737$     27,713$     11,839$     710,813$         

Pump Station 496,070$         21 458,880$         9,587$       19,341$     8,262$       496,070$         

Mains & Meters 1,276,793$      21 1,181,073$      24,675$     49,780$     21,265$     1,276,793$      

Meters 308,699$         21 285,556$         5,966$       12,036$     5,141$       308,699$         

Mains & Pump Station -$                 21 -$                 -$           -$           -$           -$                 

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 382,227$         21 353,571$         7,387$       14,902$     6,366$       382,227$         

Connection to Franklin -$                 21 -$                 -$           -$           -$           -$                 

"Location" Lines 2,537,134$      21 2,346,927$      49,032$     98,919$     42,256$     2,537,134$      

Capitalized Interest 258,923$         21 239,512$         5,004$       10,095$     4,312$       258,923$         

Mallory Valley Improvement 449,085$         21 415,417$         8,679$       17,509$     7,480$       449,085$         

Arno Rd 318,016$         21 294,175$         6,146$       12,399$     5,297$       318,016$         

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 1,137,524$      21 1,052,245$      21,983$     44,350$     18,945$     1,137,524$      

Donated Distribution System 8,193,392$      21 7,579,141$      158,343$    319,447$    136,461$    8,193,392$      

Misc Equip 185,185$         21 171,301$         3,579$       7,220$       3,084$       185,185$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 366,943$         21 339,434$         7,091$       14,307$     6,111$       366,943$         

Liberty Pike 1,367,238$      21 1,264,737$      26,423$     53,306$     22,771$     1,367,238$      

Subtotal Distribution Plant 19,115,239$    17,682,187$    369,415$    745,273$    318,364$    19,115,239$    

General Plant

Land 167,369$         21 154,821$         3,235$       6,525$       2,788$       167,369$         

Building & Improvements 907,290$         21 839,272$         17,534$     35,374$     15,111$     907,290$         

Office Equipment 95,291$           21 88,147$           1,842$       3,715$       1,587$       95,291$           

Furniture & Fixtures 50,359$           21 46,584$           973$          1,963$       839$          50,359$           

Site Improvements 162,277$         21 150,111$         3,136$       6,327$       2,703$       162,277$         

Auto/Transport Equip 140,065$         21 129,565$         2,707$       5,461$       2,333$       140,065$         

Computer Software 156,996$         21 145,226$         3,034$       6,121$       2,615$       156,996$         

Subtotal General Plant 1,679,647$      1,553,726$      32,460$     65,487$     27,975$     1,679,647$      

Total Utility Plant in Service 20,794,887$    19,235,913$    401,875$    810,760$    346,339$    20,794,887$    

Constr. Work in Progress 850,909$         21 787,117$         16,444$     33,176$     14,172$     850,909$         

Total Utility Plant 21,645,796$    20,023,030$    418,320$    843,936$    360,511$    21,645,796$    

Accum. Depr. 5,281,698$      21 4,885,734$      102,072$    205,925$    87,967$     5,281,698$      
Accumulated Depreciation 5,281,698$      4,885,734$      102,072$    205,925$    87,967$     5,281,698$      

Net Utility Plant 16,364,098$    15,137,296$    316,247$    638,010$    272,544$    16,364,098$    

93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

26

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Fire Protection Plant 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 664,837$         40 638,171$         26,665$     -$    -$         664,837$         

Tanks 419,246$         40 402,431$         16,815$     -$    -$         419,246$         

Pump Station 292,588$         40 280,853$         11,735$     -$    -$         292,588$         

Mains & Meters 753,069$         40 722,865$         30,204$     -$    -$         753,069$         

Meters -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Mains & Pump Station -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 225,442$         40 216,400$         9,042$       -$    -$         225,442$         

Connection to Franklin -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

"Location" Lines 1,496,434$      40 1,436,415$      60,019$     -$    -$         1,496,434$      

Capitalized Interest 152,716$         40 146,591$         6,125$       -$    -$         152,716$         

Mallory Valley Improvement 264,876$         40 254,252$         10,624$     -$    -$         264,876$         

Arno Rd 187,570$         40 180,047$         7,523$       -$    -$         187,570$         

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 670,926$         40 644,017$         26,910$     -$    -$         670,926$         

Donated Distribution System 4,832,568$      40 4,638,744$      193,825$   -$    -$         4,832,568$      

Misc Equip 109,224$         40 104,843$         4,381$       -$    -$         109,224$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 216,428$         40 207,747$         8,680$       -$    -$         216,428$         

Liberty Pike 806,414$         40 774,071$         32,344$     -$    -$         806,414$         
Subtotal Distribution Plant 11,092,339$    10,647,448$    444,891$   -$    -$         11,092,339$    

General Plant

Land -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Building & Improvements -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Office Equipment -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Furniture & Fixtures -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Site Improvements -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 

Auto/Transport Equip 81,278$           40 78,018$           3,260$       -$    -$         81,278$           

Computer Software -$                 40 -$                 -$           -$    -$         -$                 
Subtotal General Plant 81,278$           78,018$           3,260$       -$    -$         81,278$           

Total Utility Plant in Service 11,173,618$    10,725,466$    448,151$   -$    -$         11,173,618$    

Constr. Work in Progress 493,772$         40 473,968$         19,804$     -$    -$         493,772$         

Total Utility Plant 11,667,390$    11,199,434$    467,955$   -$    -$         11,667,390$    

Accum. Depr. 2,837,990$      40 2,724,164$      113,826$   -$    -$         2,837,990$      
Accumulated Depreciation 2,837,990$      2,724,164$      113,826$   -$    -$         2,837,990$      

Net Utility Plant 8,829,400$      8,475,271$      354,129$   -$    -$         8,829,400$      

96% 4% 0% 0% 100%

27

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Plant

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution Plant

Mains 4,432,244$      3,730,525$      170,948$      258,860$      271,911$      4,432,244$      

Tanks 2,794,976$      2,352,472$      107,800$      163,237$      171,467$      2,794,976$      

Pump Station 1,950,589$      1,641,769$      75,233$        113,922$      119,665$      1,950,589$      

Mains & Meters 5,020,459$      4,225,613$      193,635$      293,214$      307,997$      5,020,459$      

Meters 342,999$         312,974$         7,605$          14,337$        8,082$          342,999$         

Mains & Pump Station 380,247$         295,195$         17,643$        30,952$        36,457$        380,247$         

Meters, Mains, & Tanks 1,502,948$      1,264,999$      57,968$        87,778$        92,203$        1,502,948$      

Connection to Franklin 18,729$           14,971$           895$             1,257$          1,606$          18,729$           

"Location" Lines 9,976,227$      8,396,777$      384,776$      582,650$      612,025$      9,976,227$      

Capitalized Interest 1,018,108$      856,920$         39,268$        59,461$        62,459$        1,018,108$      

Mallory Valley Improvement 1,765,840$      1,486,270$      68,107$        103,132$      108,331$      1,765,840$      

Arno Rd 1,250,466$      1,052,490$      48,230$        73,032$        76,714$        1,250,466$      

Arno Rd/Hwy 96 Improvement 4,472,842$      3,764,695$      172,514$      261,231$      274,401$      4,472,842$      

Donated Distribution System 32,217,122$    27,116,462$    1,242,590$   1,881,602$   1,976,467$   32,217,122$    

Misc Equip 728,162$         612,878$         28,085$        42,527$        44,672$        728,162$         

Moore's Lane 30" Upsize 1,442,852$      1,214,418$      55,650$        84,268$        88,517$        1,442,852$      

Liberty Pike 5,376,095$      4,524,944$      207,352$      313,984$      329,815$      5,376,095$      

Subtotal Distribution Plant 74,690,904$    62,864,372$    2,878,298$   4,365,444$   4,582,790$   74,690,904$    

84.2% 3.9% 6% 6% 100%

General Plant

Land 167,369$         154,821$         3,235$          6,525$          2,788$          167,369$         

Building & Improvements 907,290$         839,272$         17,534$        35,374$        15,111$        907,290$         

Office Equipment 95,291$           88,147$           1,842$          3,715$          1,587$          95,291$           

Furniture & Fixtures 50,359$           46,584$           973$             1,963$          839$             50,359$           

Site Improvements 162,277$         150,111$         3,136$          6,327$          2,703$          162,277$         

Auto/Transport Equip 547,291$         460,633$         21,090$        31,987$        33,580$        547,291$         

Computer Software 156,996$         145,226$         3,034$          6,121$          2,615$          156,996$         

Subtotal General Plant 2,086,873$      1,884,794$      50,844$        92,013$        59,222$        2,086,873$      

90% 2% 4% 3% 100%
Total Utility Plant in Service 76,777,777$    64,749,166$    2,929,142$   4,457,457$   4,642,012$   76,777,777$    

Constr. Work in Progress 3,324,844$      2,798,389$      128,127$      194,326$      204,002$      3,324,844$      

Total Utility Plant 80,102,621$    67,547,556$    3,057,268$   4,651,784$   4,846,013$   80,102,621$    

84% 4% 6% 6% 100%

Accum. Depr. 19,500,806$    16,445,656$    743,973$      1,132,151$   1,179,026$   19,500,806$    
Accumulated Depreciation 19,500,806$    16,445,656$    743,973$      1,132,151$   1,179,026$   19,500,806$    

Net Utility Plant 60,601,815$    51,101,899$    2,313,295$   3,519,633$   3,666,987$   60,601,815$    

84% 4% 6% 6% 100%

28

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Operating Expenses

29



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Classification of Operating Expenses

Main Menu

Actual Adj. Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Description Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 431,028$      431,028$      29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 125,509$      131,197$      110,311$      64,012$     431,028$      

Purchased Water 3,170,392$   3,170,392$   49% 51% 0% 0% 100% As LC * 1,548,139$   1,622,253$   -$              -$           3,170,392$   

Utilities 176,120$      176,120$      49% 51% 0% 0% 100% As LC * 86,001$        90,119$        -$              -$           176,120$      

Materials & Supplies 58,473$        58,473$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 17,026$        17,798$        14,965$        8,684$       58,473$        

Transportation Expenses 26,660$        26,660$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 7,763$          8,115$          6,823$          3,959$       26,660$        

Contracted Services - Other 15,720$        15,720$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 4,577$          4,785$          4,023$          2,335$       15,720$        

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 88,266$        88,266$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 25,702$        26,866$        22,589$        13,108$     88,266$        

Uniforms Expense 7,250$          7,250$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              7,250$          -$           7,250$          

Employee Benefits 265,519$      265,519$      29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 77,315$        80,819$        67,953$        39,432$     265,519$      

Payroll Taxes 40,299$        40,299$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 11,734$        12,266$        10,314$        5,985$       40,299$        

Insurance - Vehicles 16,603$        16,603$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 4,835$          5,054$          4,249$          2,466$       16,603$        

Equipment Maintenance 28,801$        28,801$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 8,386$          8,766$          7,371$          4,277$       28,801$        

Equipment Rental 520$             520$             29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 151$             158$             133$             77$            520$             

Small Tools & Equipment 10,704$        10,704$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 3,117$          3,258$          2,739$          1,590$       10,704$        

Meters Expenses 192,971$      192,971$      10% 0% 90% 0% 100% As Asset * 19,297$        -$              173,674$      -$           192,971$      

Insurance - Workers Comp 10,137$        10,137$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 2,952$          3,086$          2,594$          1,505$       10,137$        

Pension Contribution 106,303$      106,303$      29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 30,954$        32,357$        27,206$        15,787$     106,303$      

Communications 14,929$        14,929$        29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 4,347$          4,544$          3,821$          2,217$       14,929$        

Permits 650$             650$             0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              650$             -$           650$             

Miscellaneous 1,667$          1,667$          29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 485$             507$             427$             248$          1,667$          

Backflow Testing 5,600$          5,600$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              5,600$          -$           5,600$          

Water Testing 30,110$        30,110$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              30,110$        -$           30,110$        

Subtotal Distribution 4,698,722$   -$            4,698,722$   1,978,292$   2,051,947$   502,801$      165,682$   4,698,722$   

42% 44% 11% 0% 96%

Admin & General

Salary & Wages 335,814$      335,814$      0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              335,814$      -$           335,814$      

Payroll Taxes 30,219$        30,219$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              30,219$        -$           30,219$        

Employee Benefits 233,126$      233,126$      0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              233,126$      -$           233,126$      

Pension Contribution 95,549$        95,549$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              95,549$        -$           95,549$        

Insurance - General 38,092$        38,092$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              38,092$        -$           38,092$        

Insurance - Workers Comp 946$             946$             0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              946$             -$           946$             

Online Payment Fees 8,360$          8,360$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              8,360$          -$           8,360$          

Dues & Subscriptions 12,959$        12,959$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              12,959$        -$           12,959$        

Postage 57,702$        57,702$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              57,702$        -$           57,702$        

Office Supplies 5,706$          5,706$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              5,706$          -$           5,706$          

Office Expense 4,951$          4,951$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              4,951$          -$           4,951$          

Office Utilities 4,793$          4,793$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              4,793$          -$           4,793$          

Office Maintenance 8,800$          8,800$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              8,800$          -$           8,800$          

Accounting & Audit Fees 10,765$        10,765$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              10,765$        -$           10,765$        

Legal & Professional Fees 95,238$        95,238$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              95,238$        -$           95,238$        

Travel & Entertainment 2,564$          2,564$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              2,564$          -$           2,564$          

Communications 5,710$          5,710$          0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              5,710$          -$           5,710$          

Computer Expense 64,999$        64,999$        0% 0% 100% 0% 100% * -$              -$              64,999$        -$           64,999$        

Engineering 850$             850$             29% 30% 27% 15% 100% As TUPIS * 243$             254$             230$             124$          850$             

Subtotal Admin & General 1,017,143$   -$            1,017,143$   243$             254$             1,016,523$   124$          1,017,143$   

0% 0% 100% 0% 100%

Total Operating Expenses 5,715,865$   -$            5,715,865$   1,978,535$   2,052,201$   1,519,324$   165,806$   5,715,865$   

35% 36% 27% 3% 100%

30

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Base Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 125,509$       30 100,328$       5,998$     8,421$        10,762$      125,509$       

Purchased Water 1,548,139$    30 1,237,539$    73,981$   103,871$    132,749$    1,548,139$    

Utilities 86,001$         30 68,747$         4,110$     5,770$        7,374$        86,001$         

Materials & Supplies 17,026$         30 13,610$         814$        1,142$        1,460$        17,026$         

Transportation Expenses 7,763$           30 6,206$           371$        521$           666$           7,763$           

Contracted Services - Other 4,577$           30 3,659$           219$        307$           393$           4,577$           

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 25,702$         30 20,545$         1,228$     1,724$        2,204$        25,702$         

Uniforms Expense -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Employee Benefits 77,315$         30 61,804$         3,695$     5,187$        6,630$        77,315$         

Payroll Taxes 11,734$         30 9,380$           561$        787$           1,006$        11,734$         

Insurance - Vehicles 4,835$           30 3,865$           231$        324$           415$           4,835$           

Equipment Maintenance 8,386$           30 6,704$           401$        563$           719$           8,386$           

Equipment Rental 151$              30 121$              7$            10$             13$             151$              

Small Tools & Equipment 3,117$           30 2,492$           149$        209$           267$           3,117$           

Meters Expenses 19,297$         30 15,426$         922$        1,295$        1,655$        19,297$         

Insurance - Workers Comp 2,952$           30 2,360$           141$        198$           253$           2,952$           

Pension Contribution 30,954$         30 24,744$         1,479$     2,077$        2,654$        30,954$         

Communications 4,347$           30 3,475$           208$        292$           373$           4,347$           

Permits -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Miscellaneous 485$              30 388$              23$          33$             42$             485$              

Backflow Testing -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Water Testing -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Subtotal Distribution 1,978,292$    1,581,391$    94,537$   132,732$    169,633$    1,978,292$    

Admin & General

Salary & Wages -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Payroll Taxes -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Employee Benefits -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Pension Contribution -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Insurance - General -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Insurance - Workers Comp -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Online Payment Fees -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Dues & Subscriptions -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Postage -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Supplies -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Expense -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Utilities -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Maintenance -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Accounting & Audit Fees -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Legal & Professional Fees -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Travel & Entertainment -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Communications -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Computer Expense -$               30 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Engineering 243$              30 194$              12$          16$             21$             243$              

Subtotal Admin & General 243$              194$              12$          16$             21$             243$              

Total Operating Expenses 1,978,535$    1,581,585$    94,548$   132,748$    169,654$    1,978,535$    

80% 5% 7% 9% 100%

31

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Extra-Capacity Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 131,197$       33 98,966$         5,913$     12,470$      13,847$      131,197$       

Purchased Water 1,622,253$    33 1,223,716$    73,117$   154,198$    171,222$    1,622,253$    

Utilities 90,119$         33 67,979$         4,062$     8,566$        9,512$        90,119$         

Materials & Supplies 17,798$         33 13,426$         802$        1,692$        1,879$        17,798$         

Transportation Expenses 8,115$           33 6,121$           366$        771$           856$           8,115$           

Contracted Services - Other 4,785$           33 3,609$           216$        455$           505$           4,785$           

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 26,866$         33 20,266$         1,211$     2,554$        2,836$        26,866$         

Uniforms Expense -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Employee Benefits 80,819$         33 60,964$         3,643$     7,682$        8,530$        80,819$         

Payroll Taxes 12,266$         33 9,253$           553$        1,166$        1,295$        12,266$         

Insurance - Vehicles 5,054$           33 3,812$           228$        480$           533$           5,054$           

Equipment Maintenance 8,766$           33 6,613$           395$        833$           925$           8,766$           

Equipment Rental 158$              33 119$              7$            15$             17$             158$              

Small Tools & Equipment 3,258$           33 2,458$           147$        310$           344$           3,258$           

Meters Expenses -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Insurance - Workers Comp 3,086$           33 2,327$           139$        293$           326$           3,086$           

Pension Contribution 32,357$         33 24,408$         1,458$     3,076$        3,415$        32,357$         

Communications 4,544$           33 3,428$           205$        432$           480$           4,544$           

Permits -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Miscellaneous 507$              33 383$              23$          48$             54$             507$              

Backflow Testing -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Water Testing -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Subtotal Distribution 2,051,947$    1,547,848$    92,484$   195,041$    216,574$    2,051,947$    

Admin & General

Salary & Wages -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Payroll Taxes -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Employee Benefits -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Pension Contribution -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Insurance - General -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Insurance - Workers Comp -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Online Payment Fees -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Dues & Subscriptions -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Postage -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Supplies -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Expense -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Utilities -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Office Maintenance -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Accounting & Audit Fees -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Legal & Professional Fees -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Travel & Entertainment -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Communications -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Computer Expense -$               33 -$               -$         -$           -$           -$               

Engineering 254$              33 191$              11$          24$             27$             254$              

Subtotal Admin & General 254$              191$              11$          24$             27$             254$              

Total Operating Expenses 2,052,201$    1,548,039$    92,496$   195,065$    216,601$    2,052,201$    

75% 5% 10% 11% 100%

32

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Customer Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 110,311$      21 102,041$      2,132$     4,301$     1,837$     110,311$      

Purchased Water -$              21 -$              -$         -$         -$         -$              

Utilities -$              21 -$              -$         -$         -$         -$              

Materials & Supplies 14,965$        21 13,843$        289$        583$        249$        14,965$        

Transportation Expenses 6,823$          21 6,311$          132$        266$        114$        6,823$          

Contracted Services - Other 4,023$          21 3,722$          78$          157$        67$          4,023$          

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 22,589$        21 20,896$        437$        881$        376$        22,589$        

Uniforms Expense 7,250$          21 6,706$          140$        283$        121$        7,250$          

Employee Benefits 67,953$        21 62,858$        1,313$     2,649$     1,132$     67,953$        

Payroll Taxes 10,314$        21 9,540$          199$        402$        172$        10,314$        

Insurance - Vehicles 4,249$          21 3,931$          82$          166$        71$          4,249$          

Equipment Maintenance 7,371$          21 6,818$          142$        287$        123$        7,371$          

Equipment Rental 133$             21 123$             3$            5$            2$            133$             

Small Tools & Equipment 2,739$          21 2,534$          53$          107$        46$          2,739$          

Meters Expenses 173,674$      21 160,654$      3,356$     6,771$     2,893$     173,674$      

Insurance - Workers Comp 2,594$          21 2,400$          50$          101$        43$          2,594$          

Pension Contribution 27,206$        21 25,166$        526$        1,061$     453$        27,206$        

Communications 3,821$          21 3,534$          74$          149$        64$          3,821$          

Permits 650$             21 601$             13$          25$          11$          650$             

Miscellaneous 427$             21 395$             8$            17$          7$            427$             

Backflow Testing 5,600$          21 5,180$          108$        218$        93$          5,600$          

Water Testing 30,110$        21 27,853$        582$        1,174$     501$        30,110$        
Subtotal Distribution 502,801$      465,106$      9,717$     19,603$   8,374$     502,801$      

Admin & General

Salary & Wages 335,814$      21 310,638$      6,490$     13,093$   5,593$     335,814$      

Payroll Taxes 30,219$        21 27,954$        584$        1,178$     503$        30,219$        

Employee Benefits 233,126$      21 215,649$      4,505$     9,089$     3,883$     233,126$      

Pension Contribution 95,549$        21 88,386$        1,847$     3,725$     1,591$     95,549$        

Insurance - General 38,092$        21 35,236$        736$        1,485$     634$        38,092$        

Insurance - Workers Comp 946$             21 875$             18$          37$          16$          946$             

Online Payment Fees 8,360$          21 7,733$          162$        326$        139$        8,360$          

Dues & Subscriptions 12,959$        21 11,987$        250$        505$        216$        12,959$        

Postage 57,702$        21 53,376$        1,115$     2,250$     961$        57,702$        

Office Supplies 5,706$          21 5,278$          110$        222$        95$          5,706$          

Office Expense 4,951$          21 4,580$          96$          193$        82$          4,951$          

Office Utilities 4,793$          21 4,434$          93$          187$        80$          4,793$          

Office Maintenance 8,800$          21 8,140$          170$        343$        147$        8,800$          

Accounting & Audit Fees 10,765$        21 9,958$          208$        420$        179$        10,765$        

Legal & Professional Fees 95,238$        21 88,098$        1,841$     3,713$     1,586$     95,238$        

Travel & Entertainment 2,564$          21 2,372$          50$          100$        43$          2,564$          

Communications 5,710$          21 5,282$          110$        223$        95$          5,710$          

Computer Expense 64,999$        21 60,126$        1,256$     2,534$     1,083$     64,999$        

Engineering 230$             21 213$             4$            9$            4$            230$             
Subtotal Admin & General 1,016,523$   940,315$      19,645$   39,633$   16,930$   1,016,523$   

Total Operating Expenses 1,519,324$   1,405,422$   29,362$   59,236$   25,304$   1,519,324$   

93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

33

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Fire Protection Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr

Comm 

Irr Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 64,012$     40 61,445$     2,567$   -$   -$    64,012$     

Purchased Water -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Utilities -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Materials & Supplies 8,684$       40 8,336$       348$      -$   -$    8,684$       

Transportation Expenses 3,959$       40 3,800$       159$      -$   -$    3,959$       

Contracted Services - Other 2,335$       40 2,241$       94$        -$   -$    2,335$       

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 13,108$     40 12,583$     526$      -$   -$    13,108$     

Uniforms Expense -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Employee Benefits 39,432$     40 37,851$     1,582$   -$   -$    39,432$     

Payroll Taxes 5,985$       40 5,745$       240$      -$   -$    5,985$       

Insurance - Vehicles 2,466$       40 2,367$       99$        -$   -$    2,466$       

Equipment Maintenance 4,277$       40 4,106$       172$      -$   -$    4,277$       

Equipment Rental 77$            40 74$            3$          -$   -$    77$            

Small Tools & Equipment 1,590$       40 1,526$       64$        -$   -$    1,590$       

Meters Expenses -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Insurance - Workers Comp 1,505$       40 1,445$       60$        -$   -$    1,505$       

Pension Contribution 15,787$     40 15,154$     633$      -$   -$    15,787$     

Communications 2,217$       40 2,128$       89$        -$   -$    2,217$       

Permits -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Miscellaneous 248$          40 238$          10$        -$   -$    248$          

Backflow Testing -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Water Testing -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Subtotal Distribution 165,682$   159,037$   6,645$   -$   -$    165,682$   

Admin & General

Salary & Wages -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Payroll Taxes -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Employee Benefits -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Pension Contribution -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Insurance - General -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Insurance - Workers Comp -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Online Payment Fees -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Dues & Subscriptions -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Postage -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Office Supplies -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Office Expense -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Office Utilities -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Office Maintenance -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Accounting & Audit Fees -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Legal & Professional Fees -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Travel & Entertainment -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Communications -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Computer Expense -$           40 -$           -$       -$   -$    -$           

Engineering 124$          40 119$          5$          -$   -$    124$          

Subtotal Admin & General 124$          119$          5$          -$   -$    124$          

Total Operating Expenses 165,806$   159,156$   6,650$   -$   -$    165,806$   

96% 4% 0% 0% 100%

34

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Operating Expenses

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Distribution

Salary & Wages 431,028$       362,779$       16,610$      25,192$      26,446$      431,028$       

Purchased Water 3,170,392$    2,461,254$    147,098$   258,069$   303,970$   3,170,392$    

Utilities 176,120$       136,726$       8,172$        14,336$      16,886$      176,120$       

Materials & Supplies 58,473$         49,214$         2,253$        3,418$        3,588$        58,473$         

Transportation Expenses 26,660$         22,439$         1,027$        1,558$        1,636$        26,660$         

Contracted Services - Other 15,720$         13,231$         606$           919$           965$           15,720$         

Repairs and Maint- Water lines 88,266$         74,290$         3,401$        5,159$        5,416$        88,266$         

Uniforms Expense 7,250$           6,706$           140$           283$           121$           7,250$           

Employee Benefits 265,519$       223,477$       10,232$      15,519$      16,291$      265,519$       

Payroll Taxes 40,299$         33,918$         1,553$        2,355$        2,473$        40,299$         

Insurance - Vehicles 16,603$         13,974$         640$           970$           1,019$        16,603$         

Equipment Maintenance 28,801$         24,241$         1,110$        1,683$        1,767$        28,801$         

Equipment Rental 520$              438$              20$             30$             32$             520$              

Small Tools & Equipment 10,704$         9,009$           412$           626$           657$           10,704$         

Meters Expenses 192,971$       176,079$       4,279$        8,066$        4,547$        192,971$       

Insurance - Workers Comp 10,137$         8,532$           391$           592$           622$           10,137$         

Pension Contribution 106,303$       89,471$         4,097$        6,213$        6,522$        106,303$       

Communications 14,929$         12,565$         575$           873$           916$           14,929$         

Permits 650$              601$              13$             25$             11$             650$              

Miscellaneous 1,667$           1,403$           64$             97$             102$           1,667$           

Backflow Testing 5,600$           5,180$           108$           218$           93$             5,600$           

Water Testing 30,110$         27,853$         582$           1,174$        501$           30,110$         
Subtotal Distribution 4,698,722$    3,753,381$    203,383$   347,376$   394,581$   4,698,722$    

Admin & General

Salary & Wages 335,814$       310,638$       6,490$        13,093$      5,593$        335,814$       

Payroll Taxes 30,219$         27,954$         584$           1,178$        503$           30,219$         

Employee Benefits 233,126$       215,649$       4,505$        9,089$        3,883$        233,126$       

Pension Contribution 95,549$         88,386$         1,847$        3,725$        1,591$        95,549$         

Insurance - General 38,092$         35,236$         736$           1,485$        634$           38,092$         

Insurance - Workers Comp 946$              875$              18$             37$             16$             946$              

Online Payment Fees 8,360$           7,733$           162$           326$           139$           8,360$           

Dues & Subscriptions 12,959$         11,987$         250$           505$           216$           12,959$         

Postage 57,702$         53,376$         1,115$        2,250$        961$           57,702$         

Office Supplies 5,706$           5,278$           110$           222$           95$             5,706$           

Office Expense 4,951$           4,580$           96$             193$           82$             4,951$           

Office Utilities 4,793$           4,434$           93$             187$           80$             4,793$           

Office Maintenance 8,800$           8,140$           170$           343$           147$           8,800$           

Accounting & Audit Fees 10,765$         9,958$           208$           420$           179$           10,765$         

Legal & Professional Fees 95,238$         88,098$         1,841$        3,713$        1,586$        95,238$         

Travel & Entertainment 2,564$           2,372$           50$             100$           43$             2,564$           

Communications 5,710$           5,282$           110$           223$           95$             5,710$           

Computer Expense 64,999$         60,126$         1,256$        2,534$        1,083$        64,999$         

Engineering 850$              717$              32$             49$             51$             850$              
Subtotal Admin & General 1,017,143$    940,819$       19,673$      39,673$      16,978$      1,017,143$    

Total Operating Expenses 5,715,865$    4,694,201$    223,056$   387,049$   411,559$   5,715,865$    

82% 4% 7% 7% 100%

35

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Debt Service

36



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Classification of Debt Service

Main Menu

Actual Adj. Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Description Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 75,521$     75,521$     29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 21,991$   22,987$   19,328$   11,216$   75,521$     

Subtotal Principal 75,521$     -$         75,521$     21,991$   22,987$   19,328$   11,216$   75,521$     

29% 30% 26% 15% 100%

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 145,208$   145,208$   29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plant * 42,282$   44,199$   37,162$   21,565$   145,208$   

Subtotal Interest 145,208$   -$         145,208$   42,282$   44,199$   37,162$   21,565$   145,208$   

29% 30% 26% 15% 100%

Total Debt Service 220,729$   -$         220,729$   64,273$   67,186$   56,490$   32,780$   220,729$   

29% 30% 26% 15% 100%

37

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Base P&I 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 21,991$   30 17,579$   1,051$   1,475$   1,886$   21,991$   

Subtotal Principal 21,991$   17,579$   1,051$   1,475$   1,886$   21,991$   

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 42,282$   30 33,799$   2,021$   2,837$   3,626$   42,282$   

Subtotal Interest 42,282$   33,799$   2,021$   2,837$   3,626$   42,282$   

Total Debt Service 64,273$   51,378$   3,071$   4,312$   5,511$   64,273$   

80% 5% 7% 9% 100%

38

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Extra Capacity P&I 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 22,987$   33 17,340$   1,036$   2,185$   2,426$   22,987$   

Subtotal Principal 22,987$   17,340$   1,036$   2,185$   2,426$   22,987$   

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 44,199$   33 33,340$   1,992$   4,201$   4,665$   44,199$   

Subtotal Interest 44,199$   33,340$   1,992$   4,201$   4,665$   44,199$   

Total Debt Service 67,186$   50,680$   3,028$   6,386$   7,091$   67,186$   

75% 5% 10% 11% 100%

39

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Customer P&I 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr

Comm 

Irr Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 19,328$   21 17,879$   374$      754$      322$   19,328$   

Subtotal Principal 19,328$   17,879$   374$      754$      322$   19,328$   

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 37,162$   21 34,376$   718$      1,449$   619$   37,162$   

Subtotal Interest 37,162$   34,376$   718$      1,449$   619$   37,162$   

Total Debt Service 56,490$   52,255$   1,092$   2,202$   941$   56,490$   

93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

40

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Revenue FP 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr

Comm 

Irr Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 11,216$   40 10,766$   450$      -$  -$     11,216$   

Subtotal Principal 11,216$   10,766$   450$      -$  -$     11,216$   

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 21,565$   40 20,700$   865$      -$  -$     21,565$   

Subtotal Interest 21,565$   20,700$   865$      -$  -$     21,565$   

Total Debt Service 32,780$   31,466$   1,315$   -$  -$     32,780$   

96% 4% 0% 0% 100%

41

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of P&I

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Principal

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 75,521$      63,563$      2,910$   4,414$     4,634$     75,521$      
Subtotal Principal 75,521$      63,563$      2,910$   4,414$     4,634$     75,521$      

Interest

Series 200Series 2007 USDA 145,208$    122,216$    5,596$   8,487$     8,909$     145,208$    
Subtotal Interest 145,208$    122,216$    5,596$   8,487$     8,909$     145,208$    

Total Debt Service 220,729$    185,779$    8,506$   12,901$   13,543$   220,729$    

84% 4% 6% 6% 100%

42

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Fixed Expenses

43



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Classification of Fixed Expenses

Main Menu

Actual Adj. Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Description Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 1,976,665$    1,976,665$    29% 30% 27% 15% 100% As TUP * 564,512$   590,095$   534,146$   287,912$   1,976,665$    

Subtotal Depreciation 1,976,665$    -$            1,976,665$    564,512$   590,095$   534,146$   287,912$   1,976,665$    

29% 30% 27% 15% 100%

Total Fixed Expenses 1,976,665$    -$            1,976,665$    564,512$   590,095$   534,146$   287,912$   1,976,665$    

44

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Base Fixed Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 564,512$   30 451,255$   26,976$   37,875$   48,405$   564,512$   

Subtotal Depreciation 564,512$   451,255$   26,976$   37,875$   48,405$   564,512$   

Total Fixed Expenses 564,512$   451,255$   26,976$   37,875$   48,405$   564,512$   

80% 5% 7% 9% 100%

45

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Extra Capacity Fixed Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 590,095$   33 445,127$   26,596$   56,090$   62,282$   590,095$   

Subtotal Depreciation 590,095$   445,127$   26,596$   56,090$   62,282$   590,095$   

Total Fixed Expenses 590,095$   445,127$   26,596$   56,090$   62,282$   590,095$   

75% 5% 10% 11% 100%

46

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Customer Fixed Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 534,146$   21 494,101$   10,323$   20,826$   8,896$   534,146$   

Subtotal Depreciation 534,146$   494,101$   10,323$   20,826$   8,896$   534,146$   

Total Fixed Expenses 534,146$   494,101$   10,323$   20,826$   8,896$   534,146$   

93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

47

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Fire Protection Fixed Expenses 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr

Comm 

Irr Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 287,912$   40 276,365$   11,548$   -$  -$  287,912$   

Subtotal Depreciation 287,912$   276,365$   11,548$   -$  -$  287,912$   

Total Fixed Expenses 287,912$   276,365$   11,548$   -$  -$  287,912$   

96% 4% 0% 0% 100%

48

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Fixed Expenses

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense 1,976,665$    1,666,848$    75,443$   114,790$    119,583$    1,976,665$    

Subtotal Depreciation 1,976,665$    1,666,848$    75,443$   114,790$    119,583$    1,976,665$    

Total Fixed Expenses 1,976,665$    1,666,848$    75,443$   114,790$    119,583$    1,976,665$    

84% 4% 6% 6% 100%

49

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Workplan

50



Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Classification of CIP

Main Menu

Actual TYA Growth Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Description Base Ex-Cap Cust FP Total Total CIP Growth R, R & Ext. Growth R, R & Ext. Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 393,560$       -$                 393,560$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 114,599$     119,792$     100,722$     58,448$       393,560$       * 393,560$       0% 100% -$               393,560$       393,560$       

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 939,384$       -$                 939,384$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 273,534$     285,930$     240,411$     139,508$     939,384$       * 939,384$       0% 100% -$               939,384$       939,384$       

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 1,440,000$   (720,000)$       720,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 209,653$     219,154$     184,266$     106,927$     720,000$       * 1,440,000$    50% 50% 720,000$       720,000$       1,440,000$    

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 1,020,000$   (510,000)$       510,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 148,504$     155,234$     130,522$     75,740$       510,000$       * 1,020,000$    50% 50% 510,000$       510,000$       1,020,000$    

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 535,000$       -$                 535,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 155,784$     162,844$     136,920$     79,453$       535,000$       * 535,000$       0% 100% -$               535,000$       535,000$       

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 2,321,000$   (1,160,500)$    1,160,500$   29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 337,920$     353,234$     297,000$     172,346$     1,160,500$   * 2,321,000$    50% 50% 1,160,500$    1,160,500$    2,321,000$    

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 918,000$       (459,000)$       459,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 133,654$     139,711$     117,469$     68,166$       459,000$       * 918,000$       50% 50% 459,000$       459,000$       918,000$       

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 219,000$       -$                 219,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 63,769$       66,659$       56,047$       32,524$       219,000$       * 219,000$       0% 100% -$               219,000$       219,000$       

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 7,740,000$   (3,870,000)$    3,870,000$   29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 1,126,885$  1,177,953$  990,428$     574,733$     3,870,000$   * 7,740,000$    50% 50% 3,870,000$    3,870,000$    7,740,000$    

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 432,000$       -$                 432,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 125,792$     131,492$     110,559$     64,156$       432,000$       * 432,000$       0% 100% -$               432,000$       432,000$       

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 546,000$       -$                 546,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 158,987$     166,192$     139,735$     81,086$       546,000$       * 546,000$       0% 100% -$               546,000$       546,000$       

Tank Rehabilitation 545,000$       -$                 545,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 158,696$     165,887$     139,479$     80,938$       545,000$       * 545,000$       0% 100% -$               545,000$       545,000$       

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 2,748,000$   (1,374,000)$    1,374,000$   29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 400,088$     418,219$     351,640$     204,053$     1,374,000$   * 2,748,000$    50% 50% 1,374,000$    1,374,000$    2,748,000$    

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 3,025,000$   (1,512,500)$    1,512,500$   29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 440,417$     460,376$     387,086$     224,621$     1,512,500$   * 3,025,000$    50% 50% 1,512,500$    1,512,500$    3,025,000$    

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** 1,354,000$   (1,354,000)$ -$                 -$               29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * -$             -$             -$             -$             -$               * -$               0% 100% -$               -$               -$               

Water Line Replacement - Various 548,000$       -$                 548,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 159,569$     166,801$     140,247$     81,383$       548,000$       * 548,000$       0% 100% -$               548,000$       548,000$       

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** 2,223,000$   (2,223,000)$ -$                 -$               29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * -$             -$             -$             -$             -$               * -$               0% 100% -$               -$               -$               

Zone Meters (5) 305,000$       -$                 305,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 88,811$       92,836$       78,057$       45,296$       305,000$       * 305,000$       0% 100% -$               305,000$       305,000$       

Water Line Replacement - Various 548,000$       -$                 548,000$       29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * 159,569$     166,801$     140,247$     81,383$       548,000$       * 548,000$       0% 100% -$               548,000$       548,000$       

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line 2,577,000$   (2,577,000)$    -$               29% 30% 26% 15% 100% As Dist Plt * -$             -$             -$             -$             -$               * 2,577,000$    100% 0% 2,577,000$    -$               2,577,000$    

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 30,376,944$ (3,577,000)$ (12,183,000)$  14,616,944$ 4,256,233$  4,449,115$  3,740,836$  2,170,761$  14,616,944$ * 26,799,944$  12,183,000$  14,616,944$  26,799,944$  

29% 30% 26% 15% 100% 45% 55% 100%

RR&Ext. Amount 14,616,944$ 

Workplan Period 5 14,616,944$ Amount R&R Related

Annual Requirement 2,923,389$   

2,923,389$   Forced into Rates

Total CIP 26,799,944$ 1,976,665$   Depreciation Check

Total Rate Funding 14,616,944$ 

SDC Required Funding 12,183,000$ 1.48               Times Depreciation

51

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Base CIP 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 114,599$      30 91,607$        5,476$       7,689$       9,827$       114,599$      

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 273,534$      30 218,656$      13,071$     18,353$     23,455$     273,534$      

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 209,653$      30 167,591$      10,019$     14,066$     17,977$     209,653$      

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 148,504$      30 118,710$      7,097$       9,964$       12,734$     148,504$      

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 155,784$      30 124,529$      7,444$       10,452$     13,358$     155,784$      

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 337,920$      30 270,124$      16,148$     22,672$     28,976$     337,920$      

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 133,654$      30 106,839$      6,387$       8,967$       11,460$     133,654$      

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 63,769$        30 50,976$        3,047$       4,279$       5,468$       63,769$        

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 1,126,885$   30 900,800$      53,851$     75,607$     96,627$     1,126,885$   

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 125,792$      30 100,554$      6,011$       8,440$       10,786$     125,792$      

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 158,987$      30 127,090$      7,598$       10,667$     13,633$     158,987$      

Tank Rehabilitation 158,696$      30 126,857$      7,584$       10,648$     13,608$     158,696$      

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 400,088$      30 319,819$      19,119$     26,844$     34,306$     400,088$      

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 440,417$      30 352,057$      21,046$     29,549$     37,765$     440,417$      

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** -$              30 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Water Line Replacement - Various 159,569$      30 127,555$      7,625$       10,706$     13,683$     159,569$      

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** -$              30 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Zone Meters (5) 88,811$        30 70,993$        4,244$       5,959$       7,615$       88,811$        

Water Line Replacement - Various 159,569$      30 127,555$      7,625$       10,706$     13,683$     159,569$      

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line -$              30 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 4,256,233$   3,402,312$   203,393$   285,568$   364,960$   4,256,233$   

80% 5% 7% 9% 100%

52

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Extra Capacity CIP 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 119,792$      33 90,363$        5,399$       11,386$     12,644$     119,792$      

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 285,930$      33 215,686$      12,887$     27,178$     30,179$     285,930$      

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 219,154$      33 165,315$      9,878$       20,831$     23,131$     219,154$      

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 155,234$      33 117,098$      6,997$       14,755$     16,384$     155,234$      

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 162,844$      33 122,838$      7,340$       15,479$     17,187$     162,844$      

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 353,234$      33 266,455$      15,921$     33,575$     37,282$     353,234$      

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 139,711$      33 105,388$      6,297$       13,280$     14,746$     139,711$      

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 66,659$        33 50,283$        3,004$       6,336$       7,036$       66,659$        

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 1,177,953$   33 888,567$      53,092$     111,966$   124,328$   1,177,953$   

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 131,492$      33 99,189$        5,927$       12,499$     13,878$     131,492$      

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 166,192$      33 125,364$      7,491$       15,797$     17,541$     166,192$      

Tank Rehabilitation 165,887$      33 125,134$      7,477$       15,768$     17,509$     165,887$      

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 418,219$      33 315,476$      18,850$     39,752$     44,141$     418,219$      

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 460,376$      33 347,276$      20,750$     43,759$     48,591$     460,376$      

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** -$              33 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Water Line Replacement - Various 166,801$      33 125,823$      7,518$       15,855$     17,605$     166,801$      

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** -$              33 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Zone Meters (5) 92,836$        33 70,029$        4,184$       8,824$       9,798$       92,836$        

Water Line Replacement - Various 166,801$      33 125,823$      7,518$       15,855$     17,605$     166,801$      

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line -$              33 -$              -$           -$           -$           -$              

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 4,449,115$   3,356,106$   200,528$   422,896$   469,584$   4,449,115$   

75% 5% 10% 11% 100%

53

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Customer CIP 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 100,722$      21 93,171$        1,947$     3,927$       1,678$     100,722$      

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 240,411$      21 222,388$      4,646$     9,373$       4,004$     240,411$      

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 184,266$      21 170,451$      3,561$     7,184$       3,069$     184,266$      

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 130,522$      21 120,736$      2,522$     5,089$       2,174$     130,522$      

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 136,920$      21 126,655$      2,646$     5,338$       2,280$     136,920$      

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 297,000$      21 274,735$      5,740$     11,580$     4,947$     297,000$      

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 117,469$      21 108,663$      2,270$     4,580$       1,956$     117,469$      

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 56,047$        21 51,846$        1,083$     2,185$       933$        56,047$        

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 990,428$      21 916,177$      19,141$   38,615$     16,496$   990,428$      

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 110,559$      21 102,271$      2,137$     4,311$       1,841$     110,559$      

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 139,735$      21 129,259$      2,700$     5,448$       2,327$     139,735$      

Tank Rehabilitation 139,479$      21 129,022$      2,696$     5,438$       2,323$     139,479$      

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 351,640$      21 325,278$      6,796$     13,710$     5,857$     351,640$      

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 387,086$      21 358,066$      7,481$     15,092$     6,447$     387,086$      

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** -$              21 -$              -$         -$           -$         -$              

Water Line Replacement - Various 140,247$      21 129,733$      2,710$     5,468$       2,336$     140,247$      

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** -$              21 -$              -$         -$           -$         -$              

Zone Meters (5) 78,057$        21 72,205$        1,509$     3,043$       1,300$     78,057$        

Water Line Replacement - Various 140,247$      21 129,733$      2,710$     5,468$       2,336$     140,247$      

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line -$              21 -$              -$         -$           -$         -$              

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 3,740,836$   3,460,388$   72,294$   145,849$   62,304$   3,740,836$   

93% 2% 4% 2% 100%

54

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of Fire Protection CIP 2 3 4 5

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 58,448$        40 56,103$        2,344$     -$    -$         58,448$        

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 139,508$      40 133,912$      5,595$     -$    -$         139,508$      

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 106,927$      40 102,639$      4,289$     -$    -$         106,927$      

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 75,740$        40 72,702$        3,038$     -$    -$         75,740$        

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 79,453$        40 76,266$        3,187$     -$    -$         79,453$        

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 172,346$      40 165,433$      6,912$     -$    -$         172,346$      

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 68,166$        40 65,432$        2,734$     -$    -$         68,166$        

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 32,524$        40 31,219$        1,304$     -$    -$         32,524$        

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 574,733$      40 551,682$      23,051$   -$    -$         574,733$      

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 64,156$        40 61,583$        2,573$     -$    -$         64,156$        

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 81,086$        40 77,834$        3,252$     -$    -$         81,086$        

Tank Rehabilitation 80,938$        40 77,692$        3,246$     -$    -$         80,938$        

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 204,053$      40 195,868$      8,184$     -$    -$         204,053$      

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 224,621$      40 215,612$      9,009$     -$    -$         224,621$      

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** -$              40 -$              -$         -$    -$         -$              

Water Line Replacement - Various 81,383$        40 78,119$        3,264$     -$    -$         81,383$        

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** -$              40 -$              -$         -$    -$         -$              

Zone Meters (5) 45,296$        40 43,479$        1,817$     -$    -$         45,296$        

Water Line Replacement - Various 81,383$        40 78,119$        3,264$     -$    -$         81,383$        

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line -$              40 -$              -$         -$    -$         -$              

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 2,170,761$   2,083,696$   87,065$   -$    -$         2,170,761$   

96% 4% 0% 0% 100%

55

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


Milcrofton Utility District

Water Cost of Service-12-Months Ending September 2020

Allocation of CIP

Main Menu

Test Yr. Res Comm Res Irr Comm Irr Total

Capital Improvement Plan

McKays Mill Tank - Contract A & Materials 393,560$         331,244$         15,166$     23,002$     24,148$     393,560$         

McKays Mill Tank - Contract B 939,384$         790,642$         36,200$     54,904$     57,638$     939,384$         

Holly Tree Gap Equipment (Pumps & Generator) 720,000$         605,995$         27,746$     42,082$     44,177$     720,000$         

Holly Tree Gap PS Construction 510,000$         429,247$         19,653$     29,808$     31,292$     510,000$         

Wilson Pike Water Line Extension 535,000$         450,288$         20,617$     31,269$     32,826$     535,000$         

Menefee Hill 1.5 MG GST (No. 1) 1,160,500$      976,747$         44,721$     67,828$     71,204$     1,160,500$      

Menefee Hill Control Valve Station 459,000$         386,322$         17,688$     26,827$     28,163$     459,000$         

Ridgeway Drive 10" Extension 219,000$         184,324$         8,439$       12,800$     13,437$     219,000$         

Cool Springs 30" Transmission Main 3,870,000$      3,257,226$      149,135$    226,189$    237,451$    3,870,000$      

Back Up Power at Booster Pump Stations (4) 432,000$         363,597$         16,648$     25,249$     26,506$     432,000$         

McEwen East Water Line Extension (COF) 546,000$         459,547$         21,041$     31,912$     33,501$     546,000$         

Tank Rehabilitation 545,000$         458,705$         21,002$     31,854$     33,439$     545,000$         

Breckenridge 30" Transmission Main 1,374,000$      1,156,441$      52,949$     80,306$     84,304$     1,374,000$      

SR 96 30" Transmission Main 1,512,500$      1,273,011$      58,286$     88,401$     92,802$     1,512,500$      

Peytonsville Road Water Line Upgrade ** -$                 -$                 -$           -$           -$           -$                 

Water Line Replacement - Various 548,000$         461,230$         21,118$     32,029$     33,623$     548,000$         

S. Carothers 16" Transmission Main ** -$                 -$                 -$           -$           -$           -$                 

Zone Meters (5) 305,000$         256,706$         11,754$     17,826$     18,714$     305,000$         

Water Line Replacement - Various 548,000$         461,230$         21,118$     32,029$     33,623$     548,000$         

Long Lane PS Imp / Gosey Hill 10" Water Line -$                 -$                 -$           -$           -$           -$                 

Subtotal Capital Improvement Plan 14,616,944$    12,302,502$    563,280$    854,314$    896,848$    14,616,944$    

84% 4% 6% 6% 100%

56

Main Menu FY20 W.xlsm


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Minor Hill Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District contracted with Rate Studies Inc. to perform a rate study in accordance with the 
Board’s previous order. Rate Studies Inc. completed the study and submitted its resulting report 
and recommendations to the District and to Board staff. The District implemented Rate Studies 
Inc.’s recommendations and has complied with all Board directives, but the Board should continue 
to monitor the District’s financial progress.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 





















































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Spring Creek Utility District 
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District contracted with the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts (“TAUD”) to perform 
a rate study in accordance with the Board’s previous order. TAUD has completed the study and 
submitted its resulting report and recommendations to the District and to Board staff. The TAUD 
report does not recommend a rate increase because the District has eliminated a tank rehabilitation 
fee. The District adopted all of TAUD’s recommendations except a recommendation to decrease 
its commercial utility fee from $300.00 to $150.00. Staff is comfortable with the District’s 
financial position, but the Board needs to monitor the District’s progress. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts 

Vlta1 for Tennessee's future 

REPORT FOR SPRING CREEK UTILITY 
DISTRICT 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
BOARD ORDER DATED MARCH 16, 2021 

July 13, 2021 



INTRODUCTION 

Description of the Spring Creek Utilitv District Water System 

Spring Creek Utility District (the District) provides water service in a rural area of Hardeman 
County, Tennessee. The District's board of commissioners has three members who are appointed 
by the Hardeman County Mayor. 

As of June 30, 2020, the District had 908 customers. All customers are charged the same rates. 
The District purchases water for distribution to its customers from the City of Bolivar. 

The District was referred to the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) upon the submission 
of its audit for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, because it met the statutory definition for a 
financially distressed utility district. The District had a negative change in net position for two 
consecutive years, without regard to any grants or capital contributions, for its fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020. 

The balance of the District's Cash and Cash Equivalents accounts as of June 30, 2020, was 
$856,751. 

History of Rate Increases 

Since July 1, 2017, the District has implemented small rate increases annually. The District 
adopted a new water rate schedule which became effective on July 1, 2021 as foJlows: 

Minimum bill (includes 2,000 gallons) 
Over 2,000 gallons 

$22.91 
$ 8.62 per 1,000 gallons 

The annual rate increases the District has been implementing became insufficient to keep the 
District self-supporting beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. For its fiscal years 
ending June 30 of 2019, 2020 and 2021, the District has included a large expense called contractor 
fee in the following amounts: 

June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

$70,387 
$97,375 
$76,544 

TAUD discussed this contractor fee expense with the District to find out the purpose of these 
expenditures. The District hired Preferred Sandblasting & Painting, LLC from Shelbyville, 
Tennessee to sandblast, rehabilitate and paint two of the District's water tanks. This work extended 
from 2019 through the first part of 2021. This tank rehabilitation work has now been completed. 
Therefore, TAUD has not included the contractor fee as an expense in its financial projections for 
the District's fiscal years beginning July 1, 2021. 1 

1 T AUD is unsure whether the tank rehabilitation expenses should have been expensed or capitalized. Nevertheless, 
the contractor fee was expensed and will not occur in future fiscal years during the five year projection period. 

2 



Utility Management Review Board Order 

On March 16, 2021, the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) issued an order directing 
Spring Creek Utility District to do the following items. 

1) The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another qualified 
expert as approved by the Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the following: 

a) A review of debt management policy; 
b) A review of capitalization policy; and 
c) A review of connection, reconnection, and tap fees. 

2) By April 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between the 
District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1. 

3) By June 30, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study and 
either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation. 

4) Board staff is given the authority to grant on extension ofup to six months of the foregoing 
deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 

3 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation #1 

TAUD does not recommend any monthly water rate increases for the District. 

Recommendation #2 

TAUD recommends that the District increase its water tap fee to $850 so the tap fee covers the 
cost of installing water taps for its customers. 

Recommendation #3 

TAUD recommends that the District's board consider reducing its commercial utility fee from 
$300.00 to $150.00. 

Recommendation #4 

TAUD recommends that the District adopt a new capitalization policy which will include the 
service lives recommended by the UMRB for water systems for utility districts. TAUD prepared 
a suggested capitalization policy for the District to adopt which is attached as Exhibit 9 to this 
Report. 

4 



RA TE STUDY AND PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 

To determine whether the rates which became effective on July 1, 2021, will produce sufficient 
revenues to make the District's water system self-supporting, TAUD first projected a Statement of 
Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the District for its fiscal year ending June 
30, 2021, to use as its test year. 

TAUD projected revenues, operation and maintenance expenses and debt service payments by 
reviewing historical information from the five previous years, the District's budget for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2021, the District's unaudited financial statements for the first nine months 
of the test year and any known and anticipated changes. See the Revenues and Expenses - Test 
Year Schedule attached as Exhibit 1. 

Then, TAUD projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the 
District for its fiscal years ending June 30 of 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. See Exhibit 2 attached 
to this Report. The projected Statements incorporate the District' s Five-Year Capital Asset Plan 
attached as Exhibit 3. 

Revenue Projections: 

• Revenue from water sales for the test year was projected by taking the District's actual 
water usage reports for its customers as of June 30, 2020, and applying the District's water 
rates in effect on July 1, 2021, to this actual usage. 

• Utility fees, connect and reconnect fees, service charges and other water revenues are based 
upon the average of these revenue items for the District's last two fiscal years ending June 
30, 2019 and June 30, 2020. 

• Meter tapping fees are based upon the amount of these fees which were paid during the 
District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

• Interest income for the test year is based upon the average of interest income for the 
District's last two fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020. 

• Since 2016 the District has experienced minimal annual customer growth and does not plan 
to expand its existing water system in the near future. Therefore, the water sales and the 
other revenues for the 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025 fiscal years do not include any revenue 
increases based annual customer growth. 

Expense Projections: 

• Except for depreciation, employee benefits and payroll taxes, contractor fee, and insurance, 
all operating expenses for the test year are based upon the average of the operating expenses 
for the District's 2019 and 2020 fiscal years. 

5 



• Employee benefits and payroll taxes for the test year is based the actual amount for the first 
nine months plus an estimate of the remaining three months of the District's fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021. 

• Depreciation for the test year is based upon the District's fixed asset schedule which 
includes the annual depreciation amount of its capital assets. Then, TAUD added the 
annual depreciation on the capital assets added during the District's 2020 fiscal year and 
capital assets added or which are planned to be added during the District's 2021 fiscal year. 

• Except for depreciation and contractor fee, operating expenses for the remaining four years 
in the five-year projection period are increased by 2% annually over the projected amount 
for the test year. 

• As previously discussed, no contractor fee is projected for the remaining four years in the 
five-year projection period. 

• Interest expense is based upon on the debt amortization schedules of the District's existing 
debt. 

• Annual depreciation expenses for the remaining four years of the five-year projection 
includes depreciation on new capital assets planned to be placed into service during the 
remaining four year of five-year projection period. 

Revenue Sufficiencv and Rate Modifications Required 

At the rates in effect on January 1, 2021, T AUD projects that the District will have a negative 
change in net position of ($488) for the test year ending June 30, 2021, excluding grants and capital 
contributions. 

Because the District's tank rehabilitation project was completed before July 1, 2021, the contractor 
fee is not an on-going expense in future years. With the elimination of this expense, the District 
will have a positive change in net position for the remaining four years in its five-year projection 
period at existing rates. Therefore, no rate increase is needed. , 

Projected Cash and Investments Schedule 

Based upon existing rates, the District should have a cash and investments balance of $1,180,430 
as of June 30, 2025, based upon the revenue and expense projections in Exhibit 2. The Projected 
Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance Schedule is attached as Exhibit 4. 

6 



TAP FEES 

TAUD recommended that the District review the average material and labor costs it incurs in 
installing a water tap to ensure the current tap fee is covering the cost of making a tap. The 
District's current tap fee is $750.00. The District estimated the labor and material costs it incurs 
to install a water tap to be $863.00 which is set forth Exhibit 5. TAUD recommends that the 
District increase its water tap fee to $850.00 so the tap fee covers the cost of installing water taps 
for its customers. 

OTHER UTILITY FEES 

When the District was referred to the UMRB, the District had the following connection and 
reconnection customer fees: 

Utility fee (connection fee) 
Utility fee (connection fee - renters) 
Utility fee ( connection fee - commercial) 

Reconnection fee 

Transfer-in fee 

$150.00 
$200.00 
$300.00 

$100.00 

$ 50.00 

At a minimum, a connection fee should cover the cost of establishing new service for a customer. 
These costs should attempt to cover a customer service employee meeting with the applicant or 
talking with the applicant by phone, reviewing the application for service, and processing the 
connection fee payment and tap fee payment, if applicable. A field employee must travel to the 
service address to verify the initial meter reading for the new account and to tum on the meter. 

The District's utility fees are paid when a new customer signs up for service. The current utility 
fees were adopted on June 27, 2016, after the District's board met with John Greer and Betsy 
Knotts when the District was previously before the UMRB. See the minutes of the District's June 
27, 2016 board meeting attached as Exhibit 6. Because there has been no significant change in 
the District's cost to sign up new customers for service since 2016, TAUD does not recommend 
any changes to the residential property owner utility fee and renter utility fee. 

The District informed TADD that it did not cost any more for the District to initiate service for a 
new commercial customer than a residential customer. Therefore, TADD recommends that the 
board consider reducing its commercial utility fee from $300.00 to $150.00. 

The District charges a transfer-in fee of $50 to change water service for an existing customer from 
one service address to another service address within the District. Because the District already has 
current information on the customer, TADD agrees that the transfer-in fee should be less than the 
utility connection fee. Therefore, the transfer-in fee of $50 is reasonable 

7 



TA UD recommended that the District review the costs it incurs in reconnecting service after water 
service is terminated for non-payment. A District employee must make two trips to a customer's 
service address to turn off water for non-payment and to turn the water back on once payment is 
made. In addition, the administrative time required to prepare service termination lists, 
communicate with delinquent customers and record payments should be covered by the reconnect 
fee. The estimated costs the District incurs in reconnecting service is set forth Exhibit 7. The 
District's current reconnection fee covers its cost in reinstating service after a service termination 
for nonpayment; therefore, TAUD recommends no change to the reconnection fee. 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The District adopted a debt management policy on February 27, 2017, which is attached as Exhibit 
8 to this Report. This debt management policy includes all of the provisions recommended by the 
State Funding Board for public entities. Therefore, no action needs to be taken on the District's 
debt management policy. 

DISTRICT'S CAPITALIZATION POLICY 

TAUD recommends that the District adopt a new capitalization policy which includes the 
recommended service lives for water system assets adopted by the UMRB for utility districts. A 
suggested resolution to use to adopt this new capitalization policy is attached as Exhibit 9 to this 
Report. 

8 



Exhibit 1 

Spring Creek Utility District - Te~t Year 

2021 9 months 2021 
Budget for State Last 2 Year Average Ending 3L31L21 Estimated £lill.lanation 

Operating Revenues: 

Gross Water Sales 449,000 425,926 391,207 438,413 Used amount calculated with new rates 

Utility Fees 18,500 18,125 13,550 18,125 Used 2 year average 

Meter Tapping Fees 3,150 2,700 4,650 4,500 Used close to YTD 

Connect & Reconnect Fees 6,200 5,855 2,500 5,855 Used 2 year average 

Service Charges 1,042 1,036 1,247 1,036 Used 2 year average 

Other Water Revenues 1,370 766 492 766 Used 2 year average 

Total Operating Revenues 479,262 454,408 413,646 468,695 

Operating Expenses: 

Purchased Water 148,000 161,945 128,548 161,945 Used 2 year average 

Salaries & Wages 46,000 46,838 89,682 46,838 Used 2 year average 

Employee Benefits & Payroll Taxes 17,000 14,885 16,921 17,000 Used budgeted amount 

Contractor Fee 50,000 83,881 76,544 76,544 Used total from this year 

Office Supplies 5,284 5,736 6,344 5,736 Used 2 year average 

Office & Shop Utilities 8,800 9,911 5,405 9,911 Used 2 year average 

Insurance 11,800 11,734 (1,131) 11,800 Used budget 

Professional Fees 8,610 6,595 6,940 6,595 Used 2 year average 

Grounds Maintenance 4,500 4,739 1,159 4,739 Used 2 year average 

Software Maintenance 2,000 5,458 2,194 5,458 Used 2 year average 

Equipment 1,631 421 825 421 Used 2 year average 

Commissioner Fees & Expenses 10,800 10,800 10,800 Used 2 year average 

Janitorial 5,900 5,453 5,453 Used 2 year average 

Rent 929 1,112 822 1,112 Used 2 year average 

Telephone 3,200 4,656 3,302 4,656 Used 2 year average 

Miscellaneous 3,151 1,798 2,984 1,798 Used 2 year average 

Salaries & Wages - Maintenance 43,000 42,203 42,203 Used 2 year average 

Supplies - Maintenance 4,000 4,657 38,566 4,657 Used 2 year average 

Depreciation 44,000 42,805 42,753 Used amount from depreciation schedule 

Total Operating Expenses 418,605 465,623 379,105 460,419 

Operating Income (Loss) 60,657 (11,216) 34,541 8,276 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 4,821 663 4,821 Used 2 year average 

Interest Expense {33,468) (15,083) {13,585) Used amount from amortization schedule 



Exhibit 1 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (33,468) (10,262) 663 (8,764) 

Change in Net Position before Contributed 

Capital and Grants 27,189 (21,477) 35,204 (488) 

Contributed Capital/ Grants 

Change in Net Position 27,189 (21,477) 35,204 (488) 



Exhibit 2 

S~ring Creek Utilit)l District - Projected Statements of Revenues and Ex~enses and Changes in Net 

Position 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

6L3DL2021 6L3DL2022 6L30/2023 6L3DL2024 6/30L2025 

Operating Revenues: 

Gross Water Sales 438,413 447,212 447,212 447,212 447,212 

Utility Fees 18,125 18,125 18,125 18,125 18,125 

Meter Tapping Fees 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 

Connect & Reconnect Fees 5,855 5,855 5,855 5,855 5,855 

Service Charges 1,036 1,036 1,036 1,036 1,036 

Other Water Revenues 766 766 766 766 766 

Total Operating Revenues 468,695 477,494 477,494 477,494 477,494 

Operating Expenses: 

Purchased Water 161,945 165,184 168,488 171,857 175,294 

Salaries & Wages 46,838 47,775 48,730 49,705 50,699 

Employee Benefits & Payroll Taxes 17,000 17,340 17,687 18,041 18,401 

Contractor Fee 76,544 

Office Supplies 5,736 5,851 5,968 6,087 6,209 

Office & Shop Utilities 9,911 10,109 10,311 10,518 10,728 

Insurance 11,800 12,036 12,277 12,522 12,773 

Professional Fees 6,595 6,727 6,861 6,999 7,139 

Grounds Maintenance 4,739 4,834 4,930 5,029 5,130 

Software Maintenance 5,458 5,567 5,679 5,792 5,908 

Equipment 421 429 438 447 456 

Commissioner Fees & Expenses 10,800 11,016 11,236 11,461 11,690 

Janitorial 5,453 5,562 5,673 5,787 5,903 

Rent 1,112 1,134 1,157 1,180 1,204 

Telephone 4,656 4,749 4,844 4,941 5,040 

Miscellaneous 1,798 1,834 1,871 1,908 1,946 

Salaries & Wages - Maintenance 42,203 43,047 43,908 44,786 45,682 

Supplies - Maintenance 4,657 4,750 4,845 4,942 5,041 

Depreciation 42,753 48,753 48,753 48,753 48,753 

Total Operating Expenses 460,419 396,697 403,656 410,754 417,994 

Operating Income (Loss) 8,276 80,797 73,838 66,740 59,500 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 4,821 4,821 4,821 4,821 4,821 

Interest Expense (13,585) (12,516) (11,389) (10,201) (8,950) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) (8,764) (7,695) {6,568) (5,380) (4,129) 

Change in Net Position before 

Suggested Rate Increase (488) 73,102 67,270 61,360 55,371 

Revenue Generated from Suggested 

Rate Increase N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Change in Net Position (488) 73,102 67,270 61,360 55,371 



E42 Excavator 

Additional Depreciation 

Total Capital Outlay & Depreciation 

Source of Funds 

Loans 

Developer Funded 

Cash 

Total Funding Sources 

Spring Creek Utility District 

Five Year Capital Asset Plan 

6/ 30/ 2021 6/ 30/ 2022 6/ 30/ 2023 

60,000 

60,000 

6,000 6,000 

66,000 6,000 

60,000 

60,000 

Exhibit 3 

6/ 30/ 2024 6/ 30/ 2025 

6,000 6,000 

6,000 6,000 



Exhibit 4 

Spring Creek Utility District - Projected Cash & Investments 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

6/ 30/ 2021 6/ 30/ 2022 6/ 30/ 2023 6/ 30/ 2024 6/ 30/ 2025 

Beginning Balance 856,751 879,133 920,036 1,013,979 1,100,825 

Sources of Funds 

Gross Water sales *** 438,413 447,212 447,212 447,212 447,212 

Other Revenues 30,282 30,282 30,282 30,282 30,282 

Interest Revenue 4,821 4,821 4,821 4,821 4,821 

Total Sources of Funds 473,516 482,315 482,315 482,315 482,315 

Uses of Funds 

Operating Expenses 460,419 396,697 403,656 410,754 417,994 

Depreciation (42,753) (48,753) (48,753) (48,753) (48,753) 

Interest Expense 13,585 12,516 11,389 10,201 8,950 

Principle Paid on Debt 19,883 20,952 22,079 23,267 24,518 

Capital Outlay 60,000 

Total Uses of Funds 451,134 441,412 388,371 395,469 402,709 

Ending Balance 879,133 920,036 1,013,979 1,100,825 1,180,430 

NOTE: This synopsis from beginning funds to ending funds does not include accounts receivable, accounts 

payable, fixed asset or any other adjustments made to the balance sheet. This is a "cash basis" summary. 



Name of Utility 

Prepared By: 

Date Prepared: 

Type of Tap 

Cost of Tap Installation 

SPRING CREEK UTILITY DISTRICT 

WATER TAP 

Title : 

Itemized oescriplion Cost Total Cost 

1 Water Meter @ · · 
C.....,.'-,-'-,-'-,---......-, 

. •· 1 · Meter Box@ . ---.......;.-~----
> 1 ·· .. -.-.---.. -.- .-.- .-~ . . .... •. . . .... 

.. 1 .. . .. / Coiporati()n Stop @ • . 
.· 1 ..• .. 

....... > 1 
Saddle@ 

.......;.'-,-..,..--,----

.... ·.· ·.·. 

· ... 2 . . ·. 

• • • • 1 . • . . . •. • • B()rink@ . 

. 1 

. · . · · < Locate Cost @ -----------......-, . •.••Miscellaneous ----------......-, 
Seed Striw@· • 

-'-o--'-,-.......;.-----

. . . moo GaHol1S Flushing @ .....-------......-, 
· Administrative Hours @ '""""'---------~ . . . . 

0.5 
. '.' ,'. . '.' ' ... 

Final clem1-up/&inspection 

Installation Labor for 

Overhead 

NOTE 

•·. : $51.00 each ...... 

. $30.00 each .··· ·. 

. .•• < $139.27 each ... 

· $43.82 · each · 

· .. $5.06 
. . .. ·. 

$51.00 

$30.00 

$139.27 

$43.82 

$5.06 

· per foot •• • · $0.00 ........... ~--........... ----. . . . . ----
. . . .· 

··•each· 
-'-"--'-'--"--'--'--'-........... -'--'-

$6L6l. each 

$31.57 

.•.· $300.00 per foot 

$15.00 per mile 
'"""""'---'-'---'-'----------'--'-

----'--------- per 1000 

$13.79 

·.......;. ____ -'---'-$3-'1-'-.5'--7-' .. p(:r hour .. 

0% 

Total 

$0.00 

$61.61 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$63.14 

$300.00 

$15.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$6.90 

$0.00 

$126.28 

$21.22 

sss3.3o I 

TAP FEES ARE $750. COSTS EXCEED THIS, RECOMMEND TO INCREASE TAP FEES 



Exhibit 6 
SPRfNG CREEK WATER UTILITY BOARD MINUTES ·,,_. 

June 27, 2016 

Present: Bob Vickers, Gary Rodgers & John Sain 

The Spring Creek Utility Board met in a regular meeting at 4:30 p.m. The boill'd reviewed the 
expenditures and receipts for the month of June and checked the bank statement. All was in order. 

Customers owing a water or sewer bill at the end of June were: 

Hwy 64 Car/Truck Sales 2-324-2 20.74 Water 
Wilma Collins 2-261-1 51.45 Water 
Regina Williams 2-2455-5 162.10 Water 
Tavishia Anderson 6-629-16 7.60 Water 
Lizer Morrow 2-980-6 17.46 Water (Transfer) 

John Greer and Betsy Knotts from the State of Temiessee Comptroller Office met with the 
board and Mary DeFoor, office manager, on June 21. Several items were discussed to help the water 
system become more efficient in the coming years. The system has been referred to the State Utility 
Board because of net loss the last two years. Suggestions for improvements included: rate 
study/summary, fee changes, Office manager to attend TAP Conference in December for 
training/updates, ·obtaining TAUD policies on CD and adopting policies that pertain to the local 
system, and presenting a change in net position report to the board each month along with the bank 
statements, and expenditure/receipts. 

Mr. Greer also suggested that the district obtain bids on needed water tank repairs. Tony 
Wyatt, with TAUD, will email tank companies to contact. 

Changes effective July 1, 2016: 

--There will no longer be deposits or connection fees for new service contracts. There will be non
refundable utility fees charged as follows : 

Homeowners $150.00 
Renters $200.00 
Commercial $300.00 

--Those presently on the deposit/connection fee systen will continue as is until the present account is 
closed/finaled. 

-~Transfer within district fee will remain at $50, Tap Fee will remain at $750.00, and reconnection fee 
will remain at $100. 00 plus arrears until further action by the board. 

-There will be no more leak adjustments at this time. The board will look at leak adjustment 
insurance and decide on that at a later time. 



-The service fee for using crediVdebit cards for bill payments will now be $1.75 instead of$2.00. 
This is because of recent changes in state laws. 

-As the City of Bolivar water rates increase, Spring Creek will increase rates as needed. 

Mr. Greer also suggested that the district obtain bids on needed water tank repairs. Tony 
Wyatt, with T AUD, will email tank companies to contact. He asked that we discuss and write a 5-year 
plan to present to the Utility Board with changes/proposed changes to help the system stay solvent in 
years to come. 

~r. Ronn1e Russell retired on June 30, 2016. Mr. Tim Warren was hired for his position. 

With no further business, meeting was adjourned. 

Bob Vickers, President 



Exhibit 7 

Spring Creek Utility District - Review of Fees 

l,;;R;;;e;;;-C;;;o;;;;;n;;;;;ne=c=ti=o=n =Fe=e=s_--JI $100.00 

Ex1;1enses: 
Field Staff $ 52 .79 
Office Staff $ 19.10 
Locks $ 8.00 

$ 79.89 



Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 

Exhibit 8 

37 

------
Utility Policy Manual 

Debt Management Policy 

INTRODUCTION 

Debt management policies provide written guidance about the amount and type of debt 
issued by local governments, the issuance process, and the management of the debt portfolio. A 
debt management policy tailored to the needs of the Board of Commissioners (the "Governing 
Body") of the Spring Creek Utility District of Hardeman County, 
Tennessee (the "District") can improve the quality of decisions, identify and disclose parameters 
relating to the structure and issuance of debt, identify policy goals, and provide a foundation for 
long-term financial planning, all of which are in the public interest of the District. If applicable, 
adherence to a debt management policy may signal to rating agencies and the capital markets 
that a governmental entity is well-managed and should meet its obligations in a timely manner. 

Debt levels and their related annual costs are important long-term obligations that must 
be managed within available resources. An effective debt management policy provides 
guidelines for a govenunent to manage its debt program in line with those resources. 

This Debt Management Policy is intended to comply with the debt management policy 
requirements promulgated by the Tennessee State Funding Board in December 20 I O. 

Objectives 

The Governing Body is establishing a debt policy as a tool to ensure that financings 
undertaken by the Governing Body satisfy certain clear objective standards designe~ to protect 
the District's financial resources and to meet its long-term capital needs. The objectives of this 
policy are: 

1. To document. responsibility for the oversight and management of debt-related 
transactions; 

2. To establish criteria and promote prudent financial management for the issuance 
of debt obligations and the evaluation of debt issuance options; 

3. To identify legal and administrative limitations on the issuance of debt and ensure 
the legal use of the Governing Body's debt issuance authority; 

4. To define the types and appropriate use of debt approved for use within the 
constraints established by Tennessee law; 

5. To provide guidance for evaluating refunding candidates or alternative debt 
structures; 

6. Where applicable, to provide support for the maintenance of credit ratings; 
7. To enhance risk management practices; and 
8. To increase transparency, reduce conflicts, and promote cooperation in the debt 

management process. 



38 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County1 TN 
-----

Utility Policy Manual 

Debt Management Strategies 

To achieve the objectives above, the Governing Body adopts the following debt 
management strategies and procedures. 

A. Funding Strategies 

1. Debt is to be issued pursuant to the authority of and in ful] compliance 
with provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Tennessee (the "State") (including Title -7, Chapter 82, 
Tennessee Code Annotated (the "Utility District Act") and various bond 
authorizations enacted by the General Assembly of the State), and 
pursuant to resolutions adopted by the Governing Body. 

2. (For Water and Wastewater Utility Districts) Debt may only be used to 
finance or refinance the capital costs of improving the District's utility 
system (the "System") and such other costs related thereto as may be 
permitted by the Utility District Act (including without limitation issuance 
costs, capitalized interest and the funding of debt service reserves), all of 
which must be authorized by the Governing Body. Debt may not be 
issued to finance the District's operating costs. 

3. Debt shall be secured by and payable from the revenues of the System, as 
prescribed by resolution of the Governing Body, and a corresponding 
statutory lien on the assets of the System. 

B. Federal Tax Status 

I. Tax-Exempt Debt - Based on the assumptions that tax-exempt interest 
rates are lower than taxable rates and that the interest savings outweigh the 
administrative costs, restrictions on use of financed projects, and 
investment constraints, the District will use its best efforts to maximize the 
amount of debt sold under this policy as tax-exempt. 

2. Taxable Debt - The District will sell taxable debt when necessary to 
finance projects with a private use or uncontrolled purpose. The 
Governing Body encourages the financing team to blend the financing of 
taxable projects with the financing of tax-exempt projects whenever 
possible: 



39 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, T}l 
-------

Utility Poli_cy Manual 

C. Legal Limitations on the Use of Debt 

1. No debt obligation shall be issued to fund the current operation of the 
District. 

Types of Debt 

2. The proceeds of any debt obligation shall be expended only for the purpose 
for which it was authorized by the Governing Body. 

3. All debt shall be approved by resolution of the Governing Body. 
4. Prior to the consideration of a resolution authorizing the issuance of debt, 

the General Manager and/or the President of the Governing Body shall 
prepare and submit a request for financing report from the State 
Comptroller's office, as required by the Utility District Act. If timely 
received, the General Manager and/or the President of the Governing Body 
shall cause the report to be published as required by the Utility District 
Act. No financing report is required by the Utility District Act in 
connection with a loan from a state or federal agency. 

Pursuant to the Utility District Act, the District is authorized from time to time to issue or 
incur the following types of debt, all of which is subject to the te1ms of the debt management 
policy. 

A. Bonds 
The District may issue bonds under the Utility District Act to finance capital 
projects or refinance outstanding debt. 

B. Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) 
BANs are short term obligations authorized to be issued lUlder the Utility District 
Act that will be repaid by proceeds of a subsequent bond issue. 

C. Capital Leases 
Capital leases are leases of equipment or other System property, where the leased 
property becomes the property of the District at the end of the lease tem1 and the 
lease payments include a :financing component. 

D. Loans from State or Federal Agencies 
The District may incur debt in the form of loans from State or federal agencies. 
Loans are evidenced by a loan agreement between the District and the lending 
agency 



40 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
--- --- -

Utility Policy Manual 

E. Loans from Public Building Authorities 
The District may enter into loan agreements with one or more public building 
authorities, pursuant to Sections 12-10-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated, in 
lieu of issuing bonds or notes under the Utility District Act. The policies set forth 
herein for bonds issued under the Utility District Act shall be equally applicable 
to loan agreements entered into with a public building authority. 

Debt Management Practices 

A. Structure 
The Governing Body shall establish by resolution all terms and conditions 
relating to the issuance of debt. 

1. Term 
Any debt (including refunding debt) shall have a weighted average 
maturity not greater than the weighted average expected lives of the assets 
financed by such debt. In addition, the final maturity of any debt should 
not be longer than the expected life of the longest lived asset financed 
thereby. 

2. Capitalized Interest 
From time to time certain financings may require the use of capitalized 
interest. Interest may be financed ( capitalized) through a period permitted 
by federal law ail9 the authorizing resolution of the Governing Body if it 
is determined that doing so is in the District's best interest. 

3. Debt Service Structure 
The District will seek to structure its aggregate debt with level or declining 
debt service payments over the life of its aggregate debt. In structuring 
principal repayment for any debt issue, the Utility will seek to balance the 
goals of (a) amortizing principal as quickly as possible to minimize interest 
costs, and (b) maintaining consistent and manageable rates for its 
Customers. 

4. Call Provisions 
The District will strive to issue all of its debt with a call feature no later 
than ten (10) years from the date of delivery. In any event, call features 
should be structured to provide the maximum flexibility relative to cost. 
The District will avoid the sale of long-term non-callable bonds absent 
careful evaluation by the Governing Body with respect to the value of the 
call option. 

5. Original Issuance Discount/Premium 
Bonds sold with original issuance discount/premium are permitted with 
the approval of the Governing Body. 



41 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
Utility Policy Manual 

6. Debt Service Reserve Funds 
If the Governing Body determines that it is necessary to fund a debt 
service reserve fund in connection with debt, it may agree to fund such a 
reserve. The size of any debt service reserve fund established in 
connection with the tax-exempt debt will be in compliance \\~th applicable 
federal tax rules. The District will strive to fund debt service reserves with 
District funds, rather than with debt. However, the District may use the 
proceeds of debt to fund debt service reserves if the Governing Body 
concludes that the restriction of District funds would reduce unrestricted 
funds below manageable levels. 

7. Fixed vs. Variable Interest Rates 
Fixed rate debt bears interest at a rate or rates that remain constant 
tlrroughout the life of the debt. Variable rate debt bears interest at a 
variable rate through the term thereof. 

The District will issue all of its debt with fixed rates, except as follows: 

• Bond anticipation notes may be issued with variable rates, given 
their short tenn nature. 

• The District may issue or incur variable rate debt if provision as to 
the calculation or change of variable interest rates is included in 
the authorizing resolution and the Governing Body carefully 
evaluates the risks related thereto. The District will annually include 
in its budget an interest rate assumption for any outstanding 
variable rate debt that takes market fluctuations affecting the rate 
of interest into consideration. The General Manager shall monitor 
the ongoing costs and risks of outstanding variable rate and make 
reports to the Governing Body no less than annually with respect 
thereto. 

B. Refinancing Outstanding Debt 
The Governing Body will consider the following issues when analyzing possible 
refunding opportunities: 

1. Reasons for Refunding 
Debt will be considered for refunding when: 
• The refunding results in net present value savings to the District; 

The refunding of the debt is necessary due to a change in 
private/public use of a project that would cause a need to change 
the tax status of the debt; or 

• The Governing Body expressly determines by resolution that the 
refunding of the bonds accomplishes debt service restructuring that 
is in the District's best interest. 



42 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
----- --------

Utility Policy Manual 

2. Term of Refunding Issues 
The Governing Body will refund bonds within the term of the originally 
issued debt, unless otherwise expressly approved by resolution of the 
Governing Body. 

3. Escrow Structuring 
The District shall take steps to utilize the least costly securities available in 
structuring refunding escrows; provided that the District may purchase 
U.S. Treasuries - State and Local Government Series if it is determined 
that the costs and risks attendant to the solicitation of open market 
securities outweigh any attendant benefits. 

C. Methods of Sale 
Pursuant to the Utility District Act, debt may be issued at competitive or 
negotiated sale. 

l. Competitive - In a competitive sale, the District's bonds shall be 
awarded to the bidder providing the lowest true interest c.ost as long as the 
bid adheres to the requirements set forth in the official notice of sale. 

2. Negotiated - In a negotiated sale, the undemTiter/lender/lessor will be 
chosen prior to the sale and the interest rate and the fees of the 
undenvriter/lender/lessor are neg(?tiated prior to the sale. 

In the case of loans from State or Federal agencies, the District will negotiate 
directly with the agency making the loan. In all other cases, the Governing Body 
will determine the manner of sale, and will set forth the manner of sale in the 
resolution authorizing the debt. 

D. Underwriter Selection (Negotiated Transaction) 
The District, with assistance from its financial advisor (if the District has engaged 
a financial advisor), shall select the underwriter/lender/lessor for a proposed 
negotiated sale. The selection criteria will include the following factors and such 
other factors as the Governing Body may identify: 

Ability and experience in managing similar debt transactions; 
Prior knowledge and experience with the District; 
Capital adequacy; 

• Quality and experience of personnel assigned to the District's 
engagement; 

• Financing ideas presented; and 
• Underwriter/lender/lessor fees. 



Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, T/\l 
Utility Policy Manual 

E. Credit Quality 

43 

If the District maintains a credit rating, the District' s debt management activities 
will be conducted to maintain the highest credit ratings possible, consistent with 
District's financing and rate maintenance objectives. The General Manager will be 
responsible for maintaining relationships and communicating with the rating 
agencies that assign ratings to the District's debt. Full disclosure of operations and 
open lines of communication shall be maintained with the rating agencies. The 
General Manager shall work with its financial advisor and/or underwriter (as 
applicable) to prepare and make presentations to the rating agencies to assist 
credit analysts in making an informed decision. 

F. Credit Enhancements 
The District will consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-by-case basis, 
evaluating the economic benefit versus the cost. Only when clearly demonstrable 
savings can be shown shall an enhancement be utilized. The District may consider 
each of the following enhancements as alternatives by evaluating the cost and 
benefit of such enhancements: bond insurance, reserve fund surety bonds, letters 
of credit and liquidity facilities. 

G. Use of Structured Products 
No interest rate agreements or forward purchase agreements will be considered 
unless a policy defining the use of such products is approved before the 
transaction is considered. 

H. Risk Assessment 
The District will evaluate each transaction to assess the types and amounts of risk 
associated with that transaction, considering all available means to mitigate those 
risks. The District will evaluate all proposed transactions for consistency with the 
objectives and constraints defined in this Policy. The following risks should be 
assessed before issuing debt 

1. Change in Public/Private Use - The change in the public/private use of 
a project that is funded by tax-exempt funds could potentially cause a 
bond issue to become taxable. 

2. Default Risk - The risk that debt service payments cannot be made by 
the due date. 

3. Liquidity Risk- The risk of having to pay a higher rate to the liquidity 
provider in the event of a failed remarketing. 

4. Interest Rate Risk - The risk that interest rates will rise, on a sustained 
basis, above levels that would have been set if the issued had been fixed. 



Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
Utility Policy Manual 

44 

5. Rollover Risk - The risk of the inability to obtain a suitable liquidity 
facility at an acceptable price to replace a facility upon tennination or 
expiration of a contract period. . 

6. Credit Risk - The risk that an issuer of debt securities or a borrower 
may default on its obligations by failing to repay principal and interest in a 
timely manner. 

J. Continuing Disclosure 

To the extent that any of the District1s debt issues are subject to U.S. Securities 
and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 (1'Rule 15c2-12"), the Governing Body 
will provide certain fmancial infonnation and operating data by specified dates, 
and will provide notice of certain enumerated events with respect to the bonds, all 
as described in Rule 15c2-12. 

K. Transparency 
The District shall comply with the Te1U1essee Open Meetings Act, providing 
adequate public notice of meetings and specifying on the agenda of a meeting 
when matters related to debt issuance will be considered. Additionally, in the 
interest of transparency, all costs (including interest, issuance, continuing, and 
one-time) shall be disclosed to the citizens in a timely manner. To comply with 
the requirements of the preceding sentence, an estimate of the costs described 
above will be presented to the Governing Body along with any resolution 
authorizing debt. 

Within four weeks of closing on a debt transaction, the debt service schedule and 
the State Form CT-0253 shall be available at the office of the General Manager 
for inspection and review by members of the Governing Body and the District's 
Customers. 

L. Professional Services 
The District requires all professionals engaged to assist in the process of issuing 
debt to clearly disclose all compensation and consideration received related to 
services provided in the debt issuance process by the District. This includes 11 soft11 

costs or compensations in lieu of direct payments. 

I. Counsel - The District will enter into an engagement letter agreement 
with each lawyer or law firm representing the District in a debt 
transaction. No engagement letter is required for any lawyer who serves 
as counsel to the District regarding District matters generally. 

2. Bond Counsel - Bond counsel for each debt transaction is contracted by 
the Governing Body and serves to assist the District in such debt issue. 



45 

Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
------ - -

Utility Policy Manual 

3. Financial Advisor - If the District chooses to engage a financial advisor, 
the financial advisor for each debt transaction will be contracted by the 
Governing Body and will serve and assist the District on financial matters 
related to such debt transaction. The Governing Body shaU approve the 
written agreement between the District and the financial advisor with 
respect to a debt transaction. The financial advisor shall not be permitted 
to bid on or underwrite au issue for which it is or has been providing 
advisory services. 

4. Underwriter - If there is an underwriter for a debt issue, the underwriter 
must clearly identify itself to the District in writing ( e.g., in a response to a 
re·quest for proposals or in promotional materials provided to the District) 
as an underwriter and not as a financial advisor from the earliest stages of 
its relationship with the District with respect to that issue. The 
underwriter must clarify its primary role as a purchaser of securities in an 
arm's~length commercial transaction and must disclose that it has financial 
and other interests that differ from those of the District. The underwriter 
in a publicly offered, negotiated sale shall be required to provide pricing 
information both as to interest rates and to takedown per maturity to the 
General Manager in advance of the pricing of the debt. 

M. Potential Conflicts of Interest 
Professionals involved in a debt transaction hired or compensated by the District 
shall be required to disclose existing client and business relationships between 
and among the professionals to a transaction (including but not limited to financial 
advisor, swap advisor, bond counsel, swap counsel, trustee, paying agent, 
undenvriter, counterparty, and remarketing agent), as well as conduit issuers, 
sponsoring organizations and program administrators. This disclosure shall 
include that information reasonably sufficient to allow. the District to appreciate 
the significance of the relationships. 

Professionals who become involved in the debt transaction as a result of a bid 
submitted in a widely and publicly advertised competitive sale conducted using an 
industry standard, electronic bidding platform are not subject to this disclosure. 
No disclosure is required that would violate any rule or regulation of professional 
conduct. 

Debt Administration 

A. Planning for Sale 
1. In considering the adoption of any debt resolution, the Governing Body 

shall consider the purpose of the financing, the proposed structure of the 
financing, the proposed method of sale for the finan~ing, members of the 
proposed financing team and an estimate of all the costs associated with 
the financing. 



Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
----

Utility Policy Manual 

tax exempt debt-financed facilities to ensure that no impermissible private use occurs. 

E. Investment of Proceeds 
Any proceeds or other funds available for investment by the District must be invested 
pursuant to applicable State law. 

47 

Review of the Policy 

Policy 

The debt policy guidelines outlined herein are only intended to provide general direction 
regarding the future use and execution of debt. The Governing Body maintains the right to modify 
these guidelines ( except to the extent these guidelines are mandated by applicable state law or 
regulation) and may make exceptions to any of them at any time to the extent that the execution 
of such debt achieves the Governing Body's goals. Any exceptions to these policies shall be expressly 
acknowledged in the resolution authorizing the pertinent debt issue. In the event o°f a conflict between 
the tenns of a debt resolution and this policy, the terms of the debt resolution shall control. 

This policy will be periodically reviewed by the Governing Body, at which time, the General 
Manager will present any recommendations for any amendments, deletions, additions, improvement 
or clarification. 

ADOPTION DATE: -=2=/2....;..:7/-=20=1::....;.7 ___ _ 

EFFECTIVE DATE: _3_/~l/_2~01~7 ___ _ 



Spring Creek Utility District, Hardeman County, TN 
Utility Policy Manual 

46 

2. In the case of a proposed refunding, proposed use of credit enhancement, 
or proposed use of variable rate debt, the General Manager will present to 
the Governing Board the rationale for using the proposed debt structure, 
an estimate of the expected savings associated with the transaction (if 
applicable) and a discussion of the potential risks associated with the 
proposed structure. 

3. If required by Rule l 5c2-12, the General Manager, the bond counsel, 
financial advisor (if applicable), along with other members of the 
financing team will prepare a Preliminary Official Statement describing 
the transaction and the security for the debt that is fully compliant with all 
legal requirements. 

B. Post Sale 
1. The General Manager will maintain for review by members of the 

Governing Body and the public a debt service schedule and the CT-0253 
Form related to the debt issue. 

2. The General Manager will establish guidelines and procedures for tracking 
the flow of all bond proceeds, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, 
over the life of bonds reporting to the IRS all arbitrage earnings associated 
with the financing and any tax liability that may be owed. 

3. If required by Rule 15c2-12, the General Manager, the bond counsel, 
financial advisor (if applicable), along with other members of the 
financing team will prepare an Official Statement describing the transaction 
and the security for the debt that is fully compliant with all legal 
requirements. 

C. Arbitrage 
Compliance with arbitrage requirements on invested tax-exempt bond funds will 
be maintained. Proceeds that are to be used to finance construction expenditures 
are exempted from the filing requirements, provided that the proceeds are spent in 
accordance with requirements established by the IRS. The District will comply 
with all of its tax certificates for tax-exempt financings by monitoring the 
arbitrage earning on bond proceeds on an interim basis and by rebating all positive 
arbitrage when due, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 148. The District 
will also retain all records relating to debt transactions for as long as the debt is 
outstanding, plus three (3) years after the final redemption date of the 
transactjon. 

D. Private Activity 
Compliance with private activity requirements with respect to tax exempt debt
financed facilities will be maintained. The General Manager shall maintain a 
record of the allocation of debt proceeds to ·expenditures, and monitor the use of 



Fixed Asset Capitalization Policy 

Spring Creek Utility District 

Exhibit 9 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners on , 20_ 

Effective 20 



Fixed Asset Capitalization Policy 

Purpose 

This policy is adopted to establish consistent guidelines for the capitalization and depreciation 
of fixed assets. 

Ca pitalization Requirements 

(1) Long term or fixed assets, including land, land improvements, buildings, building 
improvements, infrastructure, easements, construction work in progress, office furniture, 
office equipment, machinery, operating equipment and vehicles, will be capitalized and subject 
to depreciation when: 

• the asset has a useful life of more than two years; and 
• the asset has a cost of $2,000 or more. 

Assets which are not capitalized will be expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(2) The capitalization threshold is applied to individual units of fixed assets. For example, 
ten desks purchased in a single order, each costing $1,000, will not qualify for capitalization 
even though the total cost of the desk order of $10,000 exceeds the threshold of $2,000. 

(3) For purposes of capitalization, the threshold will generally not be applied to 
components of fixed assets which form one working system such as computer systems, 
electronic and laboratory equipment and other similar working systems. The entire working 
system will be treated as a single fixed asset provided the entire system meets the $2,000 
threshold. 

(4) Repairs to existing fixed assets will generally not be subject to capitalization. Repairs 
are generally recognized as expenditures which are necessary to keep an asset in its intended 
operational condition and which do not materially increase the value of the asset. If a repair 
extends the useful life of a capital asset by more than two years and costs $2,000 or more, then 
the repair represents an improvement and should be capitalized. 

2 



Infrastructure Ca pital Assets 

Infrastructure includes new construction, replacement due to expansion or new technology, 
replacement due to the end of normal life cycle, major repairs or refurbishment and assets 
contributed by developers, customers or other third parties to the District. 
(1) New Construction. New construction normally begins as a Construction-In-Progress 
project and may take more than one fiscal year to complete. At the completion of the project, 
the total costs of the project may be broken down by the major groups of assets by operating 
system such as distribution and storage, pumping, meters, etc. Under each system, the 
component unit of the assets is listed based on the nature oft he component and the length of 
the estimated useful life. 

(2) Replacement Due to Expansion or New Technology. Replacement occurs when an old 
systems or equipment is replaced because the District is either expanding its facilities to 
increase capacity or new technology and equipment has become available on the market 
which is more cost efficient than existing systems or equipment being used. In this situation, 
the old systems or equipment are replaced when they still have a remaining useful life and 
economic value. When each individual item or component unit costs $2,000 or more and has 
a useful life of more than two years, the individual item or component unit should be 
capitalized. Because the retired equipment or systems still have a positive net book value, the 
District will calculate and record the appropriate loss on disposition. 

(3) Replacement Due to the End of Life Cycle. Replacement can occur as a result of normal 
scheduled maintenance. The component units can be purchased at the same time, but be 
installed simultaneously or within a planned short period time. In this situation, the old 
systems or equipment are replaced when they have no useful life or economic value. When 
the aggregate total cost of the component units is $2,000 or more and have a useful life of 
more than two years, the component units should be capitalized. The estimated portion of 
the original asset that was replaced will be removed from the asset records of the District. 

(4) Re pairs or Refurbishments. The District's existing infrastructure requires regular repair 
and maintenance. Repair or refurbishment expenses to existing capital assets may be 
capitalized under certain circumstances. The criteria for determining whether the expenditure 
is an expense or capital asset requires knowledge of the effect the repair will have on the 
capital asset. To be considered as a capital asset, these conditions must be met: (a) the total 
repair or refurbishment cost of one job must be $2,000 or more, and; (b) after the repair or 
refurbishment, the remaining useful life ofthe existing asset must be extended by at least two 
years. When the above conditions are not met, the cost of repair or refurbishment will be 
considered as an operations and maintenance expense. 

(5) Contributed Assets. The District may require a developer or customer to build or 
finance the building of utility system improvements as condition for receiving utility service. 
Upon the completion of the utility system improvements, the developer or customer 

3 



contributes the improvements to the District, and the District accepts ownership of the 
contributed improvements. In this situation, the utility system improvements are recorded as 
a capital asset at the time of acceptance by the District. The total costs of the utility system 
improvements must be broken down by operating system, and the major component units are 
to be listed under the operating systems depending on the nature and the length of the 
estimated useful life. 

Determination of Cost 

(1) Capital assets will be reported at historical cost. Cost will include all necessary 
expenditures to acquire the asset and place the asset into service, including ancillary costs. 

(2) Ancillary costs for infrastructure, buildings and improvements include professional fees 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, appraisers, financial advisors and other similar 
professionals; insurance premiums; costs incurred to obtain financing for the project; and 
other related costs incurred during construction necessary to place the asset into service. 

(3) Ancillary costs for equipment and vehicles include transportation charges, installation 
costs, licensing fees, and any other normal and necessary expenditures required to place the 
asset into its intended state of operation. 

(4) Ancillary costs for land include legal and title fees, appraisal and negotiation fees, 
damage payments, site preparation costs and demolition costs of unwanted structures. 

(S) Contributed capital assets will be recorded at their estimated fair market value on the 
date the contributed asset was accepted by the District. 

(6) Self-constructed assets will be recorded based upon all direct costs (including labor) 
associated with the construction project. 

Depreciation 

(1) With the exception of land and easements, all capital assets will be depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset. 

(2) Regardless of the month the capital asset is placed in service, a full year of depreciation 
will be recorded in the first year. Once the asset has been fully depreciated, the asset will be 
kept on the books until its disposal. 

(3) The useful life of a capital asset for depreciation will be determined as follows: 

4 



Asset Account 

Water lines and storage 
Buildings (office and plant) 
Well/Dam 
Pumps and treatment equipment 
Equipment and tools 
Machinery, construction equipment and construction vehicles 
Transportation vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 
Information systems 

5 

40-50 
30-50 

Engineer's Estimate 
15-20 
10-15 
5-15 
5-10 
5-10 
3-6 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Walden’s Ridge Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In its March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to to send proof that the District has 
complied with the recommendations of the cost of service study from CPA Daniel Peterson. Mr. 
Peterson gave three options to the Board: 
 

1. Decrease the minimum bill gallon threshold from 2,000 gallons to 1,800 gallons; 
2. Increase rates 3%; or 
3. Increase rates 5%. 

 
Although Mr. Peterson recommended the District decrease the minimum gallon threshold, the 
District voted to increase rates by 3%. The District sent Board staff a copy of its 2021 audit which 
shows a positive change in net position of $280,988.00. Board staff believes the rate increase is 
sufficient, and the entity should be moved to the update cycle. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



From: melissa.wrud@epbfi.com
To: Ross Colona
Cc: ron@wrud.org; Casey Lawson
Subject: Fwd: Rate Options
Date: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 2:11:03 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image005.png
Walden"s Ridge Financial Report June 30, 2021.pdf

Attached is a copy of our 2021 Audit.  It shows that we made a profit of $280,988.00 in our last fiscal year.
Below is the recommendations from Daniel Peterson's cost of service study.

It starts out with three options for rate increases, a per thousand rate increase of 3%, a per thousand rate increase of 5%,
and reduce minimum gallons to 1,800.

At the June 29th board meeting our Board of Commissioners chose to go with the 3% increase in not only the per thousand
rate but also the minimum charge to increase by 3% also. 

If you have any questions, or need further assistance, please respond to this email or contact me at the number below.

Melissa C Reed
Walden’s Ridge Utility District
Customer Service Rep
423.886.2683 Office
 
 

From: Daniel Peterson 
Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 6:01 PM
To: Ron West <ron@wrud.org>; Frank Groves <fmg39@epbfi.com>; David Fulton <djf@sfglegal.com>; Bob McKenzie
<bmckenzie1554@gmail.com>
Cc: Tina Davies <tina@wrud.org>; cjlawson@wrud.org
Subject: RE: Rate Options
 
All,
 
The rate recommendation from that cost of service study is supposed to be implemented before the coming fiscal year.   At the last Board
meeting I was asked me to look at your options in different ways and provide you with some recommendations.
 
I’ll start with the realization that the Bureau of Labor Statistics unadjusted CPI shows a 4.1% increase in CPI since you last instituted a rate
increase effective July 1, 2019.

I have summarized three options for your consideration…
 



 
You can see the impact on the revenue recovery for the wholesale customers is minimal.  The cost of moving that change through any legal
processes may result in that effort being more costly.  I do recognize that the equitable approach would be to increase the wholesale rates to
increase that revenue recovery, however, your contractual obligations seem to hamper that ability.
 
I do prefer the recommendation to reduce the gallons included in the minimum bill as the revenue realization is more predictable. 
 
As you consider your options, please recognize that the cost of service study was looking out 12 months and therefore, did not include any
projected increase in debt service or depreciation for a second water source.  If this will be happening, the reality is we need to be addressing
those impacts in incremental changes now to properly plan and accommodate for these additional financial impacts.  
 
 
Please reach out with any questions.
 
Thanks,
dp
 
 

From: Daniel Peterson 
Sent: Friday, May 21, 2021 3:38 PM
To: Ron West <ron@wrud.org>; Frank Groves <fmg39@epbfi.com>; David Fulton <djf@sfglegal.com>; Bob McKenzie
<bmckenzie1554@gmail.com>
Cc: Tina Davies <tina@wrud.org>; cjlawson@wrud.org
Subject: Rate Options
 
All,
 
As we discussed last night, an alternative to decreasing the gallons included in the minimum bill is increasing the per 1000 rate. 
This could achieve the similar results and affect your wholesale customers as well since they were the customer class that you were not collecting
sufficient revenues from.
 
Below is a summary that a 5% increase could generate if you realized 100% of the increase for 12 months across customer classes. 
 
I expect customers would change their behavior and therefore, would expect a 5% rate increase in the per 1000 rate will actually yield a smaller
revenue amount than what is reflected here.  
 



 
dp
 

Daniel E. Peterson, CPA
2400 Oakland Dr. NW
Cleveland, TN  37311
P:  (423) 476-5888
F:  (888) 619-2050
www.dpcpa.net

 
This message is intended for use only by the person(s) addressed above and may contain privileged and confidential information.  Disclosure or
use of this message by any other person is strictly prohibited.  If this message is received in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete
this message.
 
Circular 230 Disclaimer:  Any tax advice contained in the body of this material was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by the
recipient for the purpose of i) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue Code or applicable state or local tax law
provisions, or ii) promoting, marketing, or recommending to another party any transaction or matter addressed herein.
 
 
 



Daniel E. Peterson 
Certified Public Accountant 

 

2400 Oakland Dr. NW  Cleveland, TN 37311  Phone 423.476.5888  Fax 888.619.2050 

 
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
Member of the Tennessee Society of Certified Public Accountants 

March 10, 2021 
 
 
Walden’s Ridge Utility District 
3900 Taft Highway 
Signal Mountain, TN  37377 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
The attached cost of service/rate study makes assumptions to determine the Utility’s cost of 
service and allocates those costs to classes of customers to determine the revenue 
responsibility by class of customer and is used to calculate rates by class designed to recover 
the expected costs.   
 
Should the underlying assumptions or expectations used in this study change, the expected 
results and allocations and calculated rates could change.   
 
Results  
The study shows the increase in future costs of the Utility result in an under collection of the 
anticipated costs for the fiscal year end June 30, 2022 based on the current rates.   
 
The cost allocations applied in our study show the revenue shortfall is associated with 
wholesale customers.  The Utility may be limited by contract or agreement in adjusting these 
rates to recover these costs, therefore, our recommendations are designed to address the 
revenue recovery through the existing retail customer base.   
 
Recommendations 
We recommend the necessary parties review the underlying contracts with your wholesale 
customers and make upward modifications as you can based upon those contracts.   
 
We recommend the Board consider a 200 gallon decrease in the volume of water included in 
the minimum bill from 2,000 gallons to 1,800 gallons with an effective date as soon as possible, 
but no later than July 1, 2021.  Based upon the modeling developed during the rate workshop, 
this adjustment should generate revenue sufficient to cover the projected 2022 shortfall. 
 
Methodology 
To determine the Utility’s cost of service the data set starts with the Utility’s actual results from 
the June 30, 2020 Audited Financial Statements.  The cost of service study captures the cash 
basis expenditures of the Utility in the “actual” results column in the following four groupings:  
 

1. Operations and Maintenance  
2. General and Administrative 
3. Debt Service  
4. Self-Funded Capital Improvements 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Walden’s Ridge Utility District 2021 Rate/Cost Study Page 2 

2400 Oakland Dr. NW  Cleveland, TN 37311  Phone 423.476.5888  Fax 888.619.2050 

 
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
Member of the Tennessee Society of Certified Public Accountants 

The June 30, 2020 Audited Financial Statement actual results were adjusted based upon a 
combination of assumptions including: 
 

1. Budgeted expenses through June 30, 2021 
2. Cash expenditures through January 31, 2021 and annualized through June 30, 2021 
3. Expectations for the June 30, 2022 fiscal year 

 
The adjusted costs were broken down into three categories:  base, extra capacity, and customer 
costs using metrics from water purchased by month sourced to the monthly operating reports. 
 
The three categories of costs were allocated to each customer class based upon an allocation 
factor developed from the actual billing data including the number of customers, consumption, 
and revenue by month by customer class. 
 
The allocations of costs are then summarized to show the total revenue requirement and the 
over/under recovery by customer class.   
 
 
The end result of the cost of service report may or may not derive your expected results with 
regards to the rates or rate structure.  Ultimately, it is the Board’s responsibility and discretion to 
adopt its own rates and rate structure whether or not it is based on the result of the cost of 
services report.  If updates need to be made to the underlying assumptions used in this study, 
the Utility should engage us as soon as possible to project and plan for those changes.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Daniel E. Peterson, CPA  



3/10/2021

Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA

www.dpcpa.net

Cost of Service Study

For 

Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study



Summary



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Executive Summary of Cost of Service Allocation

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Total Revenue Required Total      

Operations & Maintenance 2,100,863$    2,011,057$   30,701$        51,530$        6,901$          672$             

Plus: Debt Service 648,773$       616,906$      8,236$          20,058$        3,341$          231$             

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 200,000$       192,572$      2,725$          3,832$          795$              76$                

Total Revenue Requirement 2,949,636$    2,820,535$   41,662$        75,420$        11,038$        980$             

Less: Other Revenue 245,685$       243,678$      104$              93$                1,734$          75$                

Rate Requirement 2,703,951$    2,576,857$   41,557$        75,326$        9,304$          904$             

Current Rate Revenue Recovery 2,676,634$    2,607,186$   21,667$        36,220$        11,434$        128$             

Over/(Under) Recovery (27,317)$        30,329$        (19,890)$       (39,106)$       2,130$          (776)$            

Recovery as a % of Requirement 99% 101% 52% 48% 123% 14%

Annual Sales (Kgal) 269,336         250,081        6,308             12,884          -                 62                  

Revenue Required per Kgal

Operations & Maintenance 7.80                8.04               4.87               4.00               -                 10.81            

Plus: Debt Service 2.41                2.47               1.31               1.56               -                 3.72               

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 0.74                0.77               0.43               0.30               -                 1.22               

Total Rate Required 10.95              11.28             6.61               5.86               -                 15.75            

Other Revenue (0.91)              (0.97)              (0.02)              (0.01)              -                 (1.21)             

Rate Required per Kgal 10.04             10.31            6.59               5.85               -                 14.54            

Average Revenue per Kgal 9.94                10.43            3.43               2.81               -                 2.06              

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 3 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Summary of Cost of Service Allocation

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Total Revenue Required Total      Total

Operations & Maintenance 2,100,863$     2,011,057$   30,701$        51,530$        6,901$           672$              2,100,861$     

Plus: Debt Service 648,773$         616,906$      8,236$           20,058$        3,341$           231$              648,773$         

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 200,000$         192,572$      2,725$           3,832$           795$              76$                200,000$         

Total Revenue Requirement 2,949,636$     2,820,535$   41,662$        75,420$        11,038$        980$              2,949,634$     

Less: Other Revenue 245,685$         243,678$      104$              93$                1,734$           75$                245,685$         

Rate Requirement 2,703,951$     2,576,857$   41,557$        75,326$        9,304$           904$              2,703,949$     

Annual Sales (Kgal) 269,336           250,081        6,308             12,884           -                 62                  269,336           

Rate Rev. Req. / Kgal 10.04$             10.30$           6.59$             5.85$              14.54$          10.04$             

Rate Rev. Req. / Customer 59.51$             57.77$           1,662.29$     6,277.19$     11.87$          64.60$          59.51$             

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Customer Total      Total

Operations & Maintenance 1,197,492$     1,175,291$   4,442$           10,550$        6,901$           308$              1,197,492$     

Plus: Debt Service 369,800$         366,162$      123$              59$                3,341$           115$              369,800$         

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 114,000$         113,122$      32$                15$                795$              36$                114,000$         

Total Revenue Requirement 1,681,292$     1,654,575$   4,597$           10,624$        11,038$        459$              1,681,292$     

Less: Other Revenue 245,685$         243,678$      104$              93$                1,734$           75$                245,685$         

Rate Requirement 1,435,607$     1,410,897$   4,492$           10,530$        9,304$           383$              1,435,607$     

Annual Sales in Kgal 269,336           250,081        6,308             12,884           -                 62                  269,336           

Annual Billings 45,437             44,602           25                   12                   784                14                  45,437             

Customer Charge / Kgal 5.33$               5.64$             0.71$             0.82$              6.16$            5.33$               

Customer Charge / Customer 31.60$             31.63$           179.70$        877.53$        11.87$          27.37$          31.60$             

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Consumption Total      Total

Operations & Maintenance 903,371$         835,766$      26,258$        40,980$        -$                    364$              903,369$         

Plus: Debt Service 278,973$         250,744$      8,113$           19,999$        -$                    116$              278,973$         

Plus: Rate Funded Capital 86,000$           79,450$        2,693$           3,816$           -$                    41$                86,000$           

Total Revenue Requirement 1,268,344$     1,165,960$   37,065$        64,796$        -$                    521$              1,268,342$     

Less: Other Revenue -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                      

Rate Requirement 1,268,344$     1,165,960$   37,065$        64,796$        -$                    521$              1,268,342$     

Calculated Water Rate (Kgal) 7.04$               7.25$             5.88$             5.03$              8.38$            7.04$               

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Total      Total

Current Rate Revenue 2,676,634$     2,607,186$   21,667$        36,220$        11,434$        128$              2,676,635$     

Over/(Under) Recovery (27,317)$         30,329$        (19,890)$       (39,106)$       2,130$           (776)$            (27,314)$         

Total Revenue 2,922,319$     2,850,864$   21,771$        36,313$        13,168$        203$              2,922,320$     

Over/(Under) Recovery (27,317)$         30,329$        (19,890)$       (39,106)$       2,130$           (776)$            (27,314)$         

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 4 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Rate Impact Analysis

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
     

COST OF SERVICE

Gallons Included 2,000                  -                     -                      -                      -                      

Customer Charge 31.63                  11.87                  27.37                  

Customer Charge per k 0.71                   0.82                    

Consumption per k 7.25                    5.88                   5.03                    8.38                    

CURRENT RATES

Gallons Included 2,000                  -                     -                      -                      -                      

Customer Charge                    28.53 -                     -                                         14.25 -                      

Consumption per k                      7.40                    3.36 2.75                                              -   2.00                    

PROPOSED RATE

Gallons Included 1,800                  -                     -                      -                      -                      

Customer Charge 28.53                  -                     -                      14.25                  -                      

Consumption per k 7.40                    6.59                   5.85                    -                      2.00                    

Projected Revenue Impact

Increase in Base Charge -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

Incr(Decr) in / Kgal -                      3.23                   3.10                    -                      -                      

Annual Billings 44,602                25                      12                        784                     14                        

Avg Gallons 5,593                  -                      3,654                  

Annual Gallons 250,081,230      6,308,090        12,884,200        -                      62,180                

49,508$              -                     -                      -                      -                      49,508                 

-                      -                     -                      -                      -                      -                        

-                      20,389$            39,906$              -                      -                      60,295                 

-                      20,389              39,906                -                      -                      109,803               

30,329                (19,890)             (39,106)              2,130                  (776)                    (27,314)                

Assuming 100% 

Realization Rate - 

Projected Revenue

Incr(Decr) for Gallons

Consumption Revenue

 Current Projected (Under) 

Over Recovery

Customer Charge Revenue

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 5 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Rate Impact Analysis

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

     

 Average Gallons = 5593 248548 1073683 0 3654

1,000             31.63                  6.59                   5.85                    35.75                  

2,000             15.82                  6.59                   5.85                    22.07                  

3,000             12.96                  6.59                   5.85                    17.50                  

4,000             11.53                  6.59                   5.85                    15.22                  

5,000             10.68                  6.59                   5.85                    13.85                  

6,000             10.11                  6.59                   5.85                    12.94                  

7,000             9.70                    6.59                   5.85                    12.29                  

8,000             9.39                    6.59                   5.85                    11.80                  

240,000        7.32                    6.59                   5.85                    8.49                    

250,000        7.32                    6.59                   5.85                    8.49                    

1,070,000     7.27                    6.59                   5.85                    8.41                    

1,075,000     7.27                    6.59                   5.85                    8.41                    

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

     

 Average Gallons = 5593 248548 1073683 0 3654

1,000             28.53                  3.36                   2.75                    14.25                  2.00                    

2,000             14.27                  3.36                   2.75                    7.13                    2.00                    

3,000             11.98                  3.36                   2.75                    4.75                    2.00                    

4,000             10.83                  3.36                   2.75                    3.56                    2.00                    

5,000             10.15                  3.36                   2.75                    2.85                    2.00                    

6,000             9.69                    3.36                   2.75                    2.38                    2.00                    

7,000             9.36                    3.36                   2.75                    2.04                    2.00                    

8,000             9.12                    3.36                   2.75                    1.78                    2.00                    

240,000        7.46                    3.36                   2.75                    0.06                    2.00                    

250,000        7.45                    3.36                   2.75                    0.06                    2.00                    

1,070,000     7.41                    3.36                   2.75                    0.01                    2.00                    

1,075,000     7.41                    3.36                   2.75                    0.01                    2.00                    

Cost of Service / Kgal

Current Rate / Kgal

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 6 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Rate Impact Analysis

10.37$                3.36$                2.75$                  2.02$                  

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

     

 Average Gallons = 5593 248548 1073683 0 3654

1,000             28.53                  6.59                   5.85                    14.25                  2.00                    

2,000             14.27                  6.59                   5.85                    7.13                    2.00                    

3,000             11.98                  6.59                   5.85                    4.75                    2.00                    

4,000             10.83                  6.59                   5.85                    3.56                    2.00                    

5,000             10.15                  6.59                   5.85                    2.85                    2.00                    

6,000             9.69                    6.59                   5.85                    2.38                    2.00                    

7,000             9.36                    6.59                   5.85                    2.04                    2.00                    

8,000             9.12                    6.59                   5.85                    1.78                    2.00                    

240,000        7.46                    6.59                   5.85                    0.06                    2.00                    

250,000        7.45                    6.59                   5.85                    0.06                    2.00                    

1,070,000     7.41                    6.59                   5.85                    0.01                    2.00                    

1,075,000     7.41                    6.59                   5.85                    0.01                    2.00                    

Proposed Rate / Kgal

Average Revenue / Kgal

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 7 of 50



Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 8 of 50

Operations & Maintenance
71%

Plus: Debt Service
22%

Plus: Rate Funded Capital
7%

Total Revenue Requirement

Operations & Maintenance

Plus: Debt Service

Plus: Rate Funded Capital



Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 9 of 50

99%
101%

52%
48%

123%

14%

Total WRUD  Residential    Retail WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 1

WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 2

WRUD  Dry Tap    Other 1 WRUD  VFD    Other 2

Recovery Rate by Class



Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 10 of 50

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

Total WRUD  Residential    Retail WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 1

WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 2

WRUD  Dry Tap    Other 1 WRUD  VFD    Other 2

Total Revenue Requirement by Rate Class

Operations & Maintenance Plus: Debt Service Plus: Rate Funded Capital



Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 11 of 50

7.80 8.04 

4.87 
4.00 

-

10.81 

2.41 
2.47 

1.31 

1.56 

-

3.72 

0.74 
0.77 

0.43 

0.30 

-

1.22 

 -

 2.00

 4.00

 6.00

 8.00

 10.00

 12.00

 14.00

 16.00

 18.00

Total WRUD  Residential    Retail WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 1

WRUD  Wholesale
Wholesale 2

WRUD  Dry Tap    Other 1 WRUD  VFD    Other 2

Total Revenue Requirement / Kgal by Rate Class

Operations & Maintenance Plus: Debt Service Plus: Rate Funded Capital



Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 12 of 50

Distribution
48%

Admin & General
23%

Principal on Debt
14%

Interest on Debt
8%

Self Funded Capital 
Improvement

7%

Costs Per Kgal Billed

Distribution

Admin & General

Principal on Debt

Interest on Debt

Self Funded Capital Improvement



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Costs Summary and Per Kgal Analysis

Distribution  Actual Adj Test Yr.

Water Purchases 341,532$      15,597$     357,129$      0.922      1.326      

Chemicals and Testing 5,950$          2,450$       8,400$          0.022      0.031      

Fuel 10,478$        7,272$       17,750$        0.046      0.066      

Salaries 206,005$      6,877$       212,882$      0.550      0.790      

Payroll Taxes 15,563$        3,697$       19,260$        0.050      0.072      

Pension 10,214$        5,017$       15,231$        0.039      0.057      

Employee Benefits 201,487$      12,098$     213,585$      0.551      0.793      

Utilities 223,812$      40,543$     264,355$      0.682      0.982      

Insurance 19,813$        1,787$       21,600$        0.056      0.080      

System Maintenance 139,308$      88,631$     227,939$      0.588      0.846      

Truck and Equipment Repairs 50,858$        (4,058)$     46,800$        0.121      0.174      

Miscellaneous -$               -$           -$               

Distribution  Actual Adj Test Yr. 3.627      5.216      

Admin & General  Actual Adj Test Yr.

Salaries 366,231$      12,227$     378,458$      0.977      1.405      

Payroll Taxes 27,667$        6,573$       34,240$        0.088      0.127      

Pension 18,158$        8,918$       27,076$        0.070      0.101      

Employee Benefits 164,853$      9,898$       174,751$      0.451      0.649      

Utilities 3,149$          2,246$       5,395$          0.014      0.020      

Office 66,002$        (10,202)$   55,800$        0.144      0.207      

Insurance 2,201$          199$          2,400$          0.006      0.009      

Travel and Training 4,728$          5,172$       9,900$          0.026      0.037      

Miscellaneous 2,052$          5,860$       7,912$          0.020      0.029      

Admin & General  Actual Adj Test Yr. 1.797      2.584      

Principal on Debt  Actual Adj Test Yr.

2015 Series Bond 275,000$      10,000$     285,000$      0.736      1.058      

2015 USDA RD Loan 17,339$        1,089$       18,428$        0.048      0.068      

2020 CTCB Loan -$               103,892$  103,892$      0.268      0.386      

Principal on Debt  Actual Adj Test Yr. 1.052      1.512      

Interest on Debt  Actual Adj Test Yr.

2015 Series Bond 196,556$      (11,200)$   185,356$      0.479      0.688      

2015 USDA RD Loan 31,045$        (1,029)$     30,016$        0.077      0.111      

2020 CTCB Loan -$               26,081$     26,081$        0.067      0.097      

Interest on Debt  Actual Adj Test Yr. 0.623      0.896      

Capital Improvement Plan  Actual Adj Test Yr.

Future Capital - Self Funded 64,135$        135,865$  200,000$      0.516      0.743      

Capital Improvement Plan  Actual Adj Test Yr. 0.516      0.743      

Total Cost Factors Per kGallons 7.615      10.952    
$Cost/kGal 

Purchased

$Cost/kGal    

Billed

Kgal Purchased

$ Per Kgal

Kgal Billed

$ Per Kgal

387367 269336

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 13 of 50



Allocation Factors



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Summary of Allocation Factors

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Customer      Total

 WRUD Residential Retail 1 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1 2 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%

WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2 3 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%

WRUD Dry Tap Other 1 4 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 100%

WRUD VFD Other 2 5 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%

Purchased Water 15 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Total Customers 21 98% 0% 0% 2% 0% 100%

Retail Customers 22 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Wholesale Customers 23 0% 68% 32% 0% 0% 100%

Customers Rate Base 24 98% 0% 0% 2% 0% 100%

Weighted Customers 25 99% 0% 0% 1% 0% 100%

Base/Extra Capacity

Total Water Sales 30 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Retail Water Sales 31 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Wholesale 1 Water Sales 32 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Wholesale 2 Water Sales 33 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%

Peak Demand  @ Peak Month 34 92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

Peak Demand 35 92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

Purchased Water 36 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Revenue

Total Revenue 50 97% 1% 1% 0% 0% 100%

Retail Revenue 51 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Wholesale Revenue 52 0% 37% 63% 0% 0% 100%

Plant

Distribution Plant 60 90% 1% 8% 1% 0% 100%

General Plant 61 90% 1% 8% 1% 0% 100%

Total Utility Plant 62 90% 1% 8% 1% 0% 100%

Net Utility Plant 63 89% 1% 9% 1% 0% 100%

Debt Service 64 95% 1% 3% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 15 of 50



Long Term Debt Schedules



Walden's Ridge Utility District Summary of Debt Service Requirements by Year

Fiscal Year Ending: 2021

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2021 280,000            191,006       471,006       17,906              30,538         48,444        51,028              13,959         64,987        2021 348,934        235,503       584,437           

2022 285,000            185,356       470,356       18,428              30,016         48,444        103,892            26,081         129,973      2022 407,320        241,453       648,773           

2023 295,000            179,556       474,556       18,965              29,479         48,444        106,498            23,475         129,973      2023 420,463        232,510       652,973           

2024 300,000            173,231       473,231       19,517              28,927         48,444        109,113            20,860         129,973      2024 428,630        223,018       651,648           

2025 305,000            166,425       471,425       20,086              28,358         48,444        111,906            18,067         129,973      2025 436,992        212,850       649,842           

2026 315,000            159,269       474,269       20,671              27,773         48,444        114,713            15,260         129,973      2026 450,384        202,302       652,686           

2027 325,000            148,669       473,669       21,273              27,171         48,444        117,591            12,383         129,974      2027 463,864        188,223       652,087           

2028 335,000            138,769       473,769       21,893              26,551         48,444        120,516            9,457           129,973      2028 477,409        174,777       652,186           

2029 345,000            128,569       473,569       22,531              25,913         48,444        123,563            6,410           129,973      2029 491,094        160,892       651,986           

2030 355,000            118,069       473,069       23,187              25,257         48,444        126,663            3,311           129,974      2030 504,850        146,637       651,487           

2031 365,000            107,269       472,269       23,863              24,581         48,444        64,517              469               64,986        2031 453,380        132,319       585,699           

2032 375,000            96,169         471,169       24,558              23,886         48,444        2032 399,558        120,055       519,613           

2033 390,000            84,694         474,694       25,273              23,171         48,444        2033 415,273        107,865       523,138           

2034 400,000            72,844         472,844       26,009              22,435         48,444        2034 426,009        95,279         521,288           

2035 410,000            60,694         470,694       26,767              21,677         48,444        2035 436,767        82,371         519,138           

2036 425,000            48,169         473,169       27,547              20,897         48,444        2036 452,547        69,066         521,613           

2037 440,000            35,194         475,194       28,349              20,095         48,444        2037 468,349        55,289         523,638           

2038 450,000            21,563         471,563       29,175              19,269         48,444        2038 479,175        40,832         520,007           

2039 465,000            7,266           472,266       30,025              18,419         48,444        2039 495,025        25,685         520,710           

2040 -               30,900              17,544         48,444        2040 30,900          17,544         48,444             

2041 -               31,800              16,644         48,444        2041 31,800          16,644         48,444             

2042 -               32,726              15,718         48,444        2042 32,726          15,718         48,444             

2043 -               33,680              14,764         48,444        2043 33,680          14,764         48,444             

2044 -               34,661              13,783         48,444        2044 34,661          13,783         48,444             

2045 -               35,671              12,773         48,444        2045 35,671          12,773         48,444             

2046 -               36,710              11,734         48,444        2046 36,710          11,734         48,444             

2047 -               37,779              10,665         48,444        2047 37,779          10,665         48,444             

2048 -               38,880              9,564           48,444        2048 38,880          9,564            48,444             

2049 -               40,012              8,432           48,444        2049 40,012          8,432            48,444             

2050 -               41,178              7,266           48,444        2050 41,178          7,266            48,444             

2051 -               42,378              6,066           48,444        2051 42,378          6,066            48,444             

2052 -               43,612              4,832           48,444        2052 43,612          4,832            48,444             

2053 -               44,883              3,561           48,444        2053 44,883          3,561            48,444             

2054 46,190              2,254           48,444        2054 46,190          2,254            48,444             

2055 47,536              908               48,444        2055 47,536          908               48,444             

2056 5,715                18                 5,733          2056 5,715            18                 5,733                

Totals 6,860,000        2,122,781    8,982,781    1,070,334        630,939       1,701,273  1,150,000        149,732       1,299,732  Totals 9,080,334    2,903,452    11,983,786      

2015 Series Bond Grand Total2015 USDA Rural Development Loan 2020 CTCB Loan

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 17 of 50



Customer Billing Data



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Customer Billing Data

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Number of Customers      Total

February-20 3,630                 2                         1                         64                       -                     3,697                  

March-20 3,637                 2                         1                         62                       1                         3,703                  

April-20 3,638                 2                         1                         61                       1                         3,703                  

May-20 3,671                 2                         1                         61                       2                         3,737                  

June-20 3,708                 2                         1                         61                       1                         3,773                  

July-20 3,732                 2                         1                         60                       2                         3,797                  

August-20 3,780                 2                         1                         74                       1                         3,858                  

September-20 3,765                 3                         1                         72                       2                         3,843                  

October-20 3,771                 2                         1                         72                       2                         3,848                  

November-20 3,783                 2                         1                         69                       1                         3,856                  

December-20 3,757                 2                         1                         64                       -                     3,824                  

January-21 3,730                 2                         1                         64                       1                         3,798                  

-                       

Total Customers 44,602               25                      12                      784                    14                      45,437                

Retail Customers 44,602               -                     -                     -                     -                     44,602                

Wholesale Customers -                     25                      12                      -                     -                     37                        

Customer Rate Base 44,602               25                      12                      784                    14                      45,437                

Weighting Factor 1.00                   0.50                   0.50                   0.40                   1.00                   3                          

Weighted Customers 44,602               13                      6                         314                    14                      44,948                

AF

21 Total Customers 98% 0% 0% 2% 0% 100%

22 Retail Customers 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Residential Customers 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

23 Wholesale Customers 0% 68% 32% 0% 0% 100%

24 Customer Rate Base 98% 0% 0% 2% 0% 100%

25 Weighted Customers 99% 0% 0% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 19 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Water Billing Data

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD Total

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Water Volume      

February-20 16,925,910       387,342             712,780             -                     -                     18,026,032         

March-20 14,680,530       400,208             770,486             -                     500                    15,851,724         

April-20 16,020,440       375,821             780,727             -                     800                    17,177,788         

May-20 17,727,020       380,833             846,294             -                     6,500                 18,960,647         

June-20 21,126,530       493,491             1,081,735         -                     1,500                 22,703,256         

July-20 24,655,840       455,638             1,125,519         -                     13,080               26,250,077         

August-20 30,176,390       749,174             1,358,679         -                     4,000                 32,288,243         

September-20 30,347,260       1,028,787         1,457,768         -                     15,500               32,849,315         

October-20 24,758,450       620,958             1,301,528         -                     16,200               26,697,136         

November-20 20,184,610       476,285             1,103,219         -                     600                    21,764,714         

December-20 18,152,830       446,588             1,133,799         -                     -                     19,733,217         

January-21 15,325,420       492,965             1,211,666         -                     3,500                 17,033,551         

-                       

Total Water Sales 250,081,230     6,308,090         12,884,200       -                     62,180               269,335,700      

Retail Water Sales 250,081,230     -                     -                     -                     -                     250,081,230      

Wholesale 1 Water Sales -                     6,308,090         -                     -                     -                     6,308,090           

Wholesale 2 Water Sales -                     -                     12,884,200       -                     -                     12,884,200        

1-CP 30,347,260       1,028,787         1,457,768         -                     15,500               32,849,315        

12-NCP 30,347,260       1,028,787         1,457,768         -                     16,200               32,850,015        

Purchased Water Users 250,081,230     6,308,090         12,884,200       -                     62,180               269,335,700      

AF

30 Total Water Sales 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

31 Retail Water Sales 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

32 Wholesale 1 Water Sales 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%

33 Wholesale 2 Water Sales 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%

34 Demand Month 92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

35 Max Demand 92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

36 Purchased Water Users 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

15 Purchased Allocation 93% 2% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 20 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Water Billing Data

February-20 28 643,787        2,000,000    32% 28,530,000     1,018,929    51%

March-20 31 511,346        2,000,000    26% 25,009,000     806,742        40%

April-20 30 572,593        2,000,000    29% 27,015,000     900,500        45%

May-20 31 611,634        2,000,000    31% 30,337,400     978,626        49%

June-20 30 756,775        2,000,000    38% 35,938,200     1,197,940    60%

July-20 31 846,777        2,000,000    42% 42,826,600     1,381,503    69%

August-20 31 1,041,556    2,000,000    52% 41,772,700     1,347,506    67%

September-20 30 1,094,977    2,000,000    55% 35,543,700     1,184,790    59%

October-20 31 861,198        2,000,000    43% 32,674,800     1,054,026    53%

November-20 30 725,490        2,000,000    36% 28,682,800     956,093        48%

December-20 31 636,555        2,000,000    32% 29,102,800     938,800        47%

January-21 31 549,469        2,000,000    27% 29,934,000     965,613        48%

365 8,852,157    24,000,000  37% 387,367,000   12,731,068  53%

Avg Demand 1,060,922    

Max Day Use 1,726,879    

% Used

Base 37% 100% 37%

Extra Capacity 63% 10% 6%

Customer -10% 57%

Produced 

as % of 

Capacity

Pumped per 

day

# 

Days

Billed Per 

Day

Pump per 

day

Billed as 

% of 

Capacity

Water 

Pumped per 

month

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 21 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Average Usage per Customer

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Gallons per Customer      Total

February-20 4,663                 193,671             712,780             -                     911,114              

March-20 4,036                 200,104             770,486             -                     500                    975,126              

April-20 4,404                 187,911             780,727             -                     800                    973,841              

May-20 4,829                 190,417             846,294             -                     3,250                 1,044,789           

June-20 5,698                 246,746             1,081,735         -                     1,500                 1,335,678           

July-20 6,607                 227,819             1,125,519         -                     6,540                 1,366,485           

August-20 7,983                 374,587             1,358,679         -                     4,000                 1,745,249           

September-20 8,060                 342,929             1,457,768         -                     7,750                 1,816,507           

October-20 6,565                 310,479             1,301,528         -                     8,100                 1,626,672           

November-20 5,336                 238,143             1,103,219         -                     600                    1,347,297           

December-20 4,832                 223,294             1,133,799         -                     1,361,925           

January-21 4,109                 246,483             1,211,666         -                     3,500                 1,465,757           

Average 5,593                 248,548             1,073,683         -                     3,654                 1,330,870           

Summer Average (Jun-Oct) 6,983                 300,512             1,265,046         -                     5,578                 1,578,118           

Winter Average (Nov-Feb) 4,735                 225,398             1,040,366         -                     1,025                 1,271,523           

Percent Summer of Average 125% 121% 118% 153% 119%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 22 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Revenue Billing Data

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Revenue Billings      Total

February-20 183,334$           1,301$               1,960$               913$                  -$                   187,508$                  

March-20 167,311$           1,345$               2,119$               885$                  1$                       171,661$                  

April-20 176,642$           1,263$               2,147$               870$                  2$                       180,924$                  

May-20 189,187$           1,280$               2,327$               870$                  13$                    193,677$                  

June-20 213,688$           1,658$               2,975$               870$                  3$                       219,194$                  

July-20 239,635$           1,531$               3,095$               856$                  26$                    245,143$                  

August-20 283,429$           2,517$               3,736$               1,056$               8$                       290,746$                  

September-20 281,500$           3,457$               4,009$               1,027$               31$                    290,024$                  

October-20 241,126$           2,086$               3,579$               1,027$               33$                    247,851$                  

November-20 208,303$           1,600$               3,034$               985$                  1$                       213,923$                  

December-20 193,217$           1,501$               3,118$               913$                  -$                   198,749$                  

January-21 173,038$           1,656$               3,332$               913$                  7$                       178,946$                  

Total Revenue 2,550,410$       21,195$             35,431$             11,185$             125$                  2,618,346$               

Retail Revenue 2,550,410$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   2,550,410$               

Wholesale Revenue -                     21,195               35,431               -                     -                     56,626                      

 06/30/2020 AFS 

Revenue 

2,676,634$               

AF

50 Total Revenue 97% 1% 1% 0% 0% 100%

51 Retail Revenue 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

52 Wholesale Revenue 0% 37% 63% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 23 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Revenue per Kgal

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2
Revenue / KGallons      

February-20 10.83$               3.36$                 2.75$                 

March-20 11.40$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

April-20 11.03$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.50$                 

May-20 10.67$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

June-20 10.11$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

July-20 9.72$                 3.36$                 2.75$                 1.99$                 

August-20 9.39$                 3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

September-20 9.28$                 3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

October-20 9.74$                 3.36$                 2.75$                 2.04$                 

November-20 10.32$               3.36$                 2.75$                 1.67$                 

December-20 10.64$               3.36$                 2.75$                 

January-21 11.29$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.00$                 

Average 10.37$               3.36$                 2.75$                 2.02$                 

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 24 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Water Purchased Data

Hixson Util. for 

ON the Mtn

Hixson Util. for 

OFF the Mtn Total

Feb-20 27,488                  1,042                    28,530                  

Mar-20 23,832                  1,177                    25,009                  

Apr-20 25,634                  1,381                    27,015                  

May-20 28,545                  1,793                    30,337                  

Jun-20 33,438                  2,500                    35,938                  

Jul-20 39,862                  2,965                    42,827                  

Aug-20 39,210                  2,563                    41,773                  

Sep-20 33,157                  2,387                    35,544                  

Oct-20 30,525                  2,150                    32,675                  

Nov-20 27,251                  1,432                    28,683                  

Dec-20 27,926                  1,177                    29,103                  
Jan-21 28,735                  1,199                    29,934                  

Prior Year Jul-19 Jun-20 353,147                23,661                  376,808                

Current 12 mo Feb-20 Jan-21 365,603                21,764                  387,367                

Purchased Water 365,603                21,764                  387,367                

94.38% 5.62% 100.00%

Purchased Water 365,603                21,764                  

Total Allocated

% To Allocate 

Purchased Water 

Costs

Residential Retail 93% 340,011                20,241                  360,251                93%

Wholesale Wholesale 1 2% 7,312                    435                        7,747                    2%

Wholesale Wholesale 2 5% 18,280                  1,088                    19,368                  5%

Dry Tap Other 1 0% -                        -                        -                        0%

VFD Other 2 0% -                        -                        -                        0%

365,603                21,764                  387,367                100%

Gallons Purchased from Monthly Operating Reports (1000's)

Purchase Allocation

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 25 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Other Revenues, Page 1

Operating Income  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

Penalties 15,269$        1,276$             16,545$        0% 0% 100% 100% * -$              -$              16,545$        16,545$        

Tap Fees 67,750$        1,650$             69,400$        0% 0% 100% 100% * -$              -$              69,400$        69,400$        

Activation Fees 27,825$        315$                28,140$        0% 0% 100% 100% * -$              -$              28,140$        28,140$        

Rental 24,928$        499$                25,427$        0% 0% 100% 100% * -$              -$              25,427$        25,427$        

Miscellaneous 145,708$      (47,155)$          98,553$        0% 0% 0% 0% * -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Operating Income 281,480$     (43,415)$         238,065$     -$              -$              139,512$     139,512$     

0% 0% 100% 100%

Non-Operating Income  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

Interest Income 11,196$        (6,696)$            4,500$          0% 0% 100% 100% -$              -$              4,500$          4,500$          

Amortization 3,120$          -$                 3,120$          0% 0% 100% 100% -$              -$              3,120$          3,120$          

Subtotal Non-Operating Income 14,316$        (6,696)$           7,620$          -$              -$              7,620$          7,620$          

0% 0% 100% 100%

Total Other Revenues 295,796$     (50,111)$         245,685$     -$              -$              147,132$     147,132$     

0% 0% 100% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 26 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Other Revenues, Page 2

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Operating Income  Test Yr      Total

Penalties 16,545$              25 16,418$        5$                  2$                  115$             5$                  16,545$        

Tap Fees 69,400$              25 68,866$        19$               9$                  484$             22$               69,400$        

Activation Fees 28,140$              25 27,923$        8$                  4$                  196$             9$                  28,140$        

Rental 25,427$              25 25,231$        7$                  3$                  177$             8$                  25,427$        

Miscellaneous 98,553$              25 97,794$        27$               13$               688$             31$               98,553$        

Subtotal Operating Income 238,065$            236,232$     66$               32$               1,661$          74$               238,065$     

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Non-Operating Income  Test Yr      Total

Interest Income 4,500$                 50 4,383$          36$               61$               19$               0$                  4,500$          

Amortization 3,120$                 21 3,063$          2$                  1$                  54$               1$                  3,120$          

Subtotal Non-Operating Income 7,620$                7,446$          38$               62$               73$               1$                 7,620$          

Total Other Revenue 245,685$            243,678$     104$             93$               1,734$          75$               245,685$     

99% 0% 0% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 27 of 50



Operating Expense



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Classification of Operating Expenses

Distribution  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

Water Purchases 341,532$      15,597$        357,129$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 132,138$      21,428$        203,564$      357,130$      

Chemicals and Testing 5,950$          2,450$          8,400$          37% 6% 57% 100% * 3,108$          504$             4,788$          8,400$          

Fuel 10,478$        7,272$          17,750$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 6,568$          1,065$          10,118$        17,751$        

Salaries 206,005$      6,877$          212,882$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 78,766$        12,773$        121,343$      212,882$      

Payroll Taxes 15,563$        3,697$          19,260$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 7,126$          1,156$          10,978$        19,260$        

Pension 10,214$        5,017$          15,231$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 5,635$          914$             8,682$          15,231$        

Employee Benefits 201,487$      12,098$        213,585$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 79,026$        12,815$        121,743$      213,584$      

Utilities 223,812$      40,543$        264,355$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 97,811$        15,861$        150,682$      264,354$      

Insurance 19,813$        1,787$          21,600$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 7,992$          1,296$          12,312$        21,600$        

System Maintenance 139,308$      88,631$        227,939$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 84,337$        13,676$        129,925$      227,938$      

Truck and Equipment Repairs 50,858$        (4,058)$         46,800$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 17,316$        2,808$          26,676$        46,800$        

Miscellaneous -$              37% 6% 57% 100% * -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Distribution 1,225,020$  179,911$     1,404,931$  519,823$     84,296$        800,811$     1,404,930$  

37% 6% 57% 100%

Admin & General  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

Salaries 366,231$      12,227$        378,458$      37% 6% 57% 100% 140,029$      22,707$        215,721$      378,457$      

Payroll Taxes 27,667$        6,573$          34,240$        37% 6% 57% 100% 12,669$        2,054$          19,517$        34,240$        

Pension 18,158$        8,918$          27,076$        37% 6% 57% 100% 10,018$        1,625$          15,433$        27,076$        

Employee Benefits 164,853$      9,898$          174,751$      37% 6% 57% 100% 64,658$        10,485$        99,608$        174,751$      

Utilities 3,149$          2,246$          5,395$          37% 6% 57% 100% 1,996$          324$             3,075$          5,395$          

Office 66,002$        (10,202)$      55,800$        37% 6% 57% 100% 20,646$        3,348$          31,806$        55,800$        

Insurance 2,201$          199$             2,400$          37% 6% 57% 100% 888$             144$             1,368$          2,400$          

Travel and Training 4,728$          5,172$          9,900$          37% 6% 57% 100% 3,663$          594$             5,643$          9,900$          

Miscellaneous 2,052$          5,860$          7,912$          37% 6% 57% 100% 2,927$          475$             4,510$          7,912$          

Subtotal Admin & General 655,041$     40,891$        695,932$     257,494$     41,756$        396,681$     695,931$     

37% 6% 57% 100%

Total Operating Expenses 1,880,061$  220,802$     2,100,863$  777,317$     126,052$     1,197,492$  2,100,861$  

37% 6% 57% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 29 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Base Expenses

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Distribution  Test Yr      Total

Water Purchases 132,138$             34 122,073$      4,138$          5,864$          -$              62$                132,138$      

Chemicals and Testing 3,108$                 34 2,871$          97$                138$              -$              1$                  3,108$          

Fuel 6,568$                 34 6,068$          206$              291$              -$              3$                  6,568$          

Salaries 78,766$               34 72,767$        2,467$          3,495$          -$              37$                78,766$        

Payroll Taxes 7,126$                 34 6,583$          223$              316$              -$              3$                  7,126$          

Pension 5,635$                 34 5,206$          176$              250$              -$              3$                  5,635$          

Employee Benefits 79,026$               34 73,007$        2,475$          3,507$          -$              37$                79,026$        

Utilities 97,811$               34 90,361$        3,063$          4,341$          -$              46$                97,811$        

Insurance 7,992$                 34 7,383$          250$              355$              -$              4$                  7,992$          

System Maintenance 84,337$               34 77,913$        2,641$          3,743$          -$              40$                84,337$        

Truck and Equipment Repairs 17,316$               34 15,997$        542$              768$              -$              8$                  17,316$        

Miscellaneous -$                     30 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Distribution 519,823$            480,229$      16,280$        23,068$        -$              245$             519,823$      

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Admin & General  Test Yr      Total

Salaries 140,029$             30 130,019$      3,280$          6,699$          -$              32$                140,029$      

Payroll Taxes 12,669$               30 11,763$        297$              606$              -$              3$                  12,669$        

Pension 10,018$               30 9,302$          235$              479$              -$              2$                  10,018$        

Employee Benefits 64,658$               30 60,036$        1,514$          3,093$          -$              15$                64,658$        

Utilities 1,996$                 30 1,853$          47$                95$                -$              0$                  1,996$          

Office 20,646$               30 19,170$        484$              988$              -$              5$                  20,646$        

Insurance 888$                    30 825$              21$                42$                -$              0$                  888$              

Travel and Training 3,663$                 30 3,401$          86$                175$              -$              1$                  3,663$          

Miscellaneous 2,927$                 30 2,718$          69$                140$              -$              1$                  2,927$          

Subtotal Admin & General 257,494$            239,086$      6,031$          12,318$        -$              59$                257,494$      

Total Operating Expenses 777,317$            719,315$      22,311$        35,386$        -$              305$             777,317$      

93% 3% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 30 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Extra Capacity Expenses

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Distribution  Test Yr      Total

Water Purchases 21,428$               34 19,796$        671$              951$              -$              10$                21,428$        

Chemicals and Testing 504$                    34 466$              16$                22$                -$              0$                  504$              

Fuel 1,065$                 34 984$              33$                47$                -$              1$                  1,065$          

Salaries 12,773$               34 11,800$        400$              567$              -$              6$                  12,773$        

Payroll Taxes 1,156$                 34 1,068$          36$                51$                -$              1$                  1,156$          

Pension 914$                    34 844$              29$                41$                -$              0$                  914$              

Employee Benefits 12,815$               34 11,839$        401$              569$              -$              6$                  12,815$        

Utilities 15,861$               34 14,653$        497$              704$              -$              7$                  15,861$        

Insurance 1,296$                 34 1,197$          41$                58$                -$              1$                  1,296$          

System Maintenance 13,676$               34 12,634$        428$              607$              -$              6$                  13,676$        

Truck and Equipment Repairs 2,808$                 34 2,594$          88$                125$              -$              1$                  2,808$          

Miscellaneous -$                     33 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Distribution 84,296$               77,875$        2,640$          3,741$          -$              40$                84,296$        

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Admin & General  Test Yr      Total

Salaries 22,707$               34 20,977$        711$              1,008$          -$              11$                22,707$        

Payroll Taxes 2,054$                 34 1,898$          64$                91$                -$              1$                  2,054$          

Pension 1,625$                 34 1,501$          51$                72$                -$              1$                  1,625$          

Employee Benefits 10,485$               34 9,686$          328$              465$              -$              5$                  10,485$        

Utilities 324$                    34 299$              10$                14$                -$              0$                  324$              

Office 3,348$                 34 3,093$          105$              149$              -$              2$                  3,348$          

Insurance 144$                    34 133$              5$                  6$                  -$              0$                  144$              

Travel and Training 594$                    34 549$              19$                26$                -$              0$                  594$              

Miscellaneous 475$                    34 439$              15$                21$                -$              0$                  475$              

Subtotal Admin & General 41,756$               38,576$        1,308$          1,853$          -$              20$                41,756$        

Total Operating Expenses 126,052$            116,451$      3,948$          5,594$          -$              59$                126,052$      

92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 31 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Customer Expenses

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Distribution  Test Yr      Total

Water Purchases 203,564$             15 189,315$      4,071$          10,178$        -$              -$              203,564$      

Chemicals and Testing 4,788$                 15 4,453$          96$                239$              -$              -$              4,788$          

Fuel 10,118$               25 10,040$        3$                  1$                  71$                3$                  10,118$        

Salaries 121,343$             25 120,409$      34$                16$                847$              38$                121,343$      

Payroll Taxes 10,978$               25 10,893$        3$                  1$                  77$                3$                  10,978$        

Pension 8,682$                 25 8,615$          2$                  1$                  61$                3$                  8,682$          

Employee Benefits 121,743$             25 120,806$      34$                16$                849$              38$                121,743$      

Utilities 150,682$             25 149,522$      42$                20$                1,051$          47$                150,682$      

Insurance 12,312$               25 12,217$        3$                  2$                  86$                4$                  12,312$        

System Maintenance 129,925$             25 128,925$      36$                17$                906$              40$                129,925$      

Truck and Equipment Repairs 26,676$               25 26,471$        7$                  4$                  186$              8$                  26,676$        

Miscellaneous -$                     21 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Distribution 800,811$            781,664$      4,332$          10,497$        4,134$          185$             800,811$      

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Admin & General  Test Yr      Total

Salaries 215,721$             25 214,060$      60$                29$                1,505$          67$                215,721$      

Payroll Taxes 19,517$               25 19,367$        5$                  3$                  136$              6$                  19,517$        

Pension 15,433$               25 15,314$        4$                  2$                  108$              5$                  15,433$        

Employee Benefits 99,608$               25 98,841$        28$                13$                695$              31$                99,608$        

Utilities 3,075$                 25 3,051$          1$                  0$                  21$                1$                  3,075$          

Office 31,806$               25 31,561$        9$                  4$                  222$              10$                31,806$        

Insurance 1,368$                 25 1,357$          0$                  0$                  10$                0$                  1,368$          

Travel and Training 5,643$                 25 5,600$          2$                  1$                  39$                2$                  5,643$          

Miscellaneous 4,510$                 25 4,475$          1$                  1$                  31$                1$                  4,510$          

Subtotal Admin & General 396,681$            393,627$      110$             53$                2,768$          124$             396,681$      

Total Operating Expenses 1,197,492$         1,175,291$  4,442$          10,550$        6,901$          308$             1,197,492$  

98% 0% 1% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 32 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Summary of Operating Expense Allocation

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Distribution  Test Yr      Total

Water Purchases 357,129$             331,184$      8,881$          16,993$        -$              72$                357,130$      

Chemicals and Testing 8,400$                 7,790$          209$              400$              -$              2$                  8,400$          

Fuel 17,750$               17,092$        242$              340$              71$                7$                  17,751$        

Salaries 212,882$             204,975$      2,901$          4,078$          847$              81$                212,882$      

Payroll Taxes 19,260$               18,545$        262$              369$              77$                7$                  19,260$        

Pension 15,231$               14,665$        208$              292$              61$                6$                  15,231$        

Employee Benefits 213,585$             205,651$      2,910$          4,092$          849$              81$                213,584$      

Utilities 264,355$             254,536$      3,602$          5,065$          1,051$          101$              264,354$      

Insurance 21,600$               20,798$        294$              414$              86$                8$                  21,600$        

System Maintenance 227,939$             219,472$      3,106$          4,367$          906$              87$                227,938$      

Truck and Equipment Repairs 46,800$               45,062$        638$              897$              186$              18$                46,800$        

Miscellaneous -$                     -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Subtotal Distribution 1,404,931$         1,339,769$  23,252$        37,306$        4,134$          470$             1,404,930$  

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Admin & General  Test Yr      Total

Salaries 378,458$             365,056$      4,051$          7,735$          1,505$          110$              378,457$      

Payroll Taxes 34,240$               33,028$        366$              700$              136$              10$                34,240$        

Pension 27,076$               26,117$        290$              553$              108$              8$                  27,076$        

Employee Benefits 174,751$             168,563$      1,870$          3,572$          695$              51$                174,751$      

Utilities 5,395$                 5,204$          58$                110$              21$                2$                  5,395$          

Office 55,800$               53,824$        597$              1,140$          222$              16$                55,800$        

Insurance 2,400$                 2,315$          26$                49$                10$                1$                  2,400$          

Travel and Training 9,900$                 9,549$          106$              202$              39$                3$                  9,900$          

Miscellaneous 7,912$                 7,632$          85$                162$              31$                2$                  7,912$          

Subtotal Admin & General 695,932$            671,288$      7,449$          14,224$        2,768$          203$             695,931$      

Total Operating Expenses 2,100,863$         2,011,057$  30,701$        51,530$        6,901$          672$             2,100,861$  

96% 1% 2% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 33 of 50



Debt Service



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Classification of Debt Service

Principal Expense  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

2015 Series Bond 275,000$      10,000$        285,000$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 105,450$      17,100$        162,450$      285,000$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 17,339$        1,089$          18,428$        37% 6% 57% 100% * 6,818$          1,106$          10,504$        18,428$        

2020 CTCB Loan -$              103,892$      103,892$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 38,440$        6,234$          59,218$        103,892$      

Subtotal Principal Expense 292,339$     114,981$     407,320$     150,708$     24,440$        232,172$     407,320$     

37% 6% 57% 100%

Interest Expense  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

2015 Series Bond 196,556$      (11,200)$      185,356$      37% 6% 57% 100% 0 68,582$        11,121$        105,653$      185,356$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 31,045$        (1,029)$         30,016$        37% 6% 57% 100% 0 11,106$        1,801$          17,109$        30,016$        

2020 CTCB Loan -$              26,081$        26,081$        37% 6% 57% 100% 0 9,650$          1,565$          14,866$        26,081$        

Subtotal Interest Expense 227,601$     13,852$        241,453$     89,338$        14,487$        137,628$     241,453$     

37% 6% 57% 100%

Total Debt Service 519,940$     128,833$     648,773$     240,046$     38,927$        369,800$     648,773$     

37% 6% 57% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 35 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Base Debt Service 

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Principal Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 105,450$            34 97,418$        3,303$          4,680$          -$              50$               105,450$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 6,818$                 34 6,299$          214$             303$             -$              3$                  6,818$          

2020 CTCB Loan 38,440$              30 35,692$        900$             1,839$          -$              9$                  38,440$        

Subtotal Principal Expense 150,708$            139,409$     4,416$          6,821$          -$              62$               150,708$     

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Interest Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 68,582$              34 63,358$        2,148$          3,043$          -$              32$               68,582$        

2015 USDA RD Loan 11,106$              34 10,260$        348$             493$             -$              5$                  11,106$        

2020 CTCB Loan 9,650$                 30 8,960$          226$             462$             -$              2$                  9,650$          

Subtotal Interest Expense 89,338$              82,578$        2,722$          3,998$          -$              40$               89,338$        

Total Debt Service 240,046$            221,987$     7,138$          10,819$        -$              102$             240,046$     

92% 3% 5% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 36 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Extra Capacity Debt Service

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Principal Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 17,100$              34 15,798$        536$             759$             -$              8$                  17,100$        

2015 USDA RD Loan 1,106$                 34 1,022$          35$               49$               -$              1$                  1,106$          

2020 CTCB Loan 6,234$                 33 -$              -$              6,234$          -$              -$              6,234$          

Subtotal Principal Expense 24,440$              16,819$        570$             7,042$          -$              9$                 24,440$        

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Interest Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 11,121$              34 10,274$        348$             494$             -$              5$                  11,121$        

2015 USDA RD Loan 1,801$                 34 1,664$          56$               80$               -$              1$                  1,801$          

2020 CTCB Loan 1,565$                 33 -$              -$              1,565$          -$              -$              1,565$          

Subtotal Interest Expense 14,487$              11,938$        405$             2,138$          -$              6$                 14,487$        

Total Debt Service 38,927$              28,757$        975$             9,180$          -$              15$               38,927$        

74% 3% 24% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 37 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Customer Debt Service

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Principal Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 162,450$            25 161,199$      45$               22$               1,133$          51$               162,450$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 10,504$              25 10,423$        3$                  1$                  73$               3$                  10,504$        

2020 CTCB Loan 59,218$              21 58,130$        33$               16$               1,022$          18$               59,218$        

Subtotal Principal Expense 232,172$            229,752$     81$               39$               2,228$          72$               232,172$     

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Interest Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 105,653$            25 104,839$      29$               14$               737$             33$               105,653$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 17,109$              25 16,977$        5$                  2$                  119$             5$                  17,109$        

2020 CTCB Loan 14,866$              21 14,593$        8$                  4$                  257$             5$                  14,866$        

Subtotal Interest Expense 137,628$            136,410$     42$               20$               1,113$          43$               137,628$     

Total Debt Service 369,800$            366,162$     123$             59$               3,341$          115$             369,800$     

99% 0% 0% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 38 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Summary of Debt Service Allocation

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Principal Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 285,000$            274,415$      3,883$          5,460$          1,133$          108$             285,000$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 18,428$              17,744$        251$             353$             73$               7$                  18,428$        

2020 CTCB Loan 103,892$            93,822$        933$             8,088$          1,022$          27$               103,892$      

Subtotal Principal Expense 407,320$            385,980$     5,067$          13,902$        2,228$          143$             407,320$     

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Interest Expense  Test Yr      Total

2015 Series Bond 185,356$            178,472$      2,526$          3,551$          737$             71$               185,356$      

2015 USDA RD Loan 30,016$              28,901$        409$             575$             119$             11$               30,016$        

2020 CTCB Loan 26,081$              23,553$        234$             2,031$          257$             7$                  26,081$        

Subtotal Interest Expense 241,453$            230,926$     3,169$          6,157$          1,113$          89$               241,453$     

Total Debt Service 648,773$            616,906$     8,236$          20,058$        3,341$          231$             648,773$     

95% 1% 3% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 39 of 50



Capital Improvement Plan



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Classification of Capital Improvement Plan

Capital Improvement Plan  Actual Adj Test Yr. Base Ex-Cap Cust Total Description * Base Ex-Cap Cust Total

Future Capital - Self Funded 64,135$        135,865$        200,000$      37% 6% 57% 100% * 74,000$        12,000$        114,000$      200,000$      

Subtotal Capital Improvement 

Plan 64,135$        135,865$        200,000$     74,000$        12,000$        114,000$     200,000$     

37% 6% 57% 100%

Total CIP 64,135$        135,865$        200,000$     74,000$        12,000$        114,000$     200,000$     

Total Rate Funding 64,135$        135,865$        200,000$     74,000$        12,000$        114,000$     200,000$     

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 41 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Base Capital Improvement Plan

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Capital Improvement Plan  Test Yr      Total

Future Capital - Self Funded 74,000$              34 68,364$        2,318$          3,284$          -$              35$               74,000$        

Subtotal Capital Improvement 

Plan 74,000$              68,364$        2,318$          3,284$          -$              35$               74,000$        

92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 42 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Extra Capacity Capital Improvement Plan

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Capital Improvement Plan  Test Yr      Total

Future Capital - Self Funded 12,000$              34 11,086$        376$             533$             -$              6$                  12,000$        

Subtotal Capital Improvement 

Plan 12,000$              11,086$        376$             533$             -$              6$                 12,000$        

92% 3% 4% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 43 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Allocation of Customer Capital Improvement Plan

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Capital Improvement Plan  Test Yr      Total

Future Capital - Self Funded 114,000$            25 113,122$      32$               15$               795$             36$               114,000$      

Subtotal Capital Improvement 

Plan 114,000$            113,122$     32$               15$               795$             36$               114,000$     

99% 0% 0% 1% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 44 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Summary of Capital Improvement Plan Allocation

WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD WRUD

Residential Wholesale Wholesale Dry Tap VFD

Retail Wholesale 1 Wholesale 2 Other 1 Other 2

Capital Improvement Plan  Test Yr      Total

Future Capital - Self Funded 200,000$            192,572$      2,725$          3,832$          795$             76$               200,000$      

Subtotal Capital Improvement 

Plan 200,000$            192,572$     2,725$          3,832$          795$             76$               200,000$     

96% 1% 2% 0% 0% 100%

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 45 of 50



Customer Billing Data



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Customer Billing Data

Month Format Month Year Service Type Class Hold 1 Class Hold 2 Combined # of Users Revenue Gallons

1 July-19 7 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  7 WRUD Residential 3667 229,010     27,024,070     

2 July-19 7 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  7 WRUD Wholesale 2 991             330,488          

3 July-19 7 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  7 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,358         1,221,024       

4 July-19 7 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  7 WRUD Dry Tap 63 899             -                   

5 July-19 7 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  7 WRUD VFD 2 10               5,000              

6 August-19 8 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  8 WRUD Residential 3670 252,732     26,574,040     

7 August-19 8 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  8 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,671         556,851          

8 August-19 8 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  8 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,581         1,302,133       

9 August-19 8 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  8 WRUD Dry Tap 63 899             -                   

10 August-19 8 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  8 WRUD VFD 1 2                 1,000              

11 September-19 9 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  9 WRUD Residential 3686 264,533     28,145,740     

12 September-19 9 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  9 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,772         590,512          

13 September-19 9 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  9 WRUD Wholesale 1 4,250         1,545,573       

14 September-19 9 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  9 WRUD Dry Tap 63 899             -                   

15 September-19 9 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  9 WRUD VFD 2 13               6,500              

16 October-19 10 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  10 WRUD Residential 3695 327,445     36,701,840     

17 October-19 10 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  10 WRUD Wholesale 2 2,568         856,071          

18 October-19 10 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  10 WRUD Wholesale 1 4,206         1,529,391       

19 October-19 10 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  10 WRUD Dry Tap 63 899             -                   

20 October-19 10 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  10 WRUD VFD 0 -              -                   

21 November-19 11 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  11 WRUD Residential 3699 260,310     27,529,900     

22 November-19 11 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  11 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,554         517,876          

23 November-19 11 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  11 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,531         1,284,122       

24 November-19 11 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  11 WRUD Dry Tap 63 899             -                   

25 November-19 11 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  11 WRUD VFD 2 5                 2,500              

26 December-19 12 2019 WRUD Residential Retail  12 WRUD Residential 3677 179,572     16,457,020     

27 December-19 12 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  12 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,361         453,769          

28 December-19 12 2019 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  12 WRUD Wholesale 1 2,103         764,665          

29 December-19 12 2019 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  12 WRUD Dry Tap 62 885             -                   

30 December-19 12 2019 WRUD VFD Other 2  12 WRUD VFD 0 -              -                   

31 January-20 1 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  1 WRUD Residential 3635 163,339     14,189,570     

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 47 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Customer Billing Data

Month Format Month Year Service Type Class Hold 1 Class Hold 2 Combined # of Users Revenue Gallons

32 January-20 1 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  1 WRUD Wholesale 2 2,208         736,007          

33 January-20 1 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  1 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,199         1,163,417       

34 January-20 1 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  1 WRUD Dry Tap 65 928             -                   

35 January-20 1 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  1 WRUD VFD 2 50               24,500            

36 February-20 2 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  2 WRUD Residential 3630 183,334     16,925,910     

37 February-20 2 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  2 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,301         387,342          

38 February-20 2 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  2 WRUD Wholesale 1 1,960         712,780          

39 February-20 2 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  2 WRUD Dry Tap 64 913             -                   

40 February-20 2 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  2 WRUD VFD 0 -              -                   

41 March-20 3 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  3 WRUD Residential 3637 167,311     14,680,530     

42 March-20 3 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  3 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,345         400,208          

43 March-20 3 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  3 WRUD Wholesale 1 2,119         770,486          

44 March-20 3 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  3 WRUD Dry Tap 62 885             -                   

45 March-20 3 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  3 WRUD VFD 1 1                 500                  

46 April-20 4 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  4 WRUD Residential 3638 176,642     16,020,440     

47 April-20 4 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  4 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,263         375,821          

48 April-20 4 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  4 WRUD Wholesale 1 2,147         780,727          

49 April-20 4 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  4 WRUD Dry Tap 61 870             -                   

50 April-20 4 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  4 WRUD VFD 1 2                 800                  

51 May-20 5 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  5 WRUD Residential 3671 189,187     17,727,020     

52 May-20 5 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  5 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,280         380,833          

53 May-20 5 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  5 WRUD Wholesale 1 2,327         846,294          

54 May-20 5 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  5 WRUD Dry Tap 61 870             -                   

55 May-20 5 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  5 WRUD VFD 2 13               6,500              

56 June-20 6 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  6 WRUD Residential 3708 213,688     21,126,530     

57 June-20 6 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  6 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,658         493,491          

58 June-20 6 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  6 WRUD Wholesale 1 2,975         1,081,735       

59 June-20 6 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  6 WRUD Dry Tap 61 870             -                   

60 June-20 6 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  6 WRUD VFD 1 3                 1,500              

61 July-20 7 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  7 WRUD Residential 3732 239,635     24,655,840     

62 July-20 7 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  7 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,531         455,638          

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 48 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Customer Billing Data

Month Format Month Year Service Type Class Hold 1 Class Hold 2 Combined # of Users Revenue Gallons

63 July-20 7 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  7 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,095         1,125,519       

64 July-20 7 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  7 WRUD Dry Tap 60 856             -                   

65 July-20 7 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  7 WRUD VFD 2 26               13,080            

66 August-20 8 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  8 WRUD Residential 3780 283,429     30,176,390     

67 August-20 8 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  8 WRUD Wholesale 2 2,517         749,174          

68 August-20 8 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  8 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,736         1,358,679       

69 August-20 8 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  8 WRUD Dry Tap 74 1,056         -                   

70 August-20 8 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  8 WRUD VFD 1 8                 4,000              

71 September-20 9 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  9 WRUD Residential 3765 281,500     30,347,260     

72 September-20 9 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  9 WRUD Wholesale 3 3,457         1,028,787       

73 September-20 9 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  9 WRUD Wholesale 1 4,009         1,457,768       

74 September-20 9 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  9 WRUD Dry Tap 72 1,027         -                   

75 September-20 9 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  9 WRUD VFD 2 31               15,500            

76 October-20 10 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  10 WRUD Residential 3771 241,126     24,758,450     

77 October-20 10 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  10 WRUD Wholesale 2 2,086         620,958          

78 October-20 10 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  10 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,579         1,301,528       

79 October-20 10 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  10 WRUD Dry Tap 72 1,027         -                   

80 October-20 10 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  10 WRUD VFD 2 33               16,200            

81 November-20 11 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  11 WRUD Residential 3783 208,303     20,184,610     

82 November-20 11 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  11 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,600         476,285          

83 November-20 11 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  11 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,034         1,103,219       

84 November-20 11 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  11 WRUD Dry Tap 69 985             -                   

85 November-20 11 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  11 WRUD VFD 1 1                 600                  

86 December-20 12 2020 WRUD Residential Retail  12 WRUD Residential 3757 193,217     18,152,830     

87 December-20 12 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  12 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,501         446,588          

88 December-20 12 2020 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  12 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,118         1,133,799       

89 December-20 12 2020 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  12 WRUD Dry Tap 64 913             -                   

90 December-20 12 2020 WRUD VFD Other 2  12 WRUD VFD 0 -              -                   

91 January-21 1 2021 WRUD Residential Retail  1 WRUD Residential 3730 173,038     15,325,420     

92 January-21 1 2021 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  1 WRUD Wholesale 2 1,656         492,965          

93 January-21 1 2021 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  1 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,332         1,211,666       

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 49 of 50



Walden's Ridge Utility District

Water Cost of Service Study

12 Months Ended January 31, 2021

Customer Billing Data

Month Format Month Year Service Type Class Hold 1 Class Hold 2 Combined # of Users Revenue Gallons

94 January-21 1 2021 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  1 WRUD Dry Tap 64 913             -                   

95 January-21 1 2021 WRUD VFD Other 2  1 WRUD VFD 1 7                 3,500              

96 February-21 2 2021 WRUD Residential Retail  2 WRUD Residential 3725 179,441     16,229,578     

97 February-21 2 2021 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 1  2 WRUD Wholesale 2 2,431         723,367          

98 February-21 2 2021 WRUD Wholesale Wholesale 2  2 WRUD Wholesale 1 3,153         1,146,456       

99 February-21 2 2021 WRUD Dry Tap Other 1  2 WRUD Dry Tap 99 1,413         -                   

100 February-21 2 2021 WRUD VFD Other 2  2 WRUD VFD 1 11               5,600              

 

Check Totals to WRUD Billing DataData Sheets

-                -              -                   

2 2020 3,697           187,508     18,026,032     

3 2020 3,703           171,661     15,851,724     

4 2020 3,703           180,924     17,177,788     

5 2020 3,737           193,677     18,960,647     

6 2020 3,773           219,194     22,703,256     

7 2020 3,797           245,143     26,250,077     

8 2020 3,858           290,746     32,288,243     

9 2020 3,843           290,024     32,849,315     

10 2020 3,848           247,851     26,697,136     

11 2020 3,856           213,923     21,764,714     

12 2020 3,824           198,749     19,733,217     

1 2021 3,798           178,946     17,033,551     

Cost of Service Study Prepared by Daniel E. Peterson, CPA Page 50 of 50





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Woodlawn Utility District 
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District contracted with the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts (“TAUD”) to perform 
a rate study in accordance with the Board’s previous order. TAUD has completed the study and 
submitted its resulting report and recommendations to the District and to Board staff. The TAUD 
report does not recommend any rate increases due to customer growth and the decrease of gallons 
on its minimum bill from 1,600 gallons to 1,000 gallons. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Order the following:  
  

1. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and September 
1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases the District from 
its oversight.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts 

VIUII fof TennesSff's future 

REPORT FOR WOODLAWN UTILITY 
DISTRICT 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
BOARD ORDER DATED NOVEMBER 5, 

2020 

June 24, 2021 



INTRODUCTION 

Description of the Woodlawn Utilitv District Water System 

Woodlawn Utility District (the District) is located in Montgomery County, Tennessee. The 
District's board of commissioners has three members who are appointed by the Montgomery 
County Mayor. The District gets its raw water supply from Cumberland River and operates a 
water treatment plant with a design capacity of 615,000 gallons per day. 

As of December 31, 2019, the District had 3,705 residential and small commercial customers. All 
customers are charged the same rates. 

The District was referred to the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) upon the submission 
of its audit for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, because it met the statutory definition for 
a financially distressed utility district. The District had a negative change in net position for two 
consecutive years without regard to any grants or capital contributions for its 2018 and 2019 fiscal 
years. 

The balance of the District's Cash and Cash Equivalents accounts as of January 1, 2021, was 
$1,582,043. Of this amount, $135,236 was restricted. 

Utility Management Review Board Order 

On November 5, 2020, the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) issued an order directing 
the District to do the following. 

1) The District shall have TADD, or another qualified expert as approved by Board staff, to 
perform a rate study that includes the following: 

• A review of the leak adjustment policy; 
• The creation of a five-year capital asset budget to be taken from the current 

capital asset list and to include future anticipated needs; and 
• A review of connection, reconnection, and tap fees. 

2) By November 30, 2020, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1. 

3) By November 30, 2020, the District shall ensure that it's commissioners have met all 
training requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. 7-82-
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(1). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law. 

4) By December 31, 2020, the District shall provide to the Board staff either proof of 
compliance or a proposed plan of compliance with the directives in paragraph 3. 

2 



5) By March 31, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation. 

The District received an extension for complying with the UMRB's Order until May 31, 2021. 

3 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation #1 

TA UD does not recommend any rate changes. 

Recommendation #2 

The District may want to consider increasing its re-connection fees so they cover more of the costs 
the District incurs in re-connecting service after service terminations for non-payment than the 
existing fees. 

4 



FIVE YEAR CAPITAL ASSET PLAN 

The District developed and adopted the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan attached to this 
Report as Exhibit 1. 

RA TE STUDY AND PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 

To determine whether existing rates will produce sufficient revenues to make the District's water 
system self-supporting, TAUD first projected a Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position for the District for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, to use as its test year. 
Before the UMRB issued its November 5, 2020 Order, the District had adopted the following rate 
schedule effective February 1, 2019: 

Minimum monthly bill (includes 1,600 gallons) 
Over 1,600 gallons 

$23.29 
$11.50 per 1,000 gallons. 

TAUD projected the revenues for the system using these existing rates. 

TAUD projected operation and maintenance expenses and debt service payments by reviewing 
historical information from the five previous years, the District's budget for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2021, the District's unaudited financial statements for 2020, and any known and 
anticipated changes during the test year. See the Revenues and Expenses - Test Year Schedule 
attached as Exhibit 2. A description of new revenues during the test year and projection period is 
set forth in Exhibit 3. 

Then, TAUD projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the 
District for its fiscal years ending June 30 of 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. See Exhibit 4 attached 
to this Report. 

Revenue Projections: 

• Revenue from water sales for the 2021 test year was projected by taking the District's 
actual water usage reports for its customers for 2019, and applying the District's water rates 
in effect on January 1, 2021, to this actual usage. TA UD increased this amount by 
$108,000 to reflect annual customer growth for 2021 of 150 residential customers. 

• The test year includes two additional revenue items as a result a new agreement with the 
City of Clarksville. The District began providing water service to a portion of the Liberty 
Park development which had previously been served by the City of Clarksville. TAUD 
projected this customer increase will produce $60,000 in annual revenues. The District 
began providing billing and collection services for the City of Clarksville sewer customers 
which are District water customers and is receiving sewer billing fees for providing these 
billing and collection services. This new sewer billing fees increase the District's revenues 
by $18,000 a year. 

5 



• Delinquent penalties for the test year are based upon the District's budget for its 2021 fiscal 
year. 

• Other revenue for the test year is based upon the average of other revenues for the District's 
2019 and 2020 fiscal years. 

• Interest income for the test year is based upon the District's budget for its 2021 fiscal year. 

• Installation and connection fees for the test year are based upon the average of installation 
and connection fees for the District's 2019 and 2020 fiscal years plus $11,500 from the 
expected annual growth of 150 customer in 2021. 

• The water sales for the 2022-2025 fiscal years include an annual increase of 150 customers 
a year with an average monthly water bill of $60 and an annual increase in water sales to a 
new apartment complex with 200 units beginning in 2022. 

• No annual increases in the following revenue items are included in the remaining four-year 
projection period: delinquent penalties; other revenue; tap fees; installation and 
connection; and interest income. 

Expense Projections: 

• Except for depreciation, all operating expenses for the test year are based upon the 
District's budget for its 2021 fiscal year. 

• TAUD included a new line item expense in the test year for leak detection work in the 
amount of $30,000 which will be an annual expense. 

• Depreciation for the test year is based upon the District's fixed asset schedule which 
includes the annual depreciation amount of its capital assets. Then, TAUD added the 
annual depreciation on the capital assets added during the District's 2020 fiscal year and 
capital assets added or which are planned to be added during the District's 2021 fiscal year. 

• Interest expense is based upon on the debt amortization schedules of District's existing 
debt. 

• Except for depreciation, operating expenses for the remaining four years in the five-year 
projection period are increased by 2% annually over the projected amount for the test year. 

• Annual depreciation expenses for the remaining four years of the five-year projection 
includes depreciation on new capital assets planned to be placed into service during the 
remaining four year of five-year projection period. 

6 



• Interest expense is based on the debt amortization schedules of existing debt and the 
projected interest expense of debt the District plans to issue in it 2023 fiscal year. 

Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Modifications Required 

At the rates in effect on January 1, 2021, TAUD projected that the District would have a positive 
change in net position of $91,913 for the test year ending June 30, 2021, excluding grants and 
capital contributions. 

The District made one rate change which became effective on March 1, 2021: The District 
decreased the amount of water included in the District's minimum monthly bill from 1,600 gallons 
to 1,000 gallons. 

Due primarily to anticipated customer growth, TAUD projects that District will have a positive 
change in net position for each of the remaining four years in the five-year projection period. 
Therefore, TAUD recommends no rate changes. 

Projected Cash and Investments Schedule 

The District should have a cash and investments balance of $3,438,848 as of December 31, 2025, 
based upon the revenue and expense projections in Exhibit 4. The Projected Cash and Cash 
Equivalents Balance Schedule is attached as Exhibit 5. 

TAP FEES 

TAUD recommended that the District review the average material and labor costs it incurs in 
installing a water tap to ensure the current tap fee is covering the cost of making a tap. The District 
estimated the labor and material costs it incurs to install a residential tap which is set forth Exhibit 
6. 

At its board meeting in December of 2020, the District increased its water tap fee from $1,200 to 
$1,300 to ensure that the tap fee is adequately covering the District's costs to install a residential 
water tap. 

CONNECTION FEES 

When the District was referred to the UMRB, the District had the following connection and 
reconnection customer fees: 

Connection fee 
Reconnection fee ( during business hours) 
Reconnection fee ( after business hours) 

7 

$75 
$50 
$100 



At a minimum, a connection fee should cover the cost of establishing new service for a customer. 
These costs should attempt to cover a customer service employee meeting with the applicant or 
talking with the applicant by phone, reviewing the application for service, and processing the 
connection fee payment and tap fee payment, if applicable. A field employee must travel to the 
service address to verify the initial meter reading for the new account and to turn on the meter. 

TADD recommended that the District review the costs it incurs in establishing service for a new 
customer. The District estimated the costs to establish service for a new customer to be 
approximately $66.00. The District's $75 connection fee is reasonable. 

T AUD recommended that the District review the costs it incurs in reconnecting service after water 
service is terminated for non-payment. A District employee must make two trips to a customer's 
service address to tum off water for non-payment and to turn the water back on once payment is 
made. In addition, the administrative time required to prepare service termination lists, 
communicate with delinquent customers and record payments should be covered by the reconnect 
fee. The estimated costs the District incurs in reconnecting service is set forth Exhibit 6. The 
current reconnection fees do not appear to be covering the costs of a service reconnections after 
water service is terminated for nonpayment. The District may want to revise its reconnection fees 
to more closely cover its costs. 

LEAK ADJUSTMENTS 

Since the UMRB issued its November 5, 2020 Order, the District has purchased water leak 
protection insurance for its customers from ServLine to address lost revenue from customer service 
line leaks. This insurance became effective May 1, 2021, and has repealed its leak adjustment 
policy. 

8 



16" Line - Woodlawn Rd 

Pre Treatment Water Plant 

Lisenbee Fields 236 Lots - Meters/Tap Setting 

Blackwell 150 Lots - Meters/Tap Setting 

Blackwell 75 Meters/Tap Setting Dover Rd Apt Complex 

Burkhart 75 Meters/ Tap Setting Dover Rd Apt Complex 

Rick Reda Estates - latest section 70 Lots - Meters/Tap Setting 

Office Remodel 

Ford Truck F150 

Ford Truck F250 and Box Side 

Billing Software 

8 Zone Meter throughout the system 

GPS Equipment 

Additional Depreciation 

Total Capital Outlay & Depreciation 

Source of Funds 
Loans 

Developer Funded 

Cash 

Total Funding Sources 

Woodlawn Utility District 

Five Year Capital Asset Plan 

12[ 31L2021 12L31L2022 12L31L2023 
2,200,000 

2,100,000 

75,000 75,000 75,000 

125,000 125,000 

40,000 

40,000 

140,000 

250,000 

35,000 

45,000 

17,000 

5,000 5,000 5,000 

10,000 

670,000 2,472,000 2,225,000 

26,422 94,677 158,468 

696,422 2,566,677 2,383,468 

2,100,000 

380,000 240,000 75,000 

290,000 2,232,000 50,000 

670,000 2,472,000 2,225,000 

Exhibit 1 

12L31L2024 12L31[ 202s 

75,000 

5,000 

80,000 

160,760 160,760 

240,760 160,760 

80,000 

80,000 



Exhibit 2 

Woodlawn Utili~ District - Test Year 

2021 Unaudited 2021 

Budget for State Last 2 Year Average Actual for 2020 Estimated 
Operating Revenues: 

Water Sales 2,750,000 2,260,843 2,330,826 2,428,843 Last 2 year average plus new revenue 

Sewer Billing Revenue 18,000 See New Revenue Tab 

Delinquent Penalties 30,000 31,613 29,730 30,000 Budgeted Revenue 

Other Revenue 20,000 9,933 19,865 10,000 Last 2 year average 

Total Operating Revenues 2,800,000 _1,302,388 ___M_~,421 . 2,486,843 

Operating Expenses: 

Advertising 1,500 408 689 1,500 Budgeted Expenses 

Cost of Water 1,500 600,684 1,281 1,500 Budgeted Expenses 

Depreciation 221,500 216,444 221,500 226,516 From Auditors sched plus new items below plus 2021 

Dues and Fees 30,700 20,727 30,516 30,700 Budgeted Expenses 
Employee Benefits 90,130 57,910 40,903 90,130 Budgeted Expenses including new staff 

Insurance 31,000 36,701 27,288 31,000 Budgeted Expenses 

Miscellaneous 3,500 (5,135) {15,292) 3,500 Budgeted Expenses 

Office Expense 55,400 52,603 51,228 55,400 Budgeted Expenses 
Professional Services 28,000 35,608 26,650 28,000 Budgeted Expenses 
Repairs and Maintenance 220,100 214,945 288,481 220,100 Budgeted Expenses 

Salaries 407,000 324,038 335,280 407,000 Budgeted Expenses including new staff 

Truck Expense 15,200 16,077 14,249 15,200 Budgeted Expenses 

Utilities 34,000 57,238 31,873 34,000 Budgeted Expenses 

WTP Expenses 629,500 296,146 592,292 629,500 Budgeted Expenses 

WTP Depreciation 418,500 209,250 418,500 453,462 From Auditors New Schedule 

Leak Detection Work 30,000 Per Stacey, office manager 

Total Operating Expenses 2,187,530 2,133,640 2,065,438 2,257,508 

Operating Income (Loss) 612,470 168,748 314,983 229,335 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 3,900 5,552 2,361 3,900 Budgeted Expenses 
Interest Expense (447,333) (327,357) (292,797) (287,622) From Amortization Schedule 
Tap Fees 20,000 17,325 17,300 17,300 Last 2 year Average 

Installation and Collection Fees 135,000 128,507 108,890 140,250 Last 2 year Average+ $11,250 from new customers 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (288,433) (175,974) (164,246) {126,172) 

Change In Net Position before Contributed 

Capital and Grants 324,037 (7,226) 150,737 103,163 



Contributions from City of Clarksville 

Change in Net Position 324,037 

81,125 

73,900 

NOTES: We worked on the budget with the District during November/December 2020. 

Added the following to new budget: 
Added new loan interest coming on Board 6/2021 (l/2 year of interest) 

Added new revenue for entire year starting 2021 for Liberty Park 

Added new revenue for 200 apartments starting in 2021 

Added new revenue resulting from lowering the usage in minimum bill to 1,000, 10 months for 21 
Added new revenue from sewer admin fees 

Added the following to budget: 
2020 New Water Lines Cost 

John Taylor Rd - 1/2 mile 8" line 130,000 
Cooper Creek Rd - 1/2 mile 6" line 80,000 
Kristie Michelle Dr - 1500- 6" line 50,000 
Liberty Park newest section - Endot Ln 60,000 

320,000 

Exhibit 2 

162,250 N/ A - City for Liberty Park meters and installations. 

312,987 103,163 

Additional 

Life Del!reclatlon 

40 3,250 
40 2,000 
40 1,250 

40 1,500 
8,000 



Woodlawn Utility District - New Billings 

Discussions w/ Lynn. GM and Stacey, Office Manager 3/ 4/ 21 

The District started billing customers in the Liberty Park development in October 2020. The 

City of Clarksville had previously billed them. This nets an additional $5,000 per month for 

the District 

Sewer - Starting in 2021, the District bills for sewer and remits to City of Clarksville, keeps 

5% for administrative fees, This provides an additional $1,500 per month 

There is a new apartment complex that is being built during 2021. The new revenue should 

start in 2022, 200 connections x $60 average bill per month. 

Growth is expected during each of the next 5 years at approximal 150 customers per year x 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

$ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000 

$ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 

$ - $ 144,000 $ 144,000 $ 144,000 $ 144,000 

$60 average bill per month $ 108,000 $ 108,000 $ 108,000 $ 108,000 $ 108,000 

Revenue generated from reduction of minimum bill usage of 1,600 to 1,000, see rate 

calculation tab for detail, 10 months in 2021. $ 179,106 $ 214,927 $ 214,927 $ 214,927 $ 214,927 

Additional New Revenue $ 365,106 $ 544,927 $ 544,927 $ 544,927 $ 544,927 

Exhibit 3 

in water sales 

new 

in water sales 

in water sales 

recommended 



Exhibit4 

Woodlawn Utilit~ District - Projected Statements of Revenues and ExRenses and Changes in Net 
Position 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

12[31[2021 12[31[2022 12[31[2023 12[31[2024 12[31[2025 
Operating Revenues: 

Water Sales 2,428,843 2,680,843 2,788,843 2,896,843 3,004,843 
Sewer Billing Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 
Delinquent Penalties 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 
Other Revenue 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Total Operating Revenues 2,486,843 2,738,843 2,846,843 2,954,843 3,062,843 

Operating Expenses: 

Advertising 1,500 1,530 1,561 1,592 1,624 
Cost of Water 1,500 1,530 1,561 1,592 1,624 
Depreciation 226,516 295,188 306,479 308,771 308,771 
Dues and Fees 30,700 31,314 31,940 32,579 33,231 
Employee Benefits 90,130 91,933 93,771 95,647 97,560 
Insurance 31,000 31,620 32,252 32,897 33,555 
Miscellaneous 3,500 3,570 3,641 3,714 3,789 
Office Expense 55,400 56,508 57,638 58,791 59,967 
Professional Services 28,000 28,560 29,131 29,714 30,308 
Repairs and Maintenance 220,100 224,502 228,992 233,572 238,243 
Salaries 407,000 415,140 423,443 431,912 440,550 
Truck Expense 15,200 15,504 15,814 16,130 16,453 
Utilities 34,000 34,680 35,374 36,081 36,803 
WTP Expenses 629,500 642,090 654,932 668,030 681,391 
WTP Depreciation 453,462 453,462 505,962 505,962 505,962 
Leak Detection Work 30,000 30,600 31,212 31,836 32,473 

Total Operating Expenses 2,257,508 2,357,730 2,453,704 2,488,820 2,522,302 

Operating Income (Loss) 229,335 381,113 393,139 466,023 540,541 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900 
Interest Expense (287,622) (282,387) (318,671) (312,403) (418,260) 
Tap Fees 17,300 17,300 17,300 17,300 17,300 
Installation and Collection Fees 140,250 140,250 140,250 140,250 140,250 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (126,172) (120,937) (157,221) (150,953) (256,810} 

Change in Net Position before Suggested 

Rate Increase 103,163 260,176 235,918 315,070 283,731 

Revenue from Suggested Rate Increase 

(lowering minimum gallons) 179,106 214,927 214,927 214,927 214,927 

Change in Net Position 282,269 475,103 450,845 529,997 498,658 

Tap Fees from Developers 97,500 97,500 97,500 97,500 97,500 



Woodlawn Utility District - Projected Cash & Investments 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

12/ 31/2021 12/ 31/ 2022 12/31/ 2023 12/31/ 2024 12/31/ 2025 

Beginning Balance 1,582,043 2,041,026 717,529 1,464,910 2,229,465 

Sources of Funds 

Charge for Services *** 2,607,949 2,787,770 2,787,770 2,787,770 2,787,770 

Miscellaneous 58,000 58,000 58,000 58,000 58,000 

Interest Revenue 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900 3,900 

Non-Operating Revenues 146,300 157,550 157,550 157,550 157,550 

Loans 2,100,000 

Developer Fees Provided 380,000 240,000 75,000 80,000 

Total Sources of Funds 3,196,149 3,247,220 5,182,220 3,087,220 3,007,220 

Uses of Funds 

Operating Expenses 2,257,508 2,357,730 2,453,704 2,488,820 2,522,302 

Depreciation (679,978) (748,650) (812,441) (814,733} (814,733) 

Capital Outlay 670,000 2,472,000 2,225,000 80,000 

Interest Expense 287,622 282,387 318,671 312,403 418,260 

Principal Paid on Debt 202,014 207,249 249,906 256,175 475,758 

Total Uses of Funds 2,737,166 4,570,717 4,434,839 2,322,665 2,601,587 

Ending Balance 2,041,026 717,529 1,464,910 2,229,465 2,635,098 

NOTE : This synopsis from beginning funds to ending funds does not include accounts receivable, accounts 

payable, fixed asset or any other adjustments made to the balance sheet. This is a "cash basis" summary. 

Exhibit 5 



Woodlawn Utility District - Review of Fees 

Tap Fees I $1,200 this fee was set in 2017 after estimation of costs 
1===-----.....J 

Re-envaulted the costs on 11/ 19/ 20-

Field Staff 

Materials 

Contract Labor 

Employee Benefits 

Gasoline 

Adm Fees 

250 4-6 hours of time for 2 field staff 

604 Yoke, pex, curbstop, saddle, meter box 

225 Contract labor for clean up of each tap, grass, gravel, soil, etc. 

65 health insurance benefits for field staff's time 

10 gasoline to set each tap 

115 10% of all other costs ----
1,269 

Discussed w/ District that costs are more than fees, so the fees should be raised . 

In the December, Board meeting - they voted to raise tap fees to $1,300 effective immediately. 

Connection Fees I $75 this fee was set in 2010 (non refundable and non transferable) 

renters and owners are the same fee 

Re-envaulted the costs on 11/ 19/ 20-

Field Staff 

Office Staff 

Service Orders 

Gasoline 

Adm Fees 

25 1 hours for 1 employee plus benefits 

20 1/2 hour for 1 employee plus benefits 

10 Form costs, paper, ink 

5 gasoline to set each tap 

6 10% of all other costs ----
66 

The fees are reasonable as related to the costs. 

Re-Connection Fees 1$50/$100 - $50 within business hours, $100 after business hours l==;;;;;;;;;;;~~;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;.........J 

Re-evaluated the costs on 11/ 19/ 20-

Within 

Hours 

Field Staff 25 

Office Staff 25 

Locks 5 
Gasoline 5 
Security 10 
Adm Fees 7 

After 

Hours 

50 1 hour plus benefits, plus overtime for after hours 

25 1 hour plus benefits 

5 % of cost of lock to lock meter 

5 gasoline to customers 

25 % of cost of security for disgruntled customers 

11 10% of a II costs ------
77 121 

Because costs appear to exceed fees, District may want to consider increasing reconnection fees. 

Exhibit 6 



Entity Referred: Cold Springs Utility District  

Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position 

Utility Type Referred: Water 

Staff Summary: 

In its March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study and to send the completed rate study to Board staff by June 30, 2021, along 
with proof of implementation or a plan of implementation. The District complied with none of 
these directives but offered Staff no reasoning regarding why. Notably, the District increased 
rates by 5%, but Staff cannot determine whether this increase will sufficiently correct its 
financial distress. 

Staff Recommendation 

Order the following: 
1. By December 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between

the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1 of the
March 16, 2021 order.

2. By August 5, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan
of implementation.

3. Should the District fail to comply with any directive in this order, Board staff and
Counsel shall issue subpoenas for the District’s Board of Commissioners and Manager to
appear in-person before the Board during its first meeting of 2022.







 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Crockett Mills Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study and to send the completed rate study and either proof of implementation of 
the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan of implementation to Board staff by June 30, 
2021. Board staff has received the rate study but has not received proof of implementation. 
 
Board staff believes the Board should add the District to the update cycle and require the District 
to provide proof of implementation of TAUD’s recommendations. Should the District fail to 
comply, Staff will alert the Board of a need for additional action at its next meeting. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following: 
 

1. By February 1, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with proof of 
implementation of the recommendations of the 2021 TAUD report. 
 

2. The District shall send financial updates to Board staff by March 1st and 
September 1st of each year, beginning March 1, 2022, until the Board releases 
the District from its oversight.  

 



Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts 

Vital for Tennessee's future 

REPORT FOR CROCKETT MILLS 
UTILITY DISTRICT 

UTILITY l\'IANAGEMENT REVIEW 
BOARD 

ORDER DATED MARCH 16, 2021 

October 21, 2021 



INTRODUCTION 

Description of the Crockett Mills Utilitv District 

Crockett Mills Utility District (the District) provides water service to an unincorporated 
area in Crockett County known as Crockett Mills. The District's board of commissioners has five 
members who are appointed by the Crockett County Mayor. The District is very small. As of 
December 31, 2020, the District had 312 customers. 

The District was referred to the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) upon the 
submission of its audit for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, because it met the statutory 
definition for a financially distressed utility district. The District had a negative change in net 
position for two consecutive years without regard to any grants or capital contributions for its fiscal 
years ending December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018. 

History of Rates and Existing Rate Structure 

All customers are charged the same rates. After the District was referred to the UMRB, 
the District has implemented two increases in water rates as follows: 

Effective January 1. 2019 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

Effective J anuaiy l , 2020 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

$23.72 
$ 3.00 

$24.00 
$ 3.50 

As a result of these rate increases, the District has experienced a positive change in net 
position of $21,520 for 2019 and $28,320 for 2020. 

Utility Management Review Board Order 

On March 16, 2021, the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) issued an order 
directing the District to provide the Board staff with a rate study completed by the Tennessee 
Association of Utility Districts and either proof of implementation of the resulting 
recommendations or a proposed plan of implementation by June 30, 2021 . 

2 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation #1 

The District's board of commissioners should approve the Five-Year Capital Asset Plan attached 
as Exhibit 1. 

Recommendation #2 

TAUD recommends the District adopt the following water rates to become effective as shown: 

Effective January l , 2022 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

Effective January 1, 2023: 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

$25 .00 
$ 6.00 

$26.00 
$ 7.50 

3 



FIVE YEAR CAPITAL ASSET PLAN 

TAUD met with the District to assist it in preparing a five-year capital assets plan. They 
discussed capital improvements which the District planned to make or should consider making to 
its water system through December 31, 2025, as well the purchase of capital assets during this 
same time period. Options for funding these capital expenditures were reviewed. TAUD assisted 
the District in preparing a Five-Year Capital Asset Plan based upon these discussions which is 
attached as Exhibit 1 and which was used in TAUD's financial projections. 

llATE STUDY AND PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 

To determine whether existing rates will produce sufficient revenues to make the District's 
self-supporting, TAUD first projected a Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for the District for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, to use as its test year. TAUD 
projected the revenues for the system using existing rates. TAUD projected operation and 
maintenance expenses by reviewing: (1) the District's budget for its 2021 fiscal year ending June 
30, 2021; (2) historical information from the District's previous five fiscal years; and (3) and any 
known and anticipated changes for its 2021 fiscal year. See Exhibit 2 attached to this Report. 

Then, TAUD projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
for the District for its fiscal years ending December 31 of 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. See Exhibit 
3 attached to this Report. 

Revenue Projections: 

• Water sales (charge for services) for 2021 are projected by taking the District's actual water 
usage reports for all rate classes for the year ending June 30, 2020, and applying the 
District's current water and sewer rates to this actual usage. 

• Connection fees are based upon the average of these fees for the 2019 and 2020 fiscal years. 

• Since 2016 the District has experienced minimal annual customer growth. Therefore, 
water sales and connection fees for the remaining four years of the five-year projection 
period do not include any revenue increases based annual customer growth. 

• Interest income for the 2021 is based upon average of these fees for the 2019 and 2020 
fiscal years. 

• No increase in interest income is projected for the remaining years in the five-year 
projection period. 

4 



Expense Proiections: 

• The following operating expenses for the 2021 test year are projected based upon the 
average of each expense for the District's 2019 and 2020 fiscal years: bank charges; 
contract labor; parts; office supplies; advertising; miscellaneous; and utilities. 

• The following operating expenses for the 2021 test year are projected based upon the 
District's budget for 2_021: insurance; software maintenance; repairs and maintenance; 
postage; travel; dues; training; professional fees; telephone; payroll expenses; and water 
testing. 

• Depreciation for the test year is based upon the depreciation for the 2020 fiscal year since 
the District does not anticipate placing any new capital assets into service in 2021. 

• For the remaining fiscal years in the five-year projection period, all operating expenses 
except depreciation are increased by 2% annually over the projected amount for the test 
year. 

• Depreciation expenses after the test year are projected based upon the District's existing 
fixed asset schedule and on new capital assets included in the capital asset plan after the 
test year. 

Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Modifications Required 

Based upon the projected Statements, the District will have a positive change in net position for 
the 2021 test year of approximately $15,587. Due to the depreciation and new debt related to 
planned capital projects in 2022, the District will need additional revenue for its fiscal years 
beginning January 1, 2022 and January 1, 2023. TADD recommends that the District go ahead 
and adopt the following rates for set for the in Exhibit 4: 

Effective January 1, 2022 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

Effective January 1, 2023: 

Monthly customer charge 
Usage rate per 1,000 gallons 

Projected Cash and Investments Schedule 

$25.00 
$ 6.00 

$26.00 
$ 7.50 

A Projected Cash and Investments Schedule for the District is attached as Exhibit 5. If the District 
adopts the rate increases recommended by TAUD and funds its capital improvements as set forth 
in the Five-Year Capital Asset Plan, the District should have a cash balance of $585,812. 

5 



Water Distribution System & WTP Improvements 

Additional Depreciation 

Total Capital Outlay & Depreciation 

Source of Funds 

Loans 

Grants 

Cash 

Total Funding Sources 

Crockett Mills Utility District 
Five Year Capital Asset Plan 

12/ 31/ 2021 12/ 31/ 2022 12/ 31/ 2023 12/ 31/ 2024 12/ 31/ 2025 

1,970,000 

1,970,000 

49,250 

2,019,250 

1,442,000 

528,000 

1,970,000 

49,250 49,250 49,250 

49,250 49,250 49,250 

0 

Exhibit 1 



Exhibit 2 

Crocket Mills Utility_ District - Test Year 

2021 Last 2 Year 2021 

Budget for State Average Estimated ~lanation 

Operating Revenues: 

Charge for Services 148,500 144,264 145,514 Based on calculated revenue 

Connection Fees - Rental 750 160 160 Used last 2 year average 

Connection Fees - Owner 750 480 480 Used last 2 year average 

Total Operating Revenues 150,000 144,904 146,154 

Operating Expenses: 

Bank Charge 42 42 Used last 2 year average 

Depreciation 13,507 13,618 Used 2020 amount 

Insurance 6,250 5,767 6,250 Used District budget for 2021 

Software Maintenance 2,583 2,831 2,583 Used District budget for 2021 

Repairs & Maintenance 27,000 23,617 27,000 Used District budget for 2021 

Contract Labor 1,000 1,144 1,144 Used last 2 year average 

Supplies 5,000 3,908 3,908 Used last 2 year average 

Parts 4,000 5,191 5,191 Used last 2 year average 

Office Supplies 450 430 430 Used last 2 year average 

Postage 1,500 1,230 1,500 Used District budget for 2021 

Advertising 250 118 118 Used last 2 year average 

Travel 1,240 32 1,240 Used District budget for 2021 

Dues 1,400 877 1,400 Used District budget for 2021 

Training 600 345 600 Used District budget for 2021 

Miscellaneous 150 94 94 Used last 2 year average 

Professional Fees 5,000 3,727 5,000 Used District budget for 2021 

Telephone 1,800 1,770 1,800 Used District budget for 2021 

Utilities 9,000 8,901 8,901 Used last 2 year average 

Payroll Expenses 49,791 44,542 49,791 Used District budget for 2021 

Water Testing 1,600 1,078 1,600 Used District budget for 2021 

Total Operating Expenses 118,614 119,147 132,210 

Operating Income (Loss) 31,386 25,757 13,944 



Exhibit 2 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 1,600 1,643 1,643 Used last 2 year average 

Penalties & Interest on Late Payments (2,525) N/A 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,600 (882) 1,643 

Change in Net Position before 

Contributed Capital and Grants 32,986 24,875 15,587 

Contributed Capital and Grants 

Change in Net Position 32,986 24,875 15,587 



Exhibit 3 

Crockett Mills Utilit~ District - Projected Statements of Revenues and Ex~enses and Changes in 

Net Position 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

12L31L2021 12l 3lL2022 12L31 1'.2023 12L311'.2024 12L31l 2025 
Operating Revenues: 

Charge for Services 145,514 145,514 145,514 145,514 145,514 
Connection Fees - Rental 160 160 160 160 160 
Connection Fees - Owner 480 480 480 480 480 

Total Operating Revenues 146,154 146,154 146,154 146,154 146,154 

Operating Expenses: 

Bank Charge 42 43 44 45 45 
Depreciation 13,618 62,868 62,868 62,868 62,868 
Insurance 6,250 6,375 6,503 6,633 6,765 
Software Maintenance 2,583 2,635 2,687 2,741 2,796 
Repairs & Maintenance 27,000 27,540 28,091 28,653 29,226 
Contract Labor 1,144 1,167 1,190 1,214 1,238 
Supplies 3,908 3,986 4,066 4,147 4,230 
Parts 5,191 5,295 5,401 5,509 5,619 

Office Supplies 430 439 447 456 465 
Postage 1,500 1,530 1,561 1,592 1,624 

Advertising 118 120 123 125 128 
Travel 1,240 1,265 1,290 1,316 1,342 
Dues 1,400 1,428 1,457 1,486 1,515 
Training 600 612 624 637 649 
Miscellaneous 94 96 98 100 102 
Professional Fees 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 
Telephone 1,800 1,836 1,873 1,910 1,948 

Utilities 8,901 9,079 9,261 9,446 9,635 
Payroll Expenses 49,791 50,787 51,803 52,839 53,895 

Water Testing 1,600 1,632 1,665 1,698 1,732 

Total Operating Expenses 132,210 183,832 186,251 188,719 191,236 

Operating Income (Loss) 13,944 (37,678) (40,097) (42,565) (45,082) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 1,643 1,643 1,643 1,643 1,643 

Interest Expense (26,828) (26,366) (25,895) 
Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) 1,643 1,643 (25,185) (24,723) (24,252) 

Change in Net Position before 

Suggested Rate Increase 15,587 (36,035) (65,282) {67,288) (69,334) 

Revenue from Suggested Rate Increase N/A 43,500 71,097 71,097 71,097 

Change in Net Position 15,587 7,465 5,815 3,809 1,763 

Contributed Capital and Grants 528,000 



Crockett Mills Utility District - Proiected Rate Calculations 

Suggested Rate Increase to Start January l , 2022 

Base Fee 

Per 1,000 gallons 

$25.00 

$6.oo I 1,000 

Suggested Rate Increase to Start January l , 2023 

Base Fee 

Per 1,000 gallons 

$26.00 
$7.50 I 1,000 

Exhibit 4 



Crockett Mills Utility District - Projected Cash & Investments 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

12/ 31/ 2021 12/ 31/ 2022 12/ 31/ 2023 12/ 31/ 2024 12/ 31/2025 

Beginning Balance 361,003 390,208 460,541 504,782 546,555 

Sources of Funds 

Charge for Services *** 145,514 189,014 216,611 216,611 216,611 

Miscellaneous 640 640 640 640 640 
Interest Revenue 1,643 1,643 1,643 1,643 1,643 
Grants 528,000 

Loans 1,442,000 

Total Sources of Funds 147,797 2,161,297 218,894 218,894 218,894 

Uses of Funds 

Operating Expenses 132,210 183,832 186,251 188,719 191,236 
Depreciation (13,618) (62,868) (62,868) (62,868) (62,868} 
Capital Outlay 1,970,000 

Interest Expense 26,828 26,366 25,895 
Principle Paid on Debt 24,442 24,904 25,375 

Total Uses of Funds 118,592 2,090,964 174,653 177,121 179,638 

Ending Balance 390,208 460,541 504,782 546,555 585,812 

NOTE: This synopsis from beginning funds to ending funds does not include accounts receivable, accounts 

payable, fixed asset or any other adjustments made to the balance sheet. This is a "cash basis" summary. 

Exhibit 5 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Intermont Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
The District was referred to the Board for financial distress and timely returned its completed 
financial questionnaire to Board staff. The District does not currently have a capitalization policy 
but indicated it is working with the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts to create one. 
 
Staff Recommendations: 
 
Order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another qualified 
expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the following:  

a. a review of the capitalization policy, including any recommended modifications;  
b. creation of a five-year capital asset budget to be taken from the current capital asset 

list and to include future anticipated needs; and 
c. a review of all water and sewer fees, including any recommended modifications. 

2. By December 3, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  

3. By January 15, 2022, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82- 
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law. 

4. By July 1, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, and 
either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan of 
implementation.  

5. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 

 

 





















































































































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Iron City Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In its August 6, 2020 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study and to send the completed rate study and either proof of implementation of 
the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan of implementation to Board staff by February 
28, 2021. The District engaged the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts to perform a rate 
study, which was completed and the results of which Board staff has received. However, Board 
staff has not received proof of implementation of its recommendations. 
 
Two of the District’s Commissioners appears to have failed to comply with the statutory training 
requirements. In Mr. Eddie Brewer’s first continuing education period from January 1, 2017 to 
December 31, 2019, Mr. Brewer only received 5 hours of training. He was appointed to his current 
four-year term in 2020. 
 
In Ms. Jeannie Atwell’s first continuing education period from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 
2016, Ms. Atwell did not receive any training. She was appointed to her current four-year term in 
2018. 
 
If the Board wishes, it may initiate contested case hearings on the question of whether the 
commissioners should be removed from office pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82-
307(b)(3)(A)(i)(c) & (b)(5). The statute is permissive and gives the Board discretion as to whether 
it initiates a contested case hearing.  
 
The TAUD report also shows that the District does not currently adjust customer’s bills due to 
leaks. Although it has no policy regarding the practice’s parameters, the District does grant 
customers extensions of time to pay large bills that result from a leak. The District should adopt a 
policy setting parameters for this practice, including provisions establishing a minimum threshold 
for its application and a maximum amount of time for which a payment plan can span.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following: 



 

 
1. By January 15, 2022, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 

requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82- 
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law. 

2. By February 1, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with the following: 
a. proof of implementation of the rate recommendations of the 2021 TAUD report; 

and  
b. either a leak adjustment policy, or a bill repayment policy as recommended on 

page 5 of the 2021 TAUD report. 



Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts 

VlUI forTenhffSN'S futu'* 

REPORT FOR IRON CITY UTILITY 
DISTRICT 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
BOARD ORDER DATED AUGUST 6, 2020 

.July 19, 2021 



INTRODUCTION 

Description of the Iron City Utility District Water System 

Iron City Utility District (the District) is a very small water utility district located in Lawrence 
County, Tennessee. As of December 31, 2020, the District had 238 customers. All customers 
are charged the same rates. 

The District's board of commissioners has five members who are appointed by the Lawrence 
County Mayor. The District purchases water for distribution to its customers from the City of St. 
Joseph. 

The District was referred to the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) upon the 
submission of its audit for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2018, because it met the statutory 
definition for a financially distressed utility district. The District had a negative change in net 
position for two consecutive years without regard to any grants or capital contributions for its 
2017 and 2018 fiscal years. 

The District has no outstanding debt. 

The balance of the District's Cash and Cash Equivalents accounts as of January 1, 2021, was 
$75,533. 

In July 2018, Lawrence County obtained a community development block grant of $525,000 to 
fund a leak detection study and the replacement of water lines to address the District high rate of 
water loss. The work began in April 2019 and was completed in March 2020. Despite the work 
performed, the District still had a high water loss for 2020. 

Historv of Rate Increases 

Rates in Effect on January 1, 2015 

Minimum bill (includes 2,000 gallons) 
Over 2,000 gallons - Residential 

$30.00 
$ 8.80 per 1,000 gallons 

The monthly bill for a customer using 4,000 gallons of water was $46.60 

June 2015 Rate Changes 

In June of 2015, the District's schedule of monthly water rates became the following: 

Minimum bill (includes 1,000 gallons) 
Over 2,000 gallons - Residential 

2 

$36.00 
$12.50 per 1,000 gallons 



The monthly bill for a customer using 4,000 gallons of water increased to $73.50. This rate 
change increased the monthly bill for a customer by 63% - a substantial monthly bill increase. 

August 2015 Rate Adjustment 

In August of 2015, the District increased the number of gallons included in the minimum bill 
from 1,000 gallons back to 2,000 gallons. The monthly bill for a customer using 4,000 gallons 
of water with this rate change was $61.00. Therefore, this decrease in the amount of gallons 
included in the minimum bill resulted in a water rate decrease for the District's customers. 

October 2016 Rate Reduction 

In October of 2016, the District reduced the minimum bill from $36.00 to $30.00 and reduced its 
water usage fee over 2,000 gallons from $12.50 per 1,000 gallons to $9.00 per 1,000 gallons. 
The monthly bill for a customer using 4,000 gallons of water with these rate changes became 
$48.00. 

Janumy L 2021 Rate Increase 

Effective January 1, 2021, the District increa.se its water usage rate over 2,000 gallons to $10.00 
per 1,000 gallons. The monthly bill for a customer using 4,000 gallons of water with this rate 
change became $50.00. 

The District's current water rate schedule is as follows: 

Minimum bill (includes 2,000 gallons) 
Over 2,000 gallons 

$30.00 Minimum 
$10.00 per 1,000 gallons 

Since the rate reductions were implemented in 2015 and 2016, the District has experienced a 
significant decrease in revenue from water sales from 2015 and 2016 through 2020 as follows: 

2015 $156,776 
2016 $168,994 
2017 $139,237 
2018 $139,803 
2019 $145,519 
2020 $143,390 

Most distressing is that in 2017, 2018 and 2019, cash expenses have exceeded water revenues; 
therefore, the District's cash reserves decreased each year. This trend is not sustainable. 

Utility Management Review Board Order 

On August 6, 2020, the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) issued an order directing 
the District to do the following. 

3 



1) The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another qualified 
expert as approved by the Board staff, perform a rate study that includes the following: 

a) The creation of a leak adjustment policy; 
b) The creation of a five-year capital asset budget, to be taken from the current 

capital asset list and to include future anticipated needs; and 
c) A review of connection and tap fees. 

2) By September 30, 2020, the District shall send proof to the Board staff that its 
Commissioners have complied with all training requirements pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. 
7-82-308(£). 

3) By September 30, 2020, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1. 

4) By February 28, 2021, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed 
plan of implementation. 

5) Board staff is given the authority to grant on extension of up to six months of the foregoing 
deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 

The District received an extension for complying with the UMRB' s Order until May 31, 2021 . 

4 



RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendation #1 

The District increase its water rates effective January 1, 2022 to the following: 

Minimum bill O - 2,000 gallons 
Over 2,000 gallons 

Recommendation #2 

$32.00 
$11.50 per 1,000 gallons 

The District does not give leak adjustments. However, the District allows customers who have 
large water bills caused by a leak to pay the large bill over time. The District's board may want 
consider adopting a policy to establish how a large bill must be to qualify for payment over time 
and to establish a maximum period of time over which a large bill can be paid in monthly 
installments. 

5 



FIVE YEAR CAPITAL ASSET PLAN 

The District developed the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan attached to this Report as 
Exhibit 1. The District has made an application for an infrastructure planning grant of $50,000 
from the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development. The application 
was filed on April 22, 2021, and a copy of the application is attached as Exhibit 2. 

This grant will be used to conduct a water loss study and to develop a Corrective Action Plan 
(CAP) for the District to address its water loss. The CAP will include water system repairs, 
replacements and capital improvements needed to reduce the District's water loss. The Five
Year Capital hnprovement Plan attached as Exhibit 1 will need to be modified to include any 
capital improvement projects recommended in the CAP. 

RA TE STUDY AND PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 

To determine whether existing rates will produce sufficient revenues to make the District's water 
system self-supporting, TADD first projected a Statement of Revenues and Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position for the District for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, to use as 
its test year. Since the UMRB issued its August 6, 2020 Order, the District increased its usage 
rate per 1,000 gallons from $9.00 to $10.00 effective January 1, 2021. TAUD projected the 
revenues for the system using the water rates in effect on January 1, 2021. 

TAUD projected operation and maintenance expenses and debt service payments by reviewing 
historical information from the five previous years, the District's budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021, the District's unaudited financial statements for 2020, and any known and 
anticipated changes during the test year. See the Revenues and Expenses - Test Year Schedule 
attached as Exhibit 3. 

Then, TADD projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position for 
the District for its fiscal years ending June 30 of 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. See Exhibit 4 
attached to this Report. 

Revenue Proiections: 

• Revenue from water sales for the 2021 test year was projected by taking the District's 
actual water usage reports for its customers for 2020, and applying the District's water 
rates in effect on January 1, 2021, to this actual usage. 

• Meter connection fees for the test year is based upon the District adding one new 
customer annually. 

• Interest income for the test year is based upon the average of interest income for the 
District's 2019 and 2020 fiscal years. 

6 



• Since 2016 the District has experienced minimal annual customer growth and does not plan 
to expand its existing water system in the near future. Therefore, the water sales for the 
2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025 fiscal years do not include any revenue increases based annual 
customer growth. 

Expense Projections: 

• Except for depreciation, all operating expenses for the test year are based upon the 
average of the operating expenses for the District's 2019 and 2020 fiscal years. 

• The District's purchased water expense for 2020 decreased over the previous four years. 
The District believes the decrease in water purchased from St. Joseph was a result of the 
leak detection study and water line replacements completed in March of 2020. 
Therefore, the District's budgeted $54,775 for its purchase water expense for 2021 which 
TAUD used for the test year. 

• Depreciation for the test year is based upon the District's fixed asset schedule which 
includes the annual depreciation amount of its capital assets. Then, TAUD added the 
annual depreciation on the capital assets added during the District's 2020 fiscal year and 
capital assets added or which are planned to be added during the District's 2021 fiscal 
year. 

• Except for depreciation and purchased water, operating expenses for the remaining four 
years in the five-year projection period are increased by 2% annually over the projected 
amount for the test year. 

• The District purchases water from St. Joseph. Purchased water expense was increased by 
1 % for the remaining four years in the five-year projection period. 

• Annual depreciation expenses for the remaining four years of the five-year projection 
includes depreciation on new capital assets planned to be placed into service during the 
remaining four year of five-year projection period. 

Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Modifications Required 

At the rates in effect on January 1, 2021, TAUD projects that the District would have a negative 
change in net position of (18,154) for the test year ending December 31, 2021, excluding grants 
and capital contributions. TAUD projects the District will continue to have a negative change in 
net position for the remaining four years in its five year projection period at existing rates. 

Considerations for Rate Increase 

In evaluating the effectiveness ofrate increases to address the District's financially distressed 
position, two important factors must be considered. 

7 



Ability to Pay 

The District has no growth and little potential for growth. Therefore, significant rate increases 
may encourage existing customers to come off the water system and begin using wells for their 
domestic water needs. Moreover, the District's customer base has a significant number oflow
income households. Therefore, a substantial rate increase will cause a financial hardship on 
these customers. 

Water Loss 

Although the District has made some system improvements to address its water loss, its water 
loss is still very high. In its application for the ECD infrastructure grant, the District states that it 
had a 65% water loss for 2020. The District estimates that it lost approximately $55,000 in 2020 
in non-revenue water purchased from St. Joseph. 

The identification of leaks and the repair and replacement of water lines to reduce its current 
water loss is the best way for the District to address its financially distressed position. A 
significant decrease in its water loss will reduce its purchased water costs from St. Joseph which 
is the District's largest operating expense. 

TAUD anticipates that the corrective action plan developed from the leak detection study funded 
by the ECD infrastructure grant will include capital improvements which are not in the District's 
the Five-Year Capital Asset Plan TAUD is using to project the District's financial condition after 
2021 . 

Rate Recommendation 

Taking these factors into account, TAUD recommends that the District adopt a rate increase 
effective January 1, 2022 which is designed to produce revenues sufficient to cover all of its 
operating expenses, except depreciation. These rates should make a substantive contribution 
toward meeting the District's annual depreciation expense, but not all of it. The adoption of rates 
to cover the District's cost of service past the end of 2022 is speculative at this point. TAUD 
recommends that the District remain under the jurisdiction of the UMRB until the completion of 
its corrective action plan to address water loss, and the District evaluates how much this plan 
actually reduces its purchase water expenses from St. Joseph. The District may not know how 
much any corrective action plan will reduce its purchased water expense for a couple of years. 

At that time, the District will have a more accurate picture of the rates it will need over the next 
few years to obtain and maintain a positive change in its net position annually. In the meantime, 
the UMRB should ensure that the District increases its monthly water service rates each January 
to make sure its rates cover all of its operating expenses and makes a substantive contribution to 
cover its annual depreciation expense. 

Based upon these considerations, TAUD recommends that the District adopt the following rates 
to become effective January 1, 2022: 

8 



Minimum bill O - 2,000 gallons 
Over 2,000 gallons 

$32.00 
$11.50 per 1,000 gallons 

These rates are projected to cover the District's operating expenses and to cover $24,672 of the 
District's projected depreciation expenses of $40,420 for 2022. 

Projected Cash and Investments Schedule 

The Projected Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance Schedule based solely upon the rate increase 
to become effective January 1, 2022 is attached as Exhibit 5. The District may need to seek 
funding for its radio read meter replacement project scheduled for 2022 rather than use existing 
cash funds for project. 

TAP FEES 

TAUD recommended that the District review the average material and labor costs it incurs in 
installing a water tap to ensure the current tap fee is covering the cost of making a tap. The 
District estimated the labor and material costs it incurs to install a water tap which is set forth 
Exhibit 6. The $750 tap fee covers the cost of the installation of a water tap and is reasonable. 

CONNECTION FEES 

When the District was referred to the UMRB, the District had the following connection and 
reconnection customer fees: 

Meter connection fee 
Reconnection fee 
Transfer of service fee 

$150 
$ 50 
$ 20 

At a minimum, a connection fee should cover the cost of establishing new service for a customer. 
These costs should attempt to cover a customer service employee meeting with the applicant or 
talking with the applicant by phone, reviewing the application for service, and processing the 
connection fee payment and tap fee payment, if applicable. A field employee must travel to the 
service address to verify the initial meter reading for the new account and to tum on the meter. 

T AUD suggested that the District review the costs it incurs in establishing service for a new 
customer. The estimated costs the District incurs in establishing service for a new customer is 
set forth Exhibit 6. The $150 meter connection fee covers the cost of establishing service for a 
new customer and provides the District a small amount of revenue to cover bad debts when 
customers leave without paying their bills. TAUD recommends no change to the meter 
connection fee. 

The District charges a transfer of service fee of $20 to change water service for an existing 
customer from one service address to another service address within the District. Because the 

9 



District already has current information on the customer, TAUD agrees that the transfer-in fee can 
be less than the meter connection fee. The transfer-in fee of $20 is reasonable 

The District informed TAUD that the board of commissioners decided to no longer charge the 
reconnection fee when water service is terminated for nonpayment. Because the District is so 
small, the District has a practice of notifying customers in person or by phone that their water is 
subject to being terminated for nonpayment and gives the customer a set time to pay the overdue 
bill to avoid service termination. The District has found that this practice has resulted in fewer 
service terminations than the threat of the payment of a reconnection fee. The primary purpose 
of a reconnection fee is to provide customers an incentive to pay their bills before water service 
is terminated. Whether the District should charge a reconnection fee is a policy decision for the 
board. Because the District's practice is reducing service terminations for nonpayment, TAUD 
does not recommend the District reinstate the reconnection fee. 

LEAK ADJUSTMENTS 

The District does not give leak adjustments. However, the District allows customers who have 
large water bills caused by a leak to pay the large bill over time. If the District's board does not 
have a policy regarding how a large bill must be to qualify for payment over time and the 
maximum time period over which monthly installment payments can be made, it should probably 
do so to eliminate any unjust discrimination claims between customers who are given extra time 
to pay large water bills caused by a customer leak. 

COMMISSIONER TRAINING 

TAUD has prepared a commissioner training worksheet for each of the District's five 
commissioners based upon information provided to it by the District which are attached as 
Exhibit 7. 

Commissioner Eddie Brewer only received 5 hours of continuing education during his first 3-
year continuing education period from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019. He was 
appointed to his current four-year term in 2020. 

Commissioner Jeannie Atwell received no continuing education hours during her first 3-year 
continuing education period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016. She received 12 
hours of continuing education during her second 3-year continuing education period from 
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019. She was appointed to her current four-year term in 
May of 2018. 

10 



Truck 

2" Service Line - Ducktown Road 1,000 feet 

Backhoe 

2 Water Tanks - Painting 

Four Wheeler 

GIS Mapping 

2 Miles Pipe - Wayland Springs Rd 

300 Radio Read Meters - 235 customers 

Total 

Cumulative Depreciation 

Total Capital Outlay & Depreciation 

Source of Funds 

Loans 
Grants 

Cash 

Total Funding Sources 

Iron City Utility District 

Five Year Capital Asset Plan 

12L3tL2021 12L3tL2022 
20,000 

10,000 

70,500 

10,000 90,500 

250 10,125 

10,250 100,625 

10,000 90,500 

10,000 90,500 

Exhibit 1 

12L31L2023 12L3tL2024 12L31L202s 

75,000 

200,000 

6,000 

20,000 

250,000 

26,000 200,000 325,000 

13,325 26,658 40,408 

39,325 226,658 365,408 

75,000 

20,000 200,000 250,000 

6,000 

26,000 200,000 325,000 



Form Name: 
Submission Time: 

Infrastructure Pl arming Grant Application 
April 22, 2021 9:41 am 

Browser: 
IP Address: 

Chrome 90.0.4430.72 f Windows 
12.204.223.238 

Unique ID: 
Location: 

Applicant (Legal Name) 

Contact Person 

Email 

795971908 

---------
Applicant Address 

Iron City Utility District 

Eddie Brewer 

icud86@y.ahoo.com 

474 Iron City Rd 

Iron City, TN 38463 

Chief Elected Official or Chief ~ecutive Eddie Brewer 
Officer (Contract Signer) 

CEO Title 

Phone 

Email 

FEIN 

DUNS 

Application Preparer (If different than 

contact person) 

Email 

Community Served and County 

Total number of utility customers 

Do you qualify for this prgram as a 

Type of Project 

Funding 

Chairman 

(931} 845-4466 

icud86@yahoo.com 

626000709 

60742079 

Lorie Fisher 

lfisher@sctdd.org 

Iron City, Lawrence County.Tennessee 

252 

Financially Distressed Utility System 

Water Loss Study 

Grant Amount 50000 

Grant % 95.00 

Match Amount 2632 

Match% 5.00 

Match Source Iron City Utility District 

Total Amount 52632 

Exhibit 2 



Budget Narrative. Explain how the The Iron City Utility District's Infrastructure Planning Grant budget for the 

budget was developed. Include preparation of a water loss study was developed by consulting with a 

information about leveraged I match private company that specializes in leak detection. The Iron City Utility 

funding Including source of those District (ICUD) will be responsible for the matching contribution. 

fun~s. Explain why this project should Unfortunately, the Iron City Utility District has been listed as a "distressed 

be (?Ompleted by TNECD (rather than the water.system" by the Tennessee State Comptroller's Office for several 
utility). years. Much of their financial insolvency is due to the large amount water 

that is unaccounted for each month. In 2018, a leak detection program was 

conducted in a portion of the water system; however, there is still a 

significant amount of the system which needs to be investigated for water 

loss. The ICUD is a financially distressed water system and does not have 

the resources to implement a water loss study without grant assistance. 

Project Narrative 

Project Description. Give a brief (1·2 
sentence) general project description. 
Address who, what, where, when and 
how the project would be completed. 

The ICUD proposes to use Infrastructure Planning Grant funds to 

implement a comprehensive water loss study to address the large amount 

of water leakage (65%) in the water system. Trye water loss study, which 

will be conducted by a private company, will include the 1) use of the 

utility's existing zone meters to analyze water system on an area-by-area 

basis, 2) perform targeted leak detection and utility staff training in areas 

identified by zone meters, 3) implement automated leak detection system in 

downtown area, and 4) development of an updated corrective action plan. 



Need and Condition of the System. 
Describe the system and issues 
(severity of water loss or 1/1, why there 
are no maps, etc.) and how this project 
will alleviate or address the Issues. 

The ICUD purchases its water from the City of St. Joseph. Due to 

deficiencies in the water system, the ICUD purchases more water than it 

sells each month. During fiscal year 2020, lCUO lost approximately 
$55,000 due to the purchase of non-revenue water. The ICUD Water 

System was constructed in the 1960's to provide water to southern 

Lawrence County. Presently, there are approximately 22 miles of water 

line. In 2012, the utility officials decided to no longer treat water and began 
purchasing water from the St. Joseph Water System. 

From January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, the ICUD experienced 
a 65% water loss. The proposed water loss study will address the high 

volume of unaccounted water"usage by using existing DMA {Zone Meters) 

along with customer billing data, tank levels, etc. to analyze water system 
for leakage on an area-by-area basis. This will allow prioritization of leak 

pinpointing efforts between the OMAs. Targeted leak detection will be 

perfomied In areas identified by the OMA analysis. Methods shall include 

electronic acoustic Hstening devices, correlators, ultrasonic clamp-on 

meters as necessary to localize and pinpoint leakage In the water 

distribution system. 
In the downtown area, an automated leak detection system shall be 

deployed for the study and left in place for the utility's continued 

management of water loss. This system consists of correlating noise 
loggers permanenUy placed at approximately ten (10) listening points in the 

downtown area of the system. Typical installation locations are within 
existing valve boxes. The noise loggers will be programmed to perform an 
acoustic leak survey of the area each morning at approximately 2:00 am 

when ambient noise is low and water usage in the system is at a minimum. 

Results of the automated survey will be reported via cellular 

communications from the noise loggers to a cloud server where they can 

be viewed by the Owner daily. Results from the survey will be given 
geographically to the Owner over a web viewing software platfomi. Red 
dots on the software indicate new leaks that have. developed in the system 

and green dots indicate no leakage detected. More detailed data is 

available on the platform including audio files of the leak for secondary 
validation and leak history for each logger. Sensors will be placed at 

approximately 1,000' intervals but can also perform computer correlating 

remotely to pinpoint leaks to within just a few feet of the leak location. The 

results can be verified by acoustic leak detection personnel using handheld 
acoustic devices to pinpoint leaks before they are repaired. Results can be 
used during the water loss study to show frequency and locations of leaks 

and after the study for the Owner as an early detection tool to minimize 

Owner's response times to future leaks. 

The results of the water loss study will be used to develop a concise 
Corrective Action Plan (CAP). CAP to layout infrastructure repairs, 

replacements, and capital projects required for water loss reduction and 
future management. 



Past Initiatives. Describe the applicant's 
previous experience with similar 
activities and how this builds on other 
work. 

Strategic Plan. Describe how this 
project fits into any straetgic plan, asset 
management plan or capital 
improvement plan for the utility or 
community. 

In 2017, Lawrence County was awarded Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds to rehabilitate the ICUD. At that time ICUO was over 
half of the water purchased was unaccounted for. The CDBG project 
included a leak detection phase and a construction phase. The leak 
detection study consisted of installation of remotely monitored district 
meters; testing, calibrating and performing corrective actions on water 
meters; and acoustically surveying the entire water system. The 
construction phase consisted of the replacement of approximately 5500 
linear feet of water line and 2500 linear feet of services. Unfortunately, 
ICUD is still experiencing a large volume of water loss. The 2017 project 
was able to identify the most severe areas of water loss at that time. These 
areas were repaired under the grant. Due to the limiting funding of the 2017 
grant, not all areas were able to be corrected. The proposed project wlll 
identify additional areas of leakage and develop a corrective action plan to 
address these areas. This project builds on the 2017 project by utilizing the 
zone metering infrastructure that was Installed to identify current leakage 
and to train ICUD staff to manage water loss on a regular basis using the 
existing technology. Additionally, ICUD will expand the system by installing 
an automated leak detection system consisting of correlating noise loggers 
permanently placed within the system. 

The results of the water loss study will be used to develop a concise 
Corrective Action Plan . The Corrective Action Plan will layout 
infrastructure repairs, replacements. and capital projects required for water 
loss reduction and future management. This builds on the capital 
improvements that were started in the COBG project using the equipment 
and technology that was installed as part of that project. 

Implementation. Describe how the ICUD plans to acquire the services of a private company that will specialize 
project will be Implemented {third party in leak detection. The leak detection company will work closely with the 
contractor, current staff, etc.) and the 

capacity of the staff to carryout the 
project. 

ICUD to train them in how to analyze the data collected for the leak 
detection. With appropriate training, the ICUD staff will have the capacity to 
carry out the project. 

Timeline. Provide a tlmeline that shows The proposed project will be completed within twelve months. Indicated 
that the project can be completed In 
12-18 months and includes time for 
procurement, completing the study/les, 
and analysis of results. 

below is the proposed timeline: 
Procurement 2 months 
Analysis of ione meter data 3 months 
Targeted leak detection 3 months 
Installation of automated leak detection system 

Data review/analysis/report 3 month 
4 months 



Sustainability. Explain how the studies 
and infonnation collected will be used 
to Improve the utillty system and what 

next steps will be taken with the 
information. 

Impact Measures. Describe the impact 
of this project on your community and 
utility system. 

The lnformation derived from the comprehensive leak detection study will 
be used by the ICUD to formulate a comprehensive leak repair program. 

ICUD has manpower and equipment available to repair a limited number of 
leaks once they have been identified. The repair of leaks will increase 

sustainability by reducing the volume of water purchased from the City of 

St. Joseph. Replacement projects will be prioritized in the CAP and as 
funding becomes available, these projects will be completed. Potential 

sources of project funding include state revolving loan funds {SRF), CDBG, 
USDA-RD, etc. 

The proposed project will positively impact ICUD and southern Lawrence 
County. The reduction of water loss will increase the availability of 

consumable water for ICUD water customers and significantly improve the 

financial solvency of the utility district. 

-------- -------
Output Measure - Number of 2 
Businesses in the proposed service 
area 

Outcome Measure - Number of 2 
Businesses Improved in the proposed 
service area 

Output Measure • Number of 250 

Households in the proposed service 
area 

Outcome Measure - Number of 
Households Improved in the proposed 
service area 

Additional Output and Outcome 
Measures. If studying water loss or 1/1, 
include planned linear feet of lines that 
will be studied. If you plan to map your 
system, what percentage of your 
system will be mapped? Include any 
additional information on outputs and 
outcomes that will be helpful for 

reviewing or scoring the grant 
application. 

Include a map showing your utillty 
system and what areas would be 
studied with this grant 

250 

Output Measure -Analysis 116,000 linear feet of water line for water 
leakage 

Output Measure - Updated corrective action plan 
Output Measure - Training for the utilizing of existing meters and 
automated leak detection 

Outcome Measure - Utility staff better able to utilize existing equipment to 
locate leaks 
Outcome Measure - Utility District is in a better position to apply for grant 

funds to implement an already developed water toss reduction strategy. 

https:/ls3.amazonaws.com/files.formstack.com/uploads/3411036/76220147 
/795971908/76220147 _ironcity _zonemtrs_24x36.pdf 

Budget (This document can be found at https:l/s3.amazonaws.com/files.formstack.com/uploads/3411036/76220149 
the llnk above the applfcation) /795971908/76220149_iron_city_budget.pdf 



Water Loss Data. If applying to study https://s3.amazonaws.com/files.formstack.com/uploads/3411036/76448507 
water loss, include the last 12 months of /795971908/76448507 _iron_city_ud_water_loss_.pdf 
water loss data. 



ATTACHMENT REFERENCE 

G~NTB~DGET 

I Iron City Water Loss Study I 
The grant budget line-item amounts below shal! be appliqable only to expense incurred during the following 

Applicable Period: BEGIN: 111121 I END: 6/30/22 

POLICY 
030bject 
Line-item 

Reforen~e 

1. 2 

4. 15 

5.6. 1.e. 
9.10 

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY 
1 

Salaries, Benefits & Taxes 

Professional Fee, Grant & Award 
2 

Supplies, Telephone, Postage & Shipping, 
Occupancy, Equipment Rental & Maintenance,, 
Printing & Publications ' 

11.12 Travel, Conferences & Meetings 

13 Interest 
2 

14 Insurance 

16 Specific Assistance To Individuals 

I GRANT 
CONTRACT 

0.00 

50,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

GRANTEE 
PARTICIPATION 

0.00 

2,632.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

TOTAL PROJECT 

0.00 

52,632.00 

0.00 

0.00 
-
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 I 1----~f------- --------------+---!1------.---~--- ~+--------I 
17 Depreciation 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Non-Personnel 
2 I 0.00 0.00 0.00 

20 Capital Purchase 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 

22 Indirect Cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 i _ _._---'---_____ _._ ____ --.------- ----J 
24 In-Kind Expense I 0.00 0.00 0.00 

25 GRAND TOTAL so.000.00 I 2,632.00 52,632.00 

1 Each expense object line-item shall be defined by the DepartmLt of Finance and Administration Policy 03, Uniform 
Reporting Requirements and Cost Allocation Plans for Subrecibients of Federal and state Grant Monies, Appendix A. 
(posted on the Internet at http://www.to.gov/financi!/topic/fa-policyinfo). 

2 Applicable detail follows this page if line-item Is fu~ed. I 

I 
1 



GRANT BUDGET LINE-ITEM DETAIL: · 

---
PROFESSIONAL FEE, GRANT & AWARD 

Specific, Descriptive, Detail Ill Study 

- ---
Project Administration 

--
. 

------- ---
INTEREST 

,-

I Specific, Descriptive, Detail (Repeat Row As Necessary) 
--

I 

DEPRECIATION 

Specific, Oescripti,,.e, Detail (Repeat Row As Necessary) 

OTHER NON.PERSONNEL 

j Specific, Descriptive. Detail (Repeat Row As Necessary) 

I 
I 

I CAPITAL PURCHASE I 
Specific. Descriptive. Detail (Repeat Row As Necessary) I 

L--

ATTACHMENT REFERENCE 

--- I AMOUNT 

I 50,000.00 

I 2,632.00 
--

TOTAL 52,632.00 

AMOUNT 

Amount 
---

TOTAL Amount 

AMOUNT 

Amount 

Amount TOTAL I 
======= 

AMOUNT 
-

Amount 

TOTAL Amount 

AMOUNT I 
Amount 

TOTAL Amount 



Rye Engineering PLC 
4210 West Main Street 
Erin, TN 37061 US 
+ 1 9312892300 
lgordon@ryeengineering.com 
www.ryeengineering.com 

ADDRESS 
Iron City Utility District 

Use existing OMA (Zone Meters) along with customer Qilling 
data, tank levels, etc. to analyze water system for leakage on 
an area-by-area basis. This will allow prioritization of leak 
pinpointing efforts between the DMAs. Access to City's zone 
meter system will be required. · 

Targeted Leak Detection for areas identified by OMA: l)se 
electronic acoustic listening devices. correlators, ultrasonic 
clamp-on meters as necessary to localize and pinpoint leakage 
in the water distribution system. All available water services, 
hydrants, blow-offs, and selective valves to be contacted. If 
test pits are required, owner to provide excavation. Owner's 
staff to participate in leak detection work and receive training 
with leak detection equipment for on-going water loss : 
management efforts. 

Correlating noise loggers shall be permanently placed ~t 
approximately ten (10) listening points in the downtown area of 
the system that is predominanHy composed of metallic water 
main material. Typical Installation locations are within existing 
valve boxes. The noise loggers are programmed to pe'rtorm 
an acoustic leak survey of the area each morning at · : 
approximately 2:00 am when ambient noise is low and water I 
usage in the system is at a minimum. Results of the automated · 
survey are then reponed via cellular communications from the 
noise loggers to a cloud server where they can be vie~d by 
the Owner daily. Results from the survey are given ' 
geographically to the Owner over a web viewing software 
platform. Red dots on the software indicate new leaks that 
have developed in the system and green dots indicate no 
leakage detected. More detailed data is available on the I 
platform including audio files of the leak for secondary j 
validation and leak history for each logger. Sensors are placed I 
at approximately 1,000' intervals but can. also perform tj>mputer 
correlating remotely to pinpoint leaks to within just a few feet of 
the.leak location. The results can be verified by acoustic leak 
detection personnel using handheld acoustic devices to' 
pinpoint leaks before they are repaired. Results can be ·used 
during the water loss study to show frequency and locations of 

DMA-M 

LD-T 

~~ 
~ -

ENGINEERING PLC 

ESTIMATE# 1499 
DATE 04/16/2021 

1 7,500.00 7,500.00 

17,500.00 17,500.00 

1 20,000.00 20,000.00 



:>ESCRi'FTi(Ji,l 

leaks and after the study for the Owner as an early detection 
tool to minimize Owner's response times to future leaks. 

Use results of water loss study to·develop concise Corrective 
Aftion Plan (CAP). CAP to layout infrastructure repairs, 
replacements, and capital projects required for water loss 
reduction and future management. · 

1 5,000.00 5,000.00 

I --- -. ---. - ·- ----- -............ ---. ---···· .... ---- ........ ......... -·--- ----· 1· ........ -.. . -. -. ·- ... .... -. --· .... ---- .. -- ........... -. . . -.. -·-

TOTAL $50,000.QQ 

Accepted By j Accepted Date 



Exhibit 3 

Iron City Utility District - Test Year 
District Last 2 Year Recalculated 

Budget 2021 Average for 2021 I192lanation 

Operating Revenues: 

Water Sales 135,999 141,410 143,390 Used calculated amount based on usage 

Meter Connection Fees 2,298 1,152 750 Based on 1 new customer per year 

Total Operating Revenues 138,297 142,562 144,140 

Operating Expenses: 

Wages 25,000 25,981 26,000 Used 2 year average 

Payroll Tax Expense 1,913 1,988 2,000 Used 2 year average 

Bad Debt Expense 1,842 This is rare, did not budget for this 

Professional Fees 9,000 7,714 7,700 Used 2 year average 

Depreciation 25,435 25,435 30,545 Used 2020 depreciation plus new additions 

Dues & Subscriptions 1,010 992 1,000 Used 2 year average 

Insurance 4,125 4,247 4,200 Used 2 year average 

Maintenance & Supplies 6,000 4,971 5,000 Used 2 year average 

Miscellaneous 245 307 300 Used 2 year average 

Office Expense 700 644 600 Used 2 year average 

Postage 1,725 1,551 1,600 Used 2 year average 

Training 985 846 800 Used 2 year average 

Sales Tax 12,600 12,620 12,600 Used 2 year average 

Utilities 4,500 4,426 4,400 Used 2 year average 

Water Purchased 54,775 63,257 54,775 Used budget, some of water loss issues fixed 

Water Testing 10,775 10,752 10,800 Used 2 year average 

Total Operating Expenses 158,788 167,570 162,320 

Operating Income (Loss) (20,491) (25,008) (18,180) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Income 26 26 Used 2 year average 

Miscellaneous Income N/A 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 26 26 



Change in Net Position before Contributed 

Capital 

Capital Contributions & Grants 

Change in Net Position 

(20,491) 

{20,491) 

Exhibit 3 

(24,982) (18,154) 

{24,982) {18,154) 



Exhibit 4 

Iron City: Utility: District 

Projected Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 
12[31[2021 12L31L2022 12[31[2023 12L31L2024 12L31L2025 

Operating Revenues: 
Water Sales 143,390 143,390 143,390 143,390 143,390 

Meter Connection Fees 750 750 750 750 750 

Total Operating Revenues 144,140 144,140 144,140 144,140 144,140 

Operating Expenses: 
Wages 26,000 26,520 27,050 27,591 28,143 

Payroll Tax Expense 2,000 2,040 2,081 2,122 2,165 

Professional Fees 7,700 7,854 8,011 8,171 8,335 

Depreciation 30,545 40,420 43,620 56,953 70,703 

Dues & Subscriptions 1,000 1,020 1,040 1,061 1,082 

Insurance 4,200 4,284 4,370 4,457 4,546 

Maintenance & Supplies 5,000 5,100 5,202 5,306 5,412 

Miscellaneous 300 306 312 318 325 

Office Expense 600 612 624 637 649 

Postage 1,600 1,632 1,665 1,698 1,732 

Training 800 816 832 849 866 

Sales Tax 12,600 12,852 13,109 13,371 13,639 

Utilities 4,400 4,488 4,578 4,669 4,763 

Water Purchased 54,775 55,323 55,876 56,435 56,999 

Water Testing 10,800 11,016 11,236 11,461 11,690 

Total Operating Expenses 162,320 174,283 179,607 195,101 211,050 

Operating Income (Loss) (18,180) (30,143) (35,467) (50,961) {66,910) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest Income 26 26 26 26 26 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 26 26 26 26 26 

Change in Net Position before 
Contributed Capital (18,154) {30,117) (35,441) (50,935) (66,884) 

Suggested Rate Increase 14,368 14,368 14,368 14,368 

Change in Net Position (18,154) (15,748) (21,072) (36,567) (52,515) 

NOTE: Estimated all expenses to increase by 2% every year, with the exception of depreciation and purchased water expense. 

Depreciation expense was increased each year by new asset depreciation from the 5 year plan. 



Exhibit 5 

Iron City Utility District- Projected Cash and Investment Balance Schedule 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

6/30/ 2021 6/ 30/ 2022 6/ 30/ 2023 6/ 30/2024 6/ 30/ 2025 

Cash & Investments - Beginning Balance 75,533 77,924 12,096 28,643 49,030 

Sources of Funds 

Water Sales (includes suggested rate 

increase) 143,390 157,758 157,758 157,758 157,758 

Meter Connection Fees 750 750 750 750 750 
Interest Income 26 26 26 26 26 

Grant Funds 20,000 200,000 250,000 

Loan Proceeds 75,000 

Total Sources of Funds 144,166 158,534 178,534 358,534 483,534 

Uses of Funds 

Operating Expenses 162,320 174,283 179,607 195,101 211,050 

Depreciation (30,545) (40,420) (43,620) (56,953) (70,703) 

Capital Outlay 10,000 90,500 26,000 200,000 325,000 

Total Uses of Funds 141,775 224,363 161,987 338,148 465,346 

Cash & Investments - Ending Balance 77,924 12,096 28,643 49,030 67,218 

NOTE: This synopsis from beginning funds to ending funds does not include accounts receivable, accounts payable, fixed 

asset or any other adjustments made to the balance sheet. This is a "cash basis" summary. 



Iron City Utility District- Fee Schedule 

Tap Fees - $750 

Box & Lid 

Meter 

Materials 

Gasoline 

Backhoe Labor 

Other Labor 

Total Costs 

Connection Fees - $150 

Labor 

Gas 

Total Costs 

75 

55 

150 

30 

250 

so 
610 

so 
20 

70 

NOTE: The District only has 1-2 new taps per year and 1-2 new connections per year. 

Exhibit 6 



EXHIBIT 7 



IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT COMMISSIONER TRAINING AND 
CONTINUING EDUCATION WORKSHEET 

Step 1 - Date of Original Appointment 

Date of Original Appointment 

Eddie Brewer 

Step 2 - Date of Initial 12 Hours of Training 

Date of completion of initial 12 hours of training 
(to be completed before or within one year of Step 1 date) 

Mr. Brewer timely completed his initial 12 hours of training. 

Step 3 - Continuing Education Periods 

Beginning date of First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

February 8, 2016 

November 17, 2016 

January 1 of the calendar year after completion of initial 12 hours of training: 

January 1, 2017 

First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 201 7 through December 31, 2019 

Training received: 5 hours - November 29-30, 2019 

Mr. Brewer only received 5 hours of continuing education during his first 3-year 
continuing education period. 

Second Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 

Training received: 6 hours - January 30, 2020 

To date, Mr. Brewer has received 6 hours of continuing education during his second 3-
year continuing education period. 



Third Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, ___ through December 31, __ _ 

Training received: 

2 



IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT COMMISSIONER TRAINING AND 
CONTINUING EDUCATION WORKSHEET 

Tricia Townsend 

Step 1 - Date of Original Appointment 

Date of Original Appointment 

Step 2 - Date of Initial 12 Hours of Training 

Date of completion of initial 12 hours of training 
(to be completed before or within one year of Step 1 date) 

Ms. Townsend timely completed her initial 12 hours of training. 

Step 3 - Continuing Education Periods 

Beginning date of First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

August 16, 2016 

November 17, 2016 

January 1 of the calendar year after completion of initial 12 hours of training: 

January 1, 2017 

First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019 

Training received: 12 hours November 13, 2019 

Ms. Townsend timely completed her 12 hours of continuing education for her first 3-year 
continuing education period. 

Second Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 

Training received: None to date 

Ms. Townsend must get 12 hours of continuing education by December 31, 2022. 

Third Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025 

Training received: 



IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT COMMISSIONER TRAINING AND 
CONTINUING EDUCATION WORKSHEET 

Margot Sherwood 

Step 1 - Date of Original Appointment 

Date of Original Appointment 

Step 2 - Date of Initial 12 Hours of Training 

Date of completion of initial 12 hours of training 
(to be completed before or within one year of Step 1 date) 

Ms. Sherwood timely completed her initial 12 hours of training. 

Step 3 - Continuing Education Periods 

Beginning date of First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

April 27, 2016 

November 17, 2016 

January 1 of the calendar year after completion of initial 12 hours of training: 

January 1, 2017 

First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019 

Training received: 12 hours November 13, 2019 

Ms. Sherwood timely completed her 12 hours of continuing education for her first 3-year 
continuing education period. 

Second Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 

Training received: None to date 

Ms. Sherwood must get 12 hours of continuing education by December 31, 2022. 

Third Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025 

Training received: 



IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT COMMISSIONER TRAINING AND 
CONTINUING EDUCATION WORKSHEET 

Step 1 - Date of Original Appointment 

Date of Original Appointment 

Joy Johnson 

Step 2 - Date of Initial 12 Hours of Training 

Date of completion of initial 12 hours of training 
(to be completed before or within one year of Step 1 date) 

Ms. Johnson timely completed her initial 12 hours of training. 

Step 3 - Continuing Education Periods 

Beginning date of First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

May 24, 2020 

October 12, 2020 

January 1 of the calendar year after completion of initial 12 hours of training: 

January 1, 2021 

First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023 

Training received: None to date 

Ms. Johnson must get 12 hours of continuing education by December 31, 2023. 

Second Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2024 through December 31 , 2026 

Training received: 

Third Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2027 through December 31, 2029 

Training received: 



IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT COMMISSIONER TRAINING AND 
CONTINUING EDUCATION WORKSHEET 

Jeannie Atwell 

Step 1 - Date of Original Appointment 

Date of Original Appointment 

Step 2 - Date of Initial 12 Hours of Training 

Date of completion ofinitial 12 hours of training 
(to be completed before or within one year of Step 1 date) 

Ms. Atwell timely completed her initial 12 hours of training. 

Step 3 - Continuing Education Periods 

Beginning date of First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

May 7, 2013 

November 6-8, 2013 

January 1 of the calendar year after completion of initial 12 hours of training: 

January 1, 2014 

First Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016 

Training received: None 

Ms. Atwell received no continuing education hours during her first 3-year continuing 
education period. 

Second Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019 

Training received: 12 hours -November 1-2, 2017 

Ms. Atwell received 12 hours of continuing education hours during her second 3-year 
continuing education period. 



Third Three-Year Continuing Education Period: 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 

Training received: 12 hours- October 12-13, 2020 

Ms. Atwell received 12 hours of continuing education hours during her third 3-year 
continuing education period. 

2 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Mooresburg Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In its March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study and to send the completed rate study to Board staff by June 30, 2021, including 
proof of implementation or a plan for implementation. The Board also ordered the District to 
ensure its commissioners have complied with all training requirements and are thus eligible to 
serve. The District did not comply with the Board order. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following: 
 

1. By December 15, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1 of the 
March 16, 2021 order. 

2. By January 15, 2022, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82- 
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law. 

3. By August 5, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study 
and either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan 
of implementation. 

4. Should the District fail to comply with any directive in this order, Board staff and 
Counsel shall issue subpoenas for the District’s Board of Commissioners and Manager to 
appear in-person before the Board during its first meeting of 2022. 

 









 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entity Referred: Roan Mountain Utility District  
  
Referral Reason: Negative Change in Net Position  
  
Utility Type Referred: Water 
  
Staff Summary: 
 
In its March 16, 2021 order, the Board directed the District to contract with a qualified expert to 
perform a rate study and to send the completed rate study to Board staff by June 30, 2021. The 
District performed an internal rate study that resulted in a rate increase of $7.50 per thousand 
gallons of water. Further, it amended its minimum leak adjustment threshold to $500.  
 
The District previously served a prison which accounted for 25% of its water use but closed this 
summer. According to the District, its internal rate study accounted for the loss of the prison as a 
customer. However, the District has expressed willingness to engage the Tennessee Association 
of Utility Districts for a rate study if necessary. 
 
Board staff believes because the District lost its largest customer, the Board should require a rate 
study performed by a qualified expert. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Order the following: 
 

1. The District shall have the Tennessee Association of Utility Districts, or another qualified 
expert as approved by Board staff, perform a rate study. 

2. By December 3, 2021, the District shall send Board staff a copy of the contract between 
the District and the qualified expert who is to perform the tasks in paragraph 1.  

3. By January 15, 2022, the District shall ensure that its commissioners have met all training 
requirements and are thus eligible to serve pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82- 
307(b)(5) & 7-82-308(f). Otherwise, the District shall appoint eligible commissioners in 
accordance with the law. 

4. By July 1, 2022, the District shall provide Board staff with the completed rate study, and 
either proof of implementation of the resulting recommendations or a proposed plan of 
implementation.  

5. Board staff is given the authority to grant one extension of up to six months of the 
foregoing deadlines upon a showing of good cause by the District. 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Utility District of Carter County requests to change from election of Board members to appointment 
of Board members by the county mayor. 

 

 

 



STATE OF TENNESSEE UTILTIY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Cordell Hull Building 

425 Rep. John Lewis Way N. 
Nashville, TN 37243 

 
 

ORDER 
 

 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §7-82-307(a)(9), the First Utility District of 

Carter County, Tennessee, acting by and through its duly elected Board of Commissioners, 

adopted a Resolution at its regular meeting on October 19, 2021 to change the method by 

which members are selected to fill vacancies on said Board from its current method of a plurality 

vote of customers of the utility district in an election held by the district to the uniform statewide 

method of appointment by the county mayor, and the Board subsequently filed a certified copy 

of said Resolution with the State of Tennessee Utility Management Review Board requesting 

approval of the same.  

The Utility Management Review Board, having considered the reasons for the request 

as detailed in the Resolution and as explained by the representatives of First Utility District 

participating in the regular meeting of the Board on today’s date, hereby finds that good cause 

exists to approve the Resolution as requested. The Board further finds that changing the 

process for filling all future vacancies on the First Utility District Board of Commissioners as 

requested is in the best interest of the First Utility District and its customers and hereby 

approves said Resolution via this Order.   

Therefore, upon entry of this Order approving the Resolution, all future vacancies on the 

Board of Commissioners for First Utility District of Carter County, Tennessee created by 

expiration of term or any other reason whatsoever shall be filled via the uniform statewide 

method of appointment by the county mayor as set forth in Tennessee Code Annotated §7-82-

307(a)(4).    

IT IS SO ORDERED this the ________ day of ________________, 2021. 

 

      __________________________________ 
      BETSY KNOTTS, CHAIRPERSON 
      STATE OF TENNESSEE  
      UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 

         







 

 

 

 

 

 

2022 UMRB Suggested Meeting Dates 

April 28, 2022 

September 22, 2022 

December 8, 2022 


	Cost of Service Study 03102021 - FINAL.pdf
	Executive Summary of Cost of Service Allocation
	Summary of Cost of Service Allocation
	Rate Impact Analysis and Recommendations
	Total Revenue Requirement by Cost
	Revenue Recovery Rate by Class
	Total Revenue Requirement by Class
	Total Revenue Requirement per Kgal by Class
	Costs / KGal Billed
	Costs / KGal Purchased and Billed
	Allocation Factors
	Number of Customers
	Long Term Debt
	Customer Consumption Billed
	Volume of Water Billed and Purchased
	Average Customer Usage
	Billed Customer Revenue
	Billed Customer Revenue per KGal
	Purchased Water
	Allocation of Other Revenues
	Operating Expenses
	Classification of Operating Expenses
	Allocation of Base Expenses
	Allocation of Extra Capacity Expenses
	Allocation of Customer Expenses
	Summary of Operating Expense Allocation


	Debt Service
	Classification of Debt Service
	Allocation of Base Expenses
	Allocation of Extra Capacity Expenses
	Allocation of Customer Expenses
	Summary of Debt Service Allocation


	Capital Improvement
	Classification of Capital Improvements
	Allocation of Base Capital Improvements
	Allocation of Extra Capacity Capital Improvements
	Allocation of Customer Capital Improvements
	Summary of Capital Improvements Allocation


	Customer Billing Data

	COS Milcrofton FY2020.pdf
	COS Cover Page Template
	E-Cover Water COS

	Summary FY20 W
	Billing Data FY20 W
	Allocation Factors FY20 W
	Plant FY20 W
	Operating Expenses FY20 W
	Debt Service FY20 W
	Fixed Expenses FY20 W
	Workplan FY20 W

	COS Milcrofton FY2020.pdf
	COS Cover Page Template
	E-Cover Water COS

	Summary FY20 W
	Billing Data FY20 W
	Allocation Factors FY20 W
	Plant FY20 W
	Operating Expenses FY20 W
	Debt Service FY20 W
	Fixed Expenses FY20 W
	Workplan FY20 W




